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SAFETY HAS BEEN FURTHER
INCREASED
INTERVIEW WITH THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
KLAUS-DIETER BECK
When you look back at last year and compare it to previous years, how
would you describe it?
Well, I think the most important thing for us is to see that our safety
performance improved once again. Our people realized that they
must do their job in a safer way. Moreover, our company invested
a lot of money in personal equipment and new technologies.
We also achieved reasonably good ﬁnancial results last year,
to the satisfaction of our shareholders. Such results also enable
us to continue investing in our company.
As far as work safety is concerned, are you now satisfied with the level
you have reached? Or are there still some unfinished tasks?
We can never be satisﬁed unless we have zero accidents. Improving
safety is a continuous activity. We have to keep talking about safety,
educate employees, and eliminate glitches where we see any
problems. And this will be never-ending work.
Is “zero” doable; is it reachable in this type of business?
Our benchmark is the development of safety shown by key
performance indicators in Germany. They have been able to improve
their numbers year by year. Our annual lost time injury frequency rate
(LTIFR) last year was in the region of 9, while in Germany the rates are
in the region of 4.7. So I think there is still room for improvement.
How eﬃciently does your central mine rescue department work?
We can proudly say that we have probably the best equipped mine
rescue department in the western world. They are on standby
24/7 and are able to reach every mine within 15 minutes, alongside
the ﬁrst-response team of the mines. We also have service
agreements with other mining companies in the Czech Republic.
Thanks to their unparalleled equipment and training, our rescuers
occasionally intervene in the case of difﬁcult rescue operations
outside mining operations.
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Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of OKD, a.s.

“We have achieved
reasonably
good results,
to the satisfaction
of our shareholders.”
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WE PROBABLY HAVE THE BEST
EQUIPPED MINE RESCUE TEAMS
IN ALL OF THE WESTERN WORLD.
THEY ARE ON STANDBY 24 HOURS
A DAY AND ARE ABLE TO INTERVENE
AT ANY MINE WITHIN 15 MINUTES,
ALONGSIDE THE FIRST-RESPONSE
TEAM OF THE MINE.

In terms of extracting coal, did you see some diﬀerent
developments last year compared to previous years?
For us there is the fact that we are going deeper
year by year; it makes things more complicated.
The composition of our products – coking and thermal
coal – basically remains the same.
Are you satisfied with the work of your people?
I am greatly pleased that they have been able to learn
quickly how to operate the new technology. I really
appreciate that. I am also happy that many employees
at the mines became engaged in the Continuous
improvement Programme and have helped us to ﬁnd
new opportunities for improvements in work
efﬁciency. Once again, we have achieved a substantial
improvement in our longwall productivity as well
as overall improvement in tons per man-shift compared
to the previous year.
How successful were you in completing reclamation
projects last year?
I believe we are doing a good job in this regard. We
return landscapes where mining has been terminated
to people, so that they may relax there once again and
pursue leisure-time activities.
OKD is becoming one of the most prominent players
in the country where corporate social responsibility is
concerned. What are your plans for the future?
We certainly take our social responsibility activities very
seriously. We have established our corporate charitable
foundation, which receives one percent of the company
proﬁt. It is a huge amount of money that the foundation

6

2010 Annual Report of OKD

has used to support hundreds of projects. We also
sponsor several sport clubs and other social activities.
The majority of the support is targeted at North
Moravia. Do you think people here appreciate it or take
it for granted?
I think most people appreciate it, certainly.
You are a natural partner for the local administrations.
What responses do you receive when dealing with them?
What assistance do they request from you?
We deal regularly with local representatives. We ask
them where they see the issues we need to resolve. We
strive to work together, not against each other. Similarly,
we explain to them the role which OKD plays in the North
Moravian region. We provide jobs with above-average
salaries, and we pay a lot in taxes to local communities.
We are capable of helping where there is a pressing
social need or we participate in supporting young talents
in sport clubs in our region.
Is there a future for coal mining in North Moravia?
The Velvet Revolution was followed by a drastic
reduction of mining with considerable negative
impacts for the region. Now, 20 years later, we have
been successful in creating a company that is engaged
in state-of-the-art technology implementation in one
of the most difﬁcult mining regions in the world,
and a company that is both competitive and proﬁtgenerating. Coal mining certainly has a future here.
It hasn’t gone unnoticed by equipment manufacturing
companies and leading global underground technology
manufacturers, such as Bucyrus, Sandvik and others.

Interview

So you are playing the role of what we might
refer to as a research lab here?
It looks as though we might have taken over
this role from the Germans. They have always
been the role model in this regard, but have
decided to idle their last mine by 2018. What is
important for us is to answer the question: can
it be done more safely and will it help us to be
more efﬁcient? These are the two most
important criteria for us.
How would you describe the level
of cooperation with the local universities and
secondary schools?
We jointly pursue numerous programmes.
The universities cooperate with us on research
and engineering projects. We also offer

interesting opportunities for graduates from
the mining university and have created new
apprenticeship classes. We are now promoting
a long-term vision of OKD as a company
with a future. Three years ago everybody
would tell you the company will be gone
by 2018, because its coal reserves would be
depleted. Now, however, we are even working
on developing coal areas adjacent to our
current operations, which originally were
thought of as written off. Of course, we have
to go through all the legislative processes
to get approval for mining these reserves. We
must make sure that our activities will not
negatively affect the environment. But there
is still plenty of coal underground.
So your final message to the people here could
be: 'Stay here, learn here, find a job here, there
are plenty of good prospects here'?
Deﬁnitely, our region and our company have
a great future ahead of them.
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They establish their local shops here and
ask us if we are willing to do some testing
of their new technologies underground. OKD is
a role model for them through which they can
present their technologies to other companies
in Russia and other countries around
the world.

PERSPective 2015
We have started implementing the PERSPective
2015 Programme, aimed at capitalizing on robust
investments in mining technologies and work
safety so that they will become undisputed
competitive advantages in the years to come.
In 2010 under that Programme, we focused
on the following areas:

PEOPLE
We consider people to be the most valuable asset of our company.
Therefore, we make efforts to ensure that all employees receive
reasonable salaries for their work, as well as to enable training and
development for both the existing and the future employees.

8,61

 In 2010, the average monthly salary of underground employees
increased by CZK 2,942 to CZK 32,878 from 2009.
 Within the OKD Academy Project, the company supported 4 children
of its employees studying at universities.
 The company supported studies and qualiﬁcation enhancement
through courses provided by the Mining University (Faculty of Mining
and Geology – Mining Engineering) and Pardubice University (Faculty
of Electrical Engineering and Informatics, Faculty of Chemical
Technology – Rock Disintegration through Explosion).
 A few dozen employees continued their post-secondary school studies
in the ﬁeld of Mining and Mining Geology – Underground Mining
at the Secondary Industrial School in Karviná.
 The company developed its support for apprenticeships.
At the Secondary School of Engineering and Services in Karviná,
over 70 young people studied in ﬁelds preparing new U/G mechanics
and U/G electricians thanks to OKD support. At the same time,
the company prepared a similar cooperation with the Secondary
School in Havířov-Šumbark, which will receive its ﬁrst mining industry
apprentices in September 2011.
 The Training Centre at the Darkov Mine went into full operation after
a trial run.
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The lost time injury frequency rate
(expressing the number of injuries
per million hours worked) decreased
from 11.29 in to 2009 to 8.61 in 2010

PERSPective 2015

EFFICIENCY

RESERVES

The investments in mining technologies
are aimed, among other things, at gradually
improving overall efﬁciency. Ordinary
employees can also participate in this
process through suggestions they can put
forward within the Continuous Improvement
Programme.

The OKD Management supervises coal reserves
and continuously prepares up-to-date Mining
Plans and related administrative processes so
as to ensure the perpetuation of mining in years
to come.

 The company completed the POP 2010
Programme, which resulted in increased
productivity and a reduced Lost Time Injury
Frequency Rate from 11.29 in 2009
to 8.61 in 2010.

 Summary of E.I.A. Studies completed and
approved in 2010: Karviná Mine – Lazy
site for 2011 – 2015, Darkov Mine
for 2011 – 2020, ČSM Mine for 2009 – 2020.

Current coal reserves
(in thousand tons)

Karviná Mine
92,766

Darkov Mine
40,525

ČSM Mine
47,714

Paskov Mine
25,089

ABOUT THE COMPANY

 Within the Continuous Improvement
Programme, the employees submitted
1,139 improvement ideas, of which
806 improvement ideas were accepted
by project teams and 618 improvement
ideas were implemented, bringing
ﬁnancial beneﬁts of CZK 226 million
to OKD. The company distributed almost
CZK 3 million among those who
volunteered ideas.

 The latest reserves as per the Joint
Ore Reserves Committee (JORC),
as of 31 December 2010, amounted
to 206,094 thousand tons (of the total:
Karviná Mine 92,766 thousand;
Darkov Mine 40,525 thousand;
ČSM Mine 47,714 thousand;
Paskov Mine 25,089 thousand).

PERSPective 2015

SAFETY

PREDICTABILITY

Through investments in technical and
protective equipment, and also the greater
involvement of all employees in the continuous
occupational health and safety improvement
process, we are aiming to cut the Lost
Time Injury Frequency Rate from
12 in 2009 to 5 by the end of 2015.

OKD is one of the fundamental pillars
of the Moravian-Silesian economy, which
brings responsibilities not only in relation
to the shareholders and employees, but also
in regard to the whole region.

 We completed the Safety 2010 Programme
implementation, which provided our mines
with state-of-the-art protective and
technical equipment available on the world
market. The total investment exceeded
CZK 500 million, and in 2010 protective
and technical equipment was purchased
at a cost of more than CZK 150 million.
This comprised the largest ever investment
in occupational safety in the Czech Republic.
 Our emphasis on safety was also manifested
through the announcement of several
competitions, including for example
the “Safety” Project competition with
a Škoda Fabia car as the prize and the
”Safe Workplace” competition.
 The company also made efforts to improve
the work environment (reduced dust levels
were achieved thanks to new technologies)
and the health of employees (rehabilitations,
vitamins).

 The Management is placing greater
emphasis on the further improvement
of supplier-customer relations.
 We continued our regular meetings
with communities in whose area
the mining is carried out to discuss our
mutually beneﬁcial cooperation, as well
as the remediation of mining damage.
 Being the largest employer in the region,
the company participated in various
economic activities performed within
both the Moravian-Silesian Region
and the Czech Republic, for example
activities organized by the Confederation
of Industry and Transport, the Mining
Union and the Union for the Development
of the Moravian-Silesian Region.

CZK 500
mn

Safety 2010 Programme:
Total investment > CZK 500 million
Investment into protective equipment
in 2010 > CZK 150 million
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GOALS AND STRATEGIES

OKD'S IMPORTANCE TO THE REGION
A WORD FROM THE VICE-CHAIRMAN
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF ADMINISTRATION OFFICER
JÁN FABIÁN

“New longwall
sets achieve four
times the average
productivity.”

Safety is the area that will continue to be a key pillar of our
business, and therefore modernization and investments
in work safety will become a part of our everyday work.
However, the OKD investments are beneﬁcial not only
to the employees and shareholders. Such extensive
investments, which are quite unique in the Czech Republic,
stimulate the development of companies that deliver
us new equipment, and thus serve as a strong impetus
for employment in the region where we operate. And this
is another dimension of our work, i.e. direct or indirect
support provided to the region where we work and live.
Apart from the economic impetuses, OKD is increasingly
involved in supporting charitable, cultural, sport and social
activities. Last but not least, our company actively focuses
on the restoration of landscapes to the state they were
in prior to mining, often with completely unique projects
for environmental revitalization in the Karviná and Ostrava
areas. In the past 20 years alone, OKD has spent nearly
4 billion Czech koruna in land reclamation and redevelopment
projects, and we will continue with these endeavours.

ABOUT THE COMPANY

The year 2010 closed one important chapter of OKD’s
post-revolution development, a chapter concerning
the comprehensive modernization of development and
mining technologies and the modernization of personal
protective equipment. Approximately CZK 10 billion were
invested under the POP 2010 Programme to enable us to mine
high-quality hard coal reserves safely and with a productivity
level that will allow us to keep our competitive position and
thus achieve the expected proﬁtability. Measured through
productivity (tons/man/shift), some new longwall sets
even reach quadrupled productivity in comparison with
the average productivity of a mine.

Goals and strategies

COAL MINING IS OUR PRIORITY,
THINKING AT WORK IS A NECESSITY
Apart from the modernization and extensive investments
in machinery and equipment in 2010, we also completed
the restructuring of our business, activities and
processes with a view to focusing our efforts solely
on the coal mining. In June 2010, the energy business
was sold at the level of the parent holding, New World
Resources N.V., (hereinafter referred to as “NWR”), and
in consequence of this, our view of energy commodities
and their management thereof has fundamentally
changed. In order to more efﬁciently utilize electricity,
compressed air and other energy commodities, as well
as to improve the efﬁciency of other work processes,
the Continuous Improvement Programme was widely
implemented in all the mines, the Service Centre
and administration. Almost 10% of the employees
participated in the Programme, and through their
618 realized improvement initiatives they contributed
not only to work safety, but also to the saving of almost
CZK 230 million in 2010. And these savings were not by far
only concentrated in the energy and energy commodity
sectors. Driving, mining, transport, preparation facilities,
surface work areas and the whole administrative sphere
became areas where the employees themselves started
to implement improvement projects. Improvements
stemming from ideas for each work area, which come
from the employees themselves, will irrevocably become
part of our work and will also set the tone for our position
in the hard coal market in the years to come.

THE COAL PERSPECTIVE
Following the innovative steps taken over recent
years under the POP 2010 Programme, the OKD
Management went ahead with a follow-up initiative,
namely the PERSPective 2015 Programme, the details
of which are described in another section of this report.
In terms of the OKD strategy for the next few years,
PERSPective 2015 is a programme which this time takes
us beyond technology itself and reaches into a wide
range of operational areas – from a focus on the needs
and development of people, through a further increase
in productivity and an increase of reserves to the safety
of our activities. All of these areas will be increasingly
under our microscope. And all of this will be pursued
in order that we will be a reliable partner for business
partners, suppliers, municipalities and, last but not
least, for shareholders, i.e. a partner, whose business
is transparent and focused on maximizing satisfaction,
and thereby, also proﬁt. The funds earned by ourselves
will guarantee us further prospects, and thus also
provide prospects for the whole region, a home region
we have been proud of for so many decades. Hand
in hand with the core business, we will continue to strive
for a “destigmatization” of coal as a commodity, which is
a promising commodity not only for related companies
(steel mills, power plants, foundries, etc.), but also
for the future of the Moravian-Silesian Region. This
is partly due to the fact that the region is one of few
European regions where people are able to extract coal
under extreme conditions.
Ján Fabián
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COMPANY MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE BODIES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Klaus-Dieter Beck
Chairman
Ján Fabián
Vice Chairman
Miloslava Trgiňová
Vice Chairwoman
Karl Friedrich Jakob
Marek Jelínek
Miklos Salamon
Stanley C. Suboleski

Luboš Řežábek
Chairman
Jan Hanousek
Vice Chairman
Otakar Jelínek
František Válek
Miroslav Syrový
Jaroslav Vlach

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Luboš Řežábek
Chairman
Jan Hanousek
Vice Chairman
Bessel Kok
Miroslav Syrový
František Válek

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Klaus-Dieter Beck
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
Ján Fabián
Chief Administration Ofﬁcer
(Deputy Chief Executive Ofﬁcer)
Miloslava Trgiňová
Chief Finance and Information
Technology Ofﬁcer
Petr Otava
Chief Commercial Ofﬁcer
Leo Bayer
Chief Operating Ofﬁcer
Jan Matula
Chief Engineering Ofﬁcer
Radim Tabášek
Chief Human Resources Ofﬁcer

Radim Babinec
Chief Legal Ofﬁcer
Petra Mašínová
Chief Public Relations
and Communication Ofﬁcer
Pavel Hadrava
General Manager of BU Karviná Mine
Václav Kabourek
General Manager of BU Darkov Mine
Boleslav Kowalczyk
General Manager of BU ČSM Mine
Vladislav Szmek
General Manager of BU Paskov Mine
Václav Kopta
General Manager of BU Service
Centre
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SUPERVISORY BOARD

Company management

ORGANIZATION
CHART AS OF
DECEMBER
31, 2010
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Internal Audit
General Manager
for Technological Innovation
Security Manager

NWR KARBONIA Sp.z o.o.
OKK Koksovny, a.s.

Chief Administration and
Development Ofﬁcer
(Deputy CEO)

Chief Commercial Ofﬁcer
BU Service Centre
BU ČSM Mine

Treasury and Taxes
Chief Financial
and IT Ofﬁcer

BU Darkov Mine

Accounting
Information Technologies

Chief Operating Ofﬁcer
BU Karviná Mine
BU Paskov Mine
OKD, HBZS, a.s.

Chief Engineering Ofﬁcer

Chief Legal Ofﬁcer
Reclamation

Senior Management Team

Chief HR Ofﬁcer

Business Unit
Subsidiary
Afﬁliate
Shared Service Centers
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Chief PR
and Communication Ofﬁcer

HR – Recruitment
and Development
HR – HR Strategy,
RemunerationSystem
and Services

Company management

CHANGES IN COMPANY MANAGEMENT
This Chapter describes the changes in the statutory, supervisory and management bodies of OKD
during 2010, as well as the changes made beyond the record date, i.e. 31 December 2010.

On 18 February 2010, Otakar Jelínek became a Member of the Supervisory Board and replaced Zdeněk Bakala
in this position. On the same date, Zdeněk Bakala terminated his position within the Supervisory Board.
On 30 April 2010, Josef Kasper terminated the discharging of the duties of his ofﬁce as the General Manager
of BU ČSM Mine.
On 30 April 2010, Boleslav Kowalczyk terminated the discharging of the duties of his ofﬁce as the General
Manager of BU Darkov Mine.
Since 1 May 2010, Boleslav Kowalczyk has taken up the duties of the General Manager of BU ČSM Mine.
Since 1 May 2010, Václav Kabourek has taken up the duties of the General Manager of BU Darkov Mine.
On 21 May 2010, the three-year term of ofﬁce as a Member of the Board of Directors, performed by
Klaus-Dieter Beck, expired.

On 1 November 2010, the three-year terms of ofﬁce as Members of the Board of Directors, performed
by Ján Fabián, Miloslava Trgiňová, Karl-Friedrich Jakob, Marek Jelínek and Miklos Salamon, expired.
Effective as of 2 November 2010, Ján Fabián, Miloslava Trgiňová, Karl-Friedrich Jakob, Marek Jelínek
and Miklos Salamon were elected as Members of the Board of Directors.
On 2 November 2010, Ján Fabián, a Member of the Board of Directors, was elected
the Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors.
On 2 November 2010, Miloslava Trgiňová, a Member of the Board of Directors, was elected
the Vice-Chairwoman of the Board of Directors.
On 19 December 2010, the ﬁve-year terms of ofﬁce as Members of the Supervisory Board, performed
by Luboš Řežábek and Jan Hanousek, expired.
Effective as of 20 December 2010, Luboš Řežábek and Jan Hanousek were elected as Members
of the Supervisory Board.
Effective as of 20 December 2010, Luboš Řežábek was elected as the Chairman of the Supervisory Board,
and Jan Hanousek was elected as the Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board.
On 17 March 2011, the three-year term of ofﬁce as a Member of the Board of Directors, performed
by Stanley C. Suboleski, expired.
Effective as of 18 March 2011, Stanley C. Suboleski was elected a Member of the Board of Directors.

ABOUT THE COMPANY

Effective as of 22 May 2010, Klaus-Dieter Beck was elected a Member of the Board of Directors, and
as of the same date, he was also elected the Chairman of the Board of Directors.
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Highlights

2010

2009

4

4

11,193,000

10,621,000

Proﬁt before tax (million CZK)

7,104

1,991

Proﬁt after tax (million CZK)

6,323

1,480

Operating proﬁt (million CZK)

7,890

2,675

Net operating cash ﬂow (million CZK)*

10,916

5,800

Total value of OKD’s assets (million CZK)

47,266

50,497

Number of mines
Production (t)

* before tax, change in working capital and extraordinary items

SAFETY FIRST
A WORD FROM THE CHIEF
OPERATING OFFICER
The year 2010 in the OKD mines was marked
by an increase in work efﬁciency, and most particularly,
by the placing of an extraordinary emphasis on work
safety. Thanks to such an approach, we hit our production
targets and achieved our best ever results in the safety
area. The key Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate indicator
decreased from 11.29 in 2009 to 8.61 in 2010.
These improved results in the area of occupational health
and safety were achieved through our systematic and
consistent work, and in particular, through the improved
discipline of all employees. The POP 2010 and Safety
2010 investment programmes, completed last year,
signiﬁcantly contributed to the very good results.
Investments of almost 10 billion Czech koruna made
in mining technologies, as well as the replacement and
upgrading of protective and technical equipment for more
than CZK 500 million, have brought about their ﬁrst
tangible results.
We also supported safety and efﬁciency through many
other activities, for example, with the Continuous
Improvement Programme and the Safe Workplace
competition. In performing such activities, we
endeavoured to involve the widest range of employees
so that they would embrace the company’s policy.
Of course, during the year we also encountered many
obstacles, in particular, a deterioration in geological
conditions. We can only say that such obstacles belong
to the mining industry, and we had to overcome them.
I believe that I will be able to present similar or even
better results in the next Annual Report. The year 2011
will be at least as challenging as 2010. However, we can
build on the solid foundations we have built over recent
years.
Leo Bayer
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“We have met our
production objectives
while achieving
the best safety results
in our history.”

OUR BUSINESS

OKD is the only producer of hard coal in the Czech Republic and
one of the most significant mining companies in Central Europe.
We carry out our mining activities in 8 licensed mining areas
of the Karviná, Darkov, ČSM and Paskov Mines.
Most of the production parameters developed positively. Contrary to 2009, when the Mining Plan
was reduced due to the global economic crisis, production again exceeded the level of 11 million
tons. New equipment made possible growth in the average daily production per longwall and
in the longwall performance, resulting in increased labour productivity.

2009

2010

10,621,000

11,193,000

380,094

250,090

11,001,094

11,443,090

68,144

69,026

1,511

1,743

20

17.6

25.804

29.943

419.9

465.8

Average number of development sections

48.5

49.3

Average daily development section advance rate (m)

4.51

4.35

25.41

25.18

Production (t)
Sludge (t)
Total production (t)
Operational driveage (m)
Average daily extraction per longwall (t/day)
Average number of longwalls
Longwall performance (t/shift)
Excavated area (m²/longwall/day)

Development section performance (cm/shift)
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COAL MINING AND INDIVIDUAL OPERATIONS

Our business

KARVINÁ MINE
Karviná – Doly, ul. Čs. armády 1
Postcode 735 06
General Manager: Pavel Hadrava, Ph.D.
The Karviná Mine was established on 1 April 2008
by merging the ČSA Mine and Lazy Mine into one business
unit. The total area of the Karviná Mine coal ﬁeld is
32.21 km2, of which 26.15 km2 belongs to the ČSA site
and 6.06 km2 to the Lazy site.
In 2010, the average number of Karviná Mine employees
was 5,090, of which 1,053 were contractor employees.
The main projects implemented in 2010 were as follows:
deployment of a new high-seam longwall set within
the POP 2010 Programme, continued development
of Block 11 and reconstruction activities to open Block
10. The purchase of six new suspended locomotives and
other machinery and equipment was also important
to improve the mining efﬁciency.
Great attention was paid to the mining damage
remediation and land reclamation projects. The most
signiﬁcant launched projects included, for example,
reclamation of old Doubrava refuse dump, phase V and
Kotlina area reclamation. The completed projects
included the Svojsík Valley Reclamation, Remediation
and Reclamation of Former Schools, Drainage and
Reclamation of “Pytlíkova stávka” Lands.

MINING FIELD: 32.2 km2
AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 5,090
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Karviná – Doly 2179
Postcode 735 06
General Manager from 1 January to 30 April 2010:
Boleslav Kowalczyk
General Manager from 1 May to 31 December 2010:
Václav Kabourek
Darkov is the second largest underground mine complex
in the Czech Republic (after the Karviná Mine). It comprises
two operational sites – Site 2 and Site “9. květen”. In 2010,
raw coal was processed by the coal preparation plant
of Site 2, which produces ﬁrst-rate coking and thermal coal
types. The total area of the mining ﬁeld is 25.9 km2.
In 2010, the average number of Darkov Mine employees was
4,010, of which 1,100 were contractor employees.
The priority investment projects implemented within
the Darkov Mine development in 2010 included
development of Block 9 of ČSA Site and Block 9 of Site
2 at the level of Seam 40 and construction of a part
of a central coal haulage line, as well as an increase
in the underground air-conditioning system capacity
at Site 2. Project preparation was also commenced
for the development of a connecting gateroad between
the Karviná and Darkov Mines. Within the POP 2010
Programme, two new roadheaders were installed.
The signiﬁcant surface construction projects particularly
included the implementation of Construction Project titled
“Development of Karviná Tourism Infrastructure – Darkov
Golf Course”, structures designated to reconstruct selected
assemblies of the coal preparation plant and modernization
of Mír 4 mining equipment power supply system.
The most signiﬁcant reclamation projects included
the reclamation of “Darkov Sea”, where biological
reclamation and follow-up maintenance are in progress
after the completed technical reclamation. Within
the “Sobecký Hill Reclamation – Construction 2” Project,
landscaping, including tree planting, was performed, and
other reclamation projects focused on the embankment
adjustment and landscaping.

MINING FIELD: 25.9 km2
AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 4,010
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ČSM MINE
Stonava 1077
Postcode 735 34
General Manager from 1 January 2010 to 30 April 2010:
Josef Kasper
General Manager from 1 May to 31 December 2010:
Boleslav Kowalczyk
The ČSM Mine is located in the eastern area
of the Karviná Basin. Coal extraction at the ČSM Mine
is carried out at two sites – ČSM North and ČSM South.
The two sites are connected underground. All raw
coal production is processed at the preparation plant
at the ČSM North site. The total area of the ČSM Mine coal
ﬁeld is 22.106 km2.
In 2010, the average number of ČSM Mine employees was
3,739, of which 988 were contractor employees.
The key investment projects implemented by the ČSM
Mine in 2010 included the completion of the waste
water treatment plant at the South site, crosscut driving
for selective thermal coal haulage at both sites and laying
of ﬁre water piping in the down-cast air shaft at the North
site. The modernization of skip loaders also continued.
Within the POP 2010 Programme, three roadheaders
were newly deployed, and belt conveyors were extended
and newly installed for the longwalls provided with POP
equipment.
Within the land reclamation projects, there was
continuing work on the Za nádražím reclamation project,
Louky land reclamation – Phase 9 and Darkov land
reclamation – Phase 10.

MINING FIELD: 22.1 km2
AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 3,739
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PASKOV MINE

The Paskov Mine is located approximately 20 km south
of Ostrava and produces high-quality coking coal.
The Paskov Mine consists of the Staříč site, which is
further structured into the Sviadnov, Staříč, (Paskov
Mine headquarters), Chlebovice and Frenštát sites.
The Frenštát site has been mothballed. The total area
of the Paskov Mine coal ﬁeld is 105.684 km2, of which
the Staříč mining area is 42.512 km2 and the Frenštát
mining area is 63.172 km2.
In 2010, the average number of employees in the Paskov
Mine was 3,076, of which 465 were contractor employees.
The key capex projects include the construction of a mine
telephone terminal, purchase of new belt and armoured
face conveyors, an underground air conditioning system
and monorail transport equipment for persons and
materials, as well as mining machinery modernization.
Within the POP 2010 Programme, two longwall sets and
four new development sets were deployed.
The reclamation of lands impacted by mining focused
on the Oprechtický les refuse dump reclamation
(maintenance of planted forest vegetation), and Staříč II
refuse dump reclamation (technical reclamation).

MINING FIELD: 105.7 km2
AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 3,076
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Staříč 528
Postcode 739 43
General Manager: Vladislav Szmek

Our business

NON–MINING ACTIVITIES
BU SERVICE CENTRE
Orlová-Lazy 605
Postcode 735 12
General Manager: Václav Kopta
BU Service Centre provides all the mining BUs
with necessary maintenance and repair services.
The centralization of maintenance of mining machinery
and equipment in OKD was initiated in the second half
of 2008, and in 2010, it already brought a lot of positive
results.
The average number of employees in BU Service
Centre in 2010 was 1,072, of which 122 were contractor
employees.
BU Service Centre provides the mining BUs with
the following services:
 mechanical and electrical repairs of mining machinery,
including technical diagnostics;
 central tender processes to purchase repairs
performed by contractors;
 handling of materials on courtyards and loading sites,
truck and road transportation, inventory management;
 processing of scrap metals, including non-ferrous
metals;
 wood processing to the range of products used
in the mine.
The key investment project was that of construction
of a section of the Darkov – Dalkia service water supply
pipeline at a length of 1,050 m.

AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 1,072
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A special challenge consisted in completing the POP 2010 Programme, aimed at replacing major
parts of the company's mining equipment. Valued at almost CZK 10 billion, the project was
the largest comprehensive investment in mining equipment in OKD's history. It was undertaken
with a view to substantially improving labour productivity and enabling the mining of more coal
with the deployment of equipment that is better adapted to variable seams. The equipment also
complies with both the current and future requirements for a substantially higher carrying capacity
at a depth of approximately 1,000 m. At present, we have available new longwall sets, roadheaders
and drilling and loading sets. All the machines represent the world’s best quality in their
respective ﬁelds.

Summary of purchased equipment
Since the initiation of the Programme

In 2010

11 Sandvik MR 340 roadheaders
2 Sandvik MR 220 roadheaders
12 conventional DH-L development sets
DH-R75 roadheader (leased)
2 plough sets with mechanized DBT
supports for low seams
5 DBT mid-seam longwall sets
4 DBT high-seam longwall sets

Karviná Mine: DBT 2.6/5.5 high-seam
longwall set
Paskov Mine: DBT 0.65/2.05 low-seam
longwall set, 4 DH-L 1200 development sets
Darkov Mine: MR 220 roadheader, DH-R 75
roadheader (leased)
ČSM Mine: 2 Sandvik MR 340 roadheaders,
Sandvik MR 220 roadheader

INVESTMENTS INTO THE POP 2010
PROGRAMME REACHED NEARLY
CZK 10 BILLION.
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PRODUCTIVITY OPTIMIZATION PROGRAMME 2010
(POP 2010)
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Equipment deployment in mines
Karviná

Darkov

ČSM

4 Sandvik MR 340
roadheaders

2 Sandvik MR 340
roadheaders

5 Sandvik MR 340
roadheaders

1 Sandvik MR 220
roadheader

1 Sandvik MR 240
roadheader

Paskov

1 roadheader
DH-R 75 (leased)
1 DH-L 1200
development set

10 DH-L 1200
development sets

1 DH-DT 1
development set
1 DBT 2.8/6.0
high-seam longwall set
1 DBT 2.6/5.5
high-seam longwall set

1 DBT 2.6/5.5
high-seam longwall set

1 DBT 2.6/5.5
high-seam longwall set

2 DBT 1.3/3.1
mid-seam longwall sets

1 DBT 1.3/3.1
mid-seam longwall set

2 DBT 1.3/3.1
mid-seam longwall set

1 DBT 0.6/1.4
low-seam longwall set

1 DBT 0.65/2.05
low-seam longwall set

Total POP 2010 costs

(mn CZK)

2008

2009

2010

3,767.7

3,672.3

2,421.3

Further modernization of the mining equipment will be also carried out
within the PERSPective 2015 Programme.
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CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAMME
OKD's operations in 2010 were fundamentally inﬂuenced
by the Continuous Improvement Programme. That is not
to say there was a return to the “obligatory” improvement
ideas of „old times“, as many worried. On the contrary,
the initiative took advantage of the most advanced
world knowledge and led to employees from all work
categories and work teams submitting an absolute
avalanche of improvement ideas. Most of the ideas
focused on occupational health and safety improvements,
the improvement of performance parameters and
operational cost savings.
Among the big positives delivered by the Programme
are ﬁnancial gains for OKD and higher safety standards
that are achieved in the individual work areas. However,
even more important is the strengthening of shared
responsibility and the increasing of solidarity between
the employees and the company. Workers justiﬁably
perceive that the company genuinely cares about their
opinions and ideas.
Apart from the immediate ﬁnancial bonuses awarded
for accepted and implemented improvement proposals,

In 2011, the Programme will proceed according to similar
principles, aiming to involve the work teams and
management members even more.

RESTRUCTURING OF MINING
ACTIVITIES
In OKD, the idling and closure of mines in inefﬁcient parts
of the licensed mining areas continued in 2010 as per
the mid-term plan, the approved closure plan, project
documentation and the approved mining and technical
plan for 2010 at the Karviná Mine – ČSA site (Doubrava
District). Phase 3 of the downsizing process was also
carried out at the Dukla site. During Phase 3, the social
and health claims of miners laid off due to the downsizing
process were settled, and the company also performed
work to remediate and mitigate the effects of mining
activities.

2010 Statistics

Improvement ideas
submitted by individual
employees
Optimization projects with
speciﬁc objectives
Total

Submitted

Accepted

Implemented

Financial
beneﬁt to OKD
(mn CZK)

1,075

742

558

113.1

2.262

64

64

60

112.9

0.590

1,139

806

618

226

2.852

Bonuses paid
(mn CZK)
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another signiﬁcant motivation for the OKD and contractor
employees to submit their ideas was a participants' draw
for many appealing prizes (holiday trips, TVs, laptops),
including the main prize, a Škoda Fabia car.

Our business

In 2010, the Ministry of Industry and Trade
of the Czech Republic did not release any funds
from the proceeds of payments for extracted
reserved minerals, made by the company
to the state budget under Section 32 of Act

No. 44/1988 Coll., on the protection and
utilization of mineral resources (“Mining Act”),
as amended, intended to remedy environmental
damage, caused by mining the reserved
deposits, and environmental liabilities.

Cost speciﬁcation in 2010

State share

Own funds
(mn CZK)

Total costs
and expenses
(mn CZK)

Technical liquidation

0

25.839

25.839

Capital expenditures resulting
from idling and closures

0

0

0

Social security and healthcare expenses
related to idling and closures

0

4.390

4.390

Mitigation of effects of mining activities

0

0

0

OKD total

0

30.229

30.229

MINING PREPARATION
AT NEW SITES
OKD continuously provides for its further
development so as to meet, also in the future,
its commitments towards its customers
and the region, where it is an important part
of the economy and social environment.
In doing so, the company takes all steps
in a transparent manner and as per
the applicable laws, which particularly requires
that Environmental Impact Assessments
(E.I.A.) be made for all the relevant sites.
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E.I.A. Studies completed in 2010:
 Karviná Mine, Lazy site (for 2011 – 2015)
 Darkov Mine (for 2011 – 2020)
 ČSM Mine (for 2009 – 2020)
Other up-to-date applicable E.I.A. Studies:
 Paskov Mine (for 2011 – 2020)
 Karviná Mine – ČSA site (for 2011 – 2016)

Our business

In 2010, OKD sold a total of 11.515 million
tons of coal, approximately five percent more
than in 2009. In connection with the price
rise on the world market, revenues from coal
sales increased more than 25 percent
year-on-year to CZK 33.18 billion.
2010

Total coal sale in tons
Total coal sale
in ‘000 CZK

2009

Coking coal

Thermal coal

Coking coal

Thermal coal

6,037,299

5,477,941

5,999,105

4,939,502

23,103,968

10,077,808

15,425,261

11,000,194

Almost one half of the coal quantity was designated for the Czech market, while other produced
coal quantities were sold to neighbouring countries (Slovakia, Austria, Poland).
In 2010, the largest coking coal customers were U. S. Steel Košice, ArcelorMittal and Importkohle;
thermal coal was particularly sold to Dalkia, Novscom, Verbund and ČEZ.

MARKET SITUATION REPORT
OKD expects to sell 11.3 million tons of coal in 2011. Considering the shortage of coking coal and
the current rising price on the global market, OKD plans to conclude contracts for its whole mining
output according to the Japanese Fiscal Year term by the end of March 2011. Thermal coal is
completely sold out for 2011.
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Coal sale summary (without sludge) in tons in 2010
Domestic market

Export

Coking coal

2,266,252

3,771,047

Thermal coal

2,803,237

2,674,704

427,052

1,343,361

26,343

37,995

1,540,088

1,289,435

809,754

3,913

Domestic market

Export

Revenues from coking coal

8,635,466

14,468,502

Revenues from thermal coal

4,934,438

5,143,370

Revenues from goods (coal and coke)

3,988,730

6,096,795

375,060

325

512

0

289,316

0

3,608,636

0

21,832,158

25,708,992

Of this:
Thermal coal mix, washed
Thermal coal sized, washed
Thermal coal dust
Middlings

11.3

mn tons

OKD revenues in ‘000 CZK in 2010

Revenues from services
Subsidies
Revenues from derivatives
Other, incl. revenues from sludge
Total revenues from ordinary activities
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Expected 2011 sales:
11.3 million tons of coal

The concept of corporate social responsibility (CSR) and
sustainable development forms an integral part of the OKD
business strategy. It applies to all areas – corporate culture,
people’s life quality in the region, work safety and work areas,
the environment and relations with municipalities, the nonprofit
sector, partners and customers.
The scope of socially responsible activities and projects has widened to such a degree that
it has exceeded the scope of the standard Annual Report. Therefore, this year, for the ﬁrst
time, OKD is publishing a comprehensive annual overview of its CSR activities and projects.
This separate report, which covers the year of 2010, is descriptive and provides summary
information on major activities of the business in this ﬁeld. OKD has decided to continue
with the publishing of such a report on an annual basis, along with the regular Annual Report
publication.

Our environment

Our community

Our people

Corporate Governance

The OKD strategy in the area of corporate social responsibility
is based on the following four fundamental pillars:
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate social responsibility

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
In conducting its business, OKD follows the Corporate
Governance principles, which correspond to internal
best practices, whether with respect to the relationship
with its shareholders, business partners and customers,
or internal business processes. The keynotes followed
by the OKD in its business activities are responsibility,
prosperity, stability and progressiveness.

STRUCTURE OF THE BODIES
The General Meeting is the supreme body of the company.
The OKD General Meeting competencies are exercised
by the sole shareholder. The Board of Directors of NWR,
the sole shareholder of OKD, had 8 meetings in 2010 and
adopted the resolutions, as set out in the Chapter: Shares
and shareholders. The Board of Directors of NWR adopts
resolutions upon recommendation of the corporate
committees established at the NWR level. More
information on the parent company and its business
in 2010 can be found at http://www.newworldresources.
eu/nwr/annualreportandaccounts2010.
The Board of Directors is a statutory body which manages
the company and acts on its behalf. The Board of Directors
of OKD has 7 members elected by the General Meeting
for a three-year period. Three members of the Board
of Directors are also Executive Ofﬁcers. In 2010, the Board
of Directors had 4 meetings and adopted 2 resolutions
through the procedure outside the meeting.

General Meeting
Supervisory
Board
Audit
Committee

Board of Directors

Management
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The Supervisory Body is an inspection body
of the company. It supervises the exercise
of competencies of the Board of Directors
and performance of the company’s
business activities. The Supervisory Board
has 6 members, of whom 4 are elected
by the General Meeting and 2 are elected
by employees. The term of Supervisory
Board member ofﬁce is ﬁve years. In 2010,
the Supervisory Board had 4 meetings and
adopted 1 resolution through the procedure
outside the meeting.
The Audit Committee is an inspection body
of the company, whose competency is required
by law. The OKD Audit Committee consists
of 5 members appointed by the General
Meeting. The term of the Audit Committee
member ofﬁce is ﬁve years. In 2010, the Audit
Committee had 5 meetings and adopted
1 resolution through the procedure outside
the meeting.
In November 2010, the Board of Directors
of OKD established the Financial and
IT Commission (FITC). The FITC purpose is
to advise the Board of Directors in reviewing
investment opportunities and in making
signiﬁcant ﬁnancial and IT decisions, and
to recommend and coordinate procedures
in these areas.

OKD, whose core business is the extraction
of minerals, i.e., mining activity and an activity
performed in a mining manner pursuant
to the authorization issued by the District
Mining Authority, must comply with a number
of obligations, as required by the Czech Mining
Act. Such obligations do not always follow
directly for the company, but for its employees
at the relevant management levels. The scope
of obligations usually has the following main
contents:
 principles of protection and exploitation
of mineral resources,
 requirement for the economical exploitation
of mineral deposits,
 occupational health and safety and
operational safety,
 mining technology principles,
 required environmental protection.
The basic corporate documents governing
the OKD business are the Articles
of Association, Statutes and Rules of Procedure
of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board,
Audit Committee and FITC.
Other internal management policies comprise
the CEO directives governing the business
activities within the individual departments
and business units of the company.
As of 31 December 2010, OKD kept 61 CEO
Directives in its ﬁles.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CORPORATE DOCUMENTS

Corporate social responsibility

In connection with the parent company entry into capital
markets, the company adopted further principles and
standards arising from the best legal practices of publicly
traded companies in the countries where NWR is quoted.
Such principles and standards comprise:

of 6 received complaints, the reported occurrence was
conﬁrmed as actual and corrective actions were taken.
A total of 10 complaints were not conﬁrmed as actual
and 3 complaints were found not to relate to the Code
of Ethics.

Policy Statements for Divisions
Policy Statements for the Divisions of New World
Resources B.V. (hereinafter referred to as NWR) were
adopted by the Board of Directors of OKD in March 2008.
Such Policy Statements, along with the advisory role
of the Real Estate Committee and certain acts regarding
the interactions between and among the Divisions and
approved by the Board of Directors, are to ensure that
the management of Divisions and real estate is performed
in compliance with the best interests of NWR as a whole
and all its shareholders and stakeholders.

Share Trading Rules
In May 2008, the Board of Directors of OKD adopted
the NWR Share Trading Rules, which set the principles
for trading in, and concluding transactions with,
securities (= direct and indirect sale or purchase) for both
the executive and non-executive directors and other
employees of the NWR subsidiary companies who have
access to information on the company's development
and business.

Code of Ethics
In August 2008, the Board of Directors of OKD approved
an amended version of the OKD Code of Ethics. Its rules
are based on the document titled “Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct” of NWR, adopted in October 2007.
The Code of Ethics is a set of basic values and approaches
to business followed by OKD in performing its business
activities. OKD considers maintaining the goodwill and
trust of all its stakeholders as one of its most important
tasks. The company’s compliance with the Code of Ethics
represents its moral commitment regulating its behaviour
and conduct towards its employees, co-workers, business
partners, governmental authorities and the public. Such
rules are binding upon the employees of OKD and its
subsidiary companies. In dealing with complaints raised
by persons outside OKD, OKD’s commitments towards its
employees apply.
Complaints are received through the anonymous
whistleblower line boxes installed at the OKD mines
and headquarters. If a complainant desires so, his or
her anonymity is guaranteed. Complaints are primarily
handled by the Security Manager and Company
Secretary, and if needed, by a Committee, including
the Chief Human Resources Ofﬁcer and a representative
of the department or BU, as appointed by the relevant
Chief Ofﬁcer or General Manager respectively.
In 2010, a total of 19 complaints were received
through the whistleblowing line, in regard to which
12 complainants remained anonymous. In the case
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Financial policy principles
The Directive on ﬁnancial policy principles is a set
of rules regulating all ﬁnancial transactions performed
within OKD. Such principles were updated and extended
in connection with the rules and procedures deﬁned
in the NWR document titled “Group Treasury Policy”,
approved by the Board of Directors of NWR in January
2009. All the activities associated with the ﬁnancial
management are coordinated in cooperation with NWR
Treasury. NWR Treasury works as the NWR Group Share
Service Centre, centralizes the Group activities regarding
funds and ﬁnancial risks, and upon agreement, it provides
ﬁnancial and consulting services in the ﬁnancial area.
Through NWR Treasury, foreign exchange and interest
risks are managed and administered and currency
conversions of funds are made.

RISK MANAGEMENT
OKD identiﬁes and deals with potential risks related
to its business in safety, operational, ﬁnancial, human
resources, legal and commercial areas. It sets and
introduces procedures to mitigate such risks. Each area
is handled under the auspices of an authorized member
of the company management, who regularly reviews and
assesses risks and actions taken to mitigate such risks,
and consequently processes the up-to-date status to be
discussed by the company management team.

Corporate social responsibility

OUR PEOPLE

Work safety is OKD's top priority. Therefore,
in 2008, OKD announced the SAFETY 2010
Programme focused on the purchase of stateof-the-art personal protective and technical
equipment for miners. The company has
invested more than half a billion Czech
koruna within this Programme. Another part
of the Programme included human resources
work in which the company managed to prevent
hazardous conditions and achieve higher work
and operational safety standards through
health and safety measures, regular training
sessions, education, personal contacts,
noticeboard communication and the intensive
presentation of safety issues in the Horník
(The Miner) weekly. In respect to safety issues,
the company also focused on staff motivation.
Thanks to the investments in personal
protective and technical equipment for miners
within the SAFETY 2010 Programme and
intensive work with people in the occupational
safety area, the number of injuries and the Lost
Time Injury Frequency Rate indicator are
decreasing in regard to the OKD mines.
In 2010, the number of injuries that occurred
in OKD decreased by 22% from the previous
year, (i.e. from 346 in 2009 to 271 in 2010).
The Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate, the most
instructive indicator for the evolution of work
safety, which expresses the number of work
injuries that cause an incapacity to work
per million hours worked, decreased from
11.29 in 2009 to 8.61 in 2010. The data
also includes contractors' employees.

The PERSPective 2015 Programme, which
deﬁnes, among other things, the efforts made
to involve the employees in the continuous
health and safety improvement process
in the workplace, is targeting a Lost Time
Injury Frequency Rate of 5 by 2015, and OKD
stands ready to undertake whatever measures
are necessary to hit this target.
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WORK SAFETY –
SAFETY 2010 PROGRAMME
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Summary of purchased protective and technical equipment
Since the Programme start

2010

Work boots

38,963

17,487

Reﬂective T-shirts

60,092

31,906

111,384

52,173

Coveralls

57,283

32,241

Safety helmets

15,197

5,678

Personal lamps

15,383

7,363

823

228

15,000

2,000

Reﬂective shirts

Indication and detection devices
Self-rescuers

In implementing the SAFETY 2010 Programme,
OKD invested more than half a billion Czech koruna
in the purchase of the most modern protective and
technical equipment for the employees in its mines.
The deliveries started in 2008, and in 2010 the equipment
acquisition was completed. The purchased items
represent top-quality products that mines in the most
advanced countries in the world are also equipped with.

Evolution of Number
of Injuries and Lost
Time Injury Frequency
Rate – from 2006 to 2010

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

Number of injuries

609

519

416

346

271

16.59

15.33

12.49

11.29

8.61

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate
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As part of the investment made in the OKD mines, work
boots, T-shirts and coveralls with reﬂective stripes, shirts
and safety helmets with eye shields were newly provided.
The technical equipment supplies saw the employees
provided with new T 1005.1-model personal lamps.
The mine workers also received Drager X-am indication
and detection devices and OXY K 50 S self-rescuers.
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Since the Programme start

2010

501,032,714

153,156,647

Brief description of the “Safety” competition and its results
OKD is aware that improving safety standards
in the workplace is a key factor in motivating personnel.
Therefore in 2010, OKD announced a competition
to motivate all individual workers, where any employee
of OKD and any contractor employee who worked without
suffering an injury from 1 April 2010 to 31 December
2010 obtained the chance to win the main prize –
a Škoda Fabia car. Over 15,000 employees were included
in the draw for the prize. In addition, each individual mine
was entered into a draw for other prizes, such as holiday
trips worth CZK 50,000. The main prize in the OKD Safety
competition was won by Petr Klečatský, an U/G electrician
at the ČSM Mine.
Brief description of the “Safe Workplace” competition
and its results
On 1 July 2010, OKD announced the “Safe Workplace”
motivation programme and competition aimed
at maintaining good order in work areas, repairing
deﬁciencies and eliminating risks. The mine teams
were regularly (at least two times per month) assessed
and checked by company committees in the presence
of the Company Safety Inspectors. They examined
the level of orderliness in workplaces and access ways,
the working management of the mine, ventilation and
efforts to maintain mechanical and electrical equipment
in a perfect condition. The best longwall crews received
CZK 50,000, the best development crews received
CZK 20,000 (also CZK 15,000 and CZK 10,000 was
awarded for the second and third place, respectively),
and the set-up and recovery crews were awarded
CZK 30,000. The assessment was made for the third
and fourth quarters of 2010.

THE NUMBER
OF INJURIES DECREASED
BY 22% IN 2010.

Apart from the above-mentioned programmes, OKD
took other measures to improve the safety standards
in its mines in 2010. The most important measures were
as follows:
 activities to prevent any emergency in cooperation
with OKD, HBZS, a.s., providing mine rescue services,
including inspections within the mines;
 participation in preventive Emergency Commissions
to solve speciﬁc safety situations at individual mines;
 Phase 3 of vitamization for selected mine workers;
 purchases and installations of steel walkway grates;
 the designation of September 2010 as the “Safety
Month”;
 measurement and evaluation of localised muscle
loads and work postures faced by mine workers, job
categorization;
 measures to protect employees’ eyesight;
 announcement of monthly safety slogans;
 test operation at the Karviná Mine of a contactless
monitoring system, provided by two manufacturers,
of workers in work areas classiﬁed as subject
to the third degree of danger from mine tremors;
 signiﬁcant improvement of microclimatic conditions
in mine work areas, particularly at the ČSM Mine, with
the application of a central air conditioning system,
and reduction of dust levels in the work areas provided
with POP 2010 equipment.
Even though the key safety indicators showed positive
values for 2010 and demonstrated that the implemented
measures made sense in an unambiguous pursuit
in the right direction, OKD is aware that following
the extraordinary investments already made, it is
necessary to continue with risk monitoring so
as to eliminate risks through more efﬁcient health and
safety measures.
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For 2011, the key targets for improving safety
standards and work conditions are as follows:
 completing the installation of the remaining
VFSK5 signal and communication equipment
and checking system functionality;
 implementing the system to monitor
people’s movement in longwall areas
classiﬁed as subject to the third degree
of danger from mine tremors, including
coordination of the system application and
operational checking;
 testing new personal protective equipment
(helmets with integrated eye shields, gloves,
coveralls…);
 inspecting the progress of scheduled
non-emergency actions undertaken
by rescue teams;
 providing cooperation in the shooting
of ﬁlms and shots concerning safety issues;
 undertaking technical measures to improve
safety for employees walking through mines
(steel walkway grating, signage on escape
routes with lower visibility levels…);
 further reduction of dust levels and
improvement of microclimatic conditions
in mine work areas (central air-conditioning
system, sectional air-conditioning systems);

EMPLOYEES AND THE NEED
TO TAKE CARE OF THEM
OKD is the largest employer in the
Moravian-Silesian Region. In 2010, on
average it directly employed 13,693 of its own
employees and 3,679 contractor employees.
OKD is aware that its qualiﬁed personnel
are its most valuable asset. This principle
is followed by the company in its approach
to its employees, while it is embedded in OKD's
human resources policy as a whole.
Working in the mines is physically and mentally
demanding, and not just anybody is capable
of it. OKD knows it should appreciate those
employees who can perform such work. Thus,
for a long time now, the average monthly pay
in OKD has been signiﬁcantly higher than
the regional and national salary averages.
In 2010, OKD's overall average monthly pay
reached CZK 32,878, while the average pay
of blue-collar personnel in the mines reached
CZK 32,583.
Pursuant to the Collective Agreement, signed
by the company management and the trade
unions for 2010 – 2012, the employees are
entitled to receive a number of above-standard
beneﬁts.

Employees
Average number of all employees:
Of those, the number of employees in mining BUs:

12,309

The number of employees in non-mining BUs:

1,384

Of the total number of employees, blue-collar workers in the mines:

9,451

Blue-collar workers on the surface:

2,552

White-collar workers:

1,690

Average number of contractor employees:
Of those, the number of employees in mining BUs:
The number of employees in non-mining BUs:

38

13,693

2010 Annual Report of OKD

3,679
3,400
279

13,693

The average number of all
employees in 2010 was 13,693

Remuneration and other benefits
Benefits
The Collective Agreement describes voluntary
beneﬁts that the company undertook to provide
to its employees.
In 2010, OKD paid its employees total beneﬁts
of CZK 1.15 billion, which represented
CZK 83,958 per employee. Of this, approximately
CZK 300 million represented expenditure
required by law, and CZK 850 million was paid
over by the company beyond the framework
of statutory beneﬁts.

The main benefits provided to OKD employees
comprise:
 contributions to supplementary pension
insurance schemes (where the maximum
contribution amounts to CZK 550 per month);
 miner's loyalty bonus (based on
Act No. 62/1983 Coll. and provided once
a year to employees that perform mining
as part of mining operations);
 retention bonus (the right to receive
the retention bonus is established if
a worker's employment with OKD has
lasted for a continuous period of ﬁve years;
the retention bonus is paid once a year);
 holiday bonus (equal to 10 times the average
daily earnings of the employee);
 Christmas bonus (equal to 12 times
the average daily earnings of the employee);
 contribution to leisure-time activities
(CZK 600 per employee);
 meal allowance (the meal allowance
is provided through the reduced prices
of canteen meals or canteen vouchers);
 soups and mine snacks free of charge;
 allowances for curative stays required
by employees’ children (OKD covers up
to 70% of summer holiday curative stay costs,
up to a maximum of CZK 2,200 per child, and
up to 70% of winter curative stay costs, up
to a maximum of CZK 1,000 per child);
 allowance for transport to work by dedicated
transport links;
 support for further education;
 one extra week of holiday on top
of the statutory minimum (i.e. a total
of 5 weeks of holiday) for all employees;
 two extra weeks of holiday on top
of the statutory minimum (i.e. a total
of 6 weeks of holiday) for employees that work
underground;
 possibility of the allocation of a ﬂat;
 contribution to life insurance (the employer’s
monthly contribution amounts to no less
than CZK 300; it is possible for the employer
to provide an extra contribution amounting
to a maximum of CZK 24,000 per year);
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 employee vouchers (the initial vouchers
amount to CZK 2,400 per year; if
the employee has worked 5 years,
the voucher amount increases);
 recuperation stays and outpatient
rehabilitation care (the recuperation stays
and outpatient rehabilitation care are
designated for employees whose permanent
work placement is underground).

includes state-of-the-art PC equipment and
an interactive SMART board.

Training, education scholarships

Qualification courses
Acquisition or extension of qualiﬁcations
for professions according to applicable
work catalogues, designated for blue-collar
employees working in the mines.

Central Training Centre
By opening the Central Training Centre
on the premises of Darkov Mine, OKD passed
a major milestone in improving the efﬁciency
of its training system and the qualiﬁcations
and competencies of its employees. The centre
boasts a total capacity of 298 training places
in 12 training rooms. Three of the rooms,
which provide 70 places, are equipped with
computers. Activities of the Central Training
Centre commenced in 2009. The activities went
into full, stable operation in 2010, providing
training sessions to the employees of individual
BUs, as well as contractor employees.
All the training rooms are equipped with
state-of-the-art audio-visual devices –
interactive SMART boards connected with
a projector and a computer. In the entrance
area, there is a plasma screen that clearly
displays the training schedules in the training
rooms and internal information regarding
the operations, occupational safety and
planned activities of the company.
Training sessions in a detached centre
at the Paskov Mine are provided in
5 training rooms with a total capacity of
100 training places. One training room

Courses and training in 2010
Induction training
This training comprises theoretical and
practical sessions attended by all new
employees.

Retraining courses
Courses organized in cooperation with
Employment Ofﬁces and supported through
subsidies from the state budget. OKD holds an
accreditation from the Ministry of Education,
Youth and Sport to carry out personnel
retraining courses, namely “Mining Activity
in Underground Mines” and “Preparation Plant
Operator“.
Periodical occupational health and safety training
Within the periodical training of the company’s
own employees and contractor employees,
knowledge of regulations related to work safety
and other areas are refreshed and upgraded.
Special periodical training
At the Central Training Centre, external trainers
conduct special training sessions at levels
of high expertise. Such training sessions
include, for example, training sessions
for electricians, one-man power saw operators
and brush-cutter operators, motor truck drivers
and users, employees that conduct work
at highly elevated levels, and special vehicle
drivers.

THE CENTRAL TRAINING CENTRE ASSISTS
IN ACHIEVING EFFICIENT WORKFORCE
QUALIFICATION IMPROVEMENTS.
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Psycho-technical examinations
Employees whose work is associated with
high levels of mental stress are subjected
to psychological tests in various cycles
based on their profession. Psycho-technical
examinations are carried out by psychologists
at Central Training Centre Darkov and
Central Training Centre Paskov, as required
by the company.

A total of 20,605 employees of OKD and
contractors attended a training or educational
course. The individual training types and
the numbers of trainees are speciﬁed
in the following table.
The implementation of training sessions and
courses at the company’s own Central Training
Centres brought OKD total savings of more than
CZK 1 million in 2010. On one hand, savings
were achieved due to the lower costs of training
conducted by internal trainers at the company’s
own training facilities, and on the other hand,
savings were achieved due to revenues received
from contractors whose employees were sent
to OKD’s professional courses.

Number of trained employees
OKD
Training type

CTC

ETC

External Trainers

Contractors

Total

Induction training

834

0

0

1,575

2,409

Qualiﬁcation courses

459

6

0

153

618

Retraining courses

211

0

0

0

211

Periodical safety training

5,513

1

0

1,045

6,559

Special periodical training

3,009

1,038

2,431

539

7,017

581

326

436

748

2,091

1,451

0

0

249

1,700

12,058

1,371

2,867

4,309

20,605

Professional courses and
training
Psycho-technical
examination
Total

Explanatory Notes: CTC – Central Training Centre, ETC – External Training Centre
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Professional courses and training
OKD organizes professional courses and
training for its employees and contractor
employees to acquire qualiﬁcations and
certiﬁcates for professions and jobs where
the conditions for the performance of the work
are set by law or company policies. Such
courses are designated, for example, for mine
foremen, longwall set operators, development
set operators, drilling supervisors, sorting
and loading machinery operators, jumbo drill
operators, mine locomotive drivers, and so on.

Corporate social responsibility

Savings made on training employees at OKD’s own training centre instead
of at external training facilities
(in CZK)
Costs of professional courses at external training centres would have
amounted to

896,870

Costs of trainers that taught professional courses at the Central Training Centre
amounted to

431,290

Difference = savings of

465,580

Revenues paid to the Central Training Centre by contractors for the participation
of their employees in training courses at the Central Training Centre

669,750

Total beneﬁt to OKD

Further education of OKD’s own employees
OKD is aware that skilled and educated people
represent the key to its future prospects.
The company therefore supports the upgrading
of skills and education of its existing
employees. At the Mining University in Ostrava,
38 employees of the company studied Mine
Engineering, Electrical Engineering and
Informatics.
In the area of secondary education, OKD has
been cooperating with the Secondary Industrial
School in Karviná, where 43 employees upgraded
their qualiﬁcations, taking post-secondary
studies in Mining and Mining Geology.
Scholarships
Through the OKD Academy, the company
supports secondary school students
of engineering and electrical engineering and
university students of mining, geology, electrical
engineering and related ﬁelds. Apart from paying
a monthly stipend, amounting to CZK 2,000
for secondary school students, and CZK 4,000
for university students, the company provides
students with professional traineeships in its
ﬁelds of work, as well as with consultations
that assist with the development of their
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1,135,330

seminar, bachelor’s or master’s papers. After
ﬁnishing their school studies, the students
are provided with the OKD job they were
previously guaranteed by the company. In 2010,
7 students studied at the Mining University,
of whom 2 studied at the Faculty of Mining and
Geology, 2 studied at the Faculty of Engineering,
3 studied at the Faculty of Electrotechnics
and Informatics, and one attended the Faculty
of Construction. In 2010, OKD paid the students
total scholarship sums of CZK 135,000.
In 2008, a Cooperation Agreement was
concluded between OKD and the Secondary
School of Engineering and Services in Karviná,
thanks to which certain ﬁelds of mining
studies were revived. In late 2010, 73 students
were preparing at the school for the positions
of U/G mechanic and U/G electrician. During
their studies, the students are supported with
a monthly stipend of CZK 1,000, and they are
given the opportunity to perform summer jobs
and carry out practical training in surface
work operations of OKD. After they ﬁnish their
studies at the school, the students are provided
with their guaranteed job in OKD. In 2010, OKD
paid the mining apprentices total scholarship
sums of CZK 507,000.

Corporate social responsibility

Case Study:
Tomáš Siuda decided to pursue the opportunity to take
a U/G mechanic apprenticeship at the Secondary School
of Engineering and Services.
“The biggest attraction for me was the job security that
was available upon the completion of my studies. In our
region, it is not easy to ﬁnd a job. In OKD, I am sure I will
work with state-of-the-art machinery for a signiﬁcant
company and for good pay,” says Siuda, who comes from
a traditional mining family. He is most excited about
the practical training in surface work operations of OKD.
“Our colleagues at the mine do not treat us like children,
but like men,” he adds. For the time being, the mining
students are not invited to take part in live underground
operations. Their practical training is carried out
on the surface as they will not start making their way
down mining shafts until after they have ﬁnished their
studies.
He is not afraid of underground work. “The area of work
safety has changed a lot. The measures are very strict
and compliance is strictly checked. I believe in the safety
measures,” says the student. The decreasing number
of injuries that occur in OKD’s mines conﬁrms the merit
of Siuda’s words.
Addressing other people that are interested
in the studies, Siuda adds: “I recommend these studies
to all boys who are interested in modern machines and
want to enjoy interesting experiences in a super team.
The most important thing is when one looks to the future.
It is possible to see that you can obtain job security
in a modern company with state-of-the-art equipment
for good pay.”
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In late 2010, a similar Cooperation Agreement was
ﬁnalized with the Secondary School in Havířov-Šumbark.
Starting with the school year of 2011/2012, future U/G
electricians and U/G mechanics will start to prepare
for their work in OKD, with the same level of backing that
OKD provides under the other agreements.

Corporate social responsibility

OUR COMMUNITY
SPONSORING
Sponsor support for sporting, cultural,
educational and mining traditions plays an
important role among the socially responsible
activities of OKD.
For a long time already, OKD has been
a general partner of the top-league handball
club HC Baník OKD Karviná, who won
the championship for the twelfth time in 2010.
Since 2008, OKD has also been the general
partner of second-league football club
MFK OKD Karviná. In both clubs, the company
also supports systematic work with children
and youth.
OKD also provides support to culture. It is
the main partner of the international music
festival Colours of Ostrava, whose importance
and uniqueness is known not only within
the Moravian- Silesian Region, but also
throughout the Czech Republic. The company
also ﬁnancially supports the prestigious
Summer Shakespeare Festival.
In 2010, the ﬁnancial value of OKD’s sponsor
support for selected projects exceeded
CZK 34.4 million.

OKD FOUNDATION
The OKD Foundation was established
in 2008. In its three years of existence since,
it has ranked among the respected leaders
of the nonproﬁt sector in the Czech Republic.
It aims to support and develop non-material
values, the environment, education, sport and
cultural activities, as well as social and health
services.
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OKD decided to donate to the OKD Foundation
1% of its gross proﬁt every year. Apart from OKD
and its parent company NWR, the major donors
to the OKD Foundation include other related
companies (Advanced World Transport a.s.,
OKK Koksovny, a.s., Green Gas DPB, a.s. and
RPG Real Estate Group).
Through its four programmes (For Health,
For Joy, For the Future, For Europe) and its
3 funds established in 2009 (Crisis Fund,
Operational Fund, Development Fund), the OKD
Foundation has since its inception supported
a total of 800 projects with the distribution
of over CZK 123 million. In 2010, the OKD
Foundation supported 187 projects of nonproﬁt
organizations with an amount of almost
CZK 24 million.
The OKD Foundation is a signiﬁcant source
of ﬁnancial support for the development of, and
a higher quality of life in, the Moravian-Silesian
Region. Some 81% of the projects it supported
in 2010, were implemented in the region.
In 2010, OKD supported the OKD Foundation’s
activities with an amount of almost
CZK 20 million.
Over the three years of the OKD Foundation’s
existence, the total amount of ﬁnancial
support provided to publicly beneﬁcial
organizations and projects has climbed
to more than CZK 270 million, wherein NWR
and OKD supported the Foundation’s activities
with the amounts of CZK 39.6 million and
CZK 222 million, respectively. The ﬁnancial
support provided by these two dominant
donors represents 97% of all the ﬁnancial
means available to the OKD Foundation.

For the evaluation of its activities and reporting,
the OKD Foundation uses the internationally recognized
methodology of the London Benchmarking Group (LBG),
which allows the OKD Foundation to precisely deﬁne
the costs of its donor activities and determine their
impact. The application of the LBG methodology enables
the Foundation to use the “Responsible Company”
brand and logo, secure membership in the international
network of LBG International and source detailed data
for the generation of CSR Reports.
Case Study:
Karviná-based TyﬂoCentre CR offers individual transport
to handicapped people.
Thanks to support provided by the OKD Foundation,
the publicly beneﬁcial company TyﬂoCentre CR started
to offer handicapped people individual transport.
The organization, which originally took care of visually
impaired people, gradually extended its activities to help
also deaf and hard-of-hearing people, people with
mobility disabilities and persons in crisis, such as those
threatened by long-term unemployment. At present,
the organization works with 300 clients, including former
miners.
The new service provides handicapped people with
transport in a specially adapted car as per their needs
and interests at a convenient price. The project was
supported by the OKD Foundation, which provided a grant
of CZK 150,000 and helped the organization to purchase
a specially adapted car in which it is possible to transport
a wheelchair.

IN THE THREE YEARS OF ITS EXISTENCE,
THE FOUNDATION OBTAINED MORE THAN
CZK 270 MILLION FOR PUBLICLY BENEFICIAL PROJECTS.
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“The car capacity is fully utilized and the interest
in individual transport is growing. Its purpose is
to make life easier for disabled people. The OKD
Foundation support was important to us, not
only in material terms. The OKD Foundation also
showed us that it is not indifferent to the quality
of handicapped people’s lives. This encouraged
us in further work,” speciﬁed David Jelínek, Director
of TyﬂoCentre.

ST. BARBORA CIVIC ASSOCIATION
OKD is a founding member of the St. Barbora Civic
Association, which was established in 2004 and
which aims to support children who have lost
one parent due to consequences of a work injury.
In 2010, the St. Barbora Civic Association had
87 children registered with it. However, the number
of registered children is gradually falling in line
with investments made with a view to improving
work safety standards, and thus achieving a lower
number of occupational injuries.
The St. Barbora Civic Association aims to prevent
any discrimination against orphaned children
in the areas of education, the development of their
talents and leisure-time activities that could
potentially be caused by a lack of money. Thanks
to contributions, children can undertake full studies
(the Association pays for the children’s tuition,
school supplies, accommodation costs incurred
during studies, nursery school fees, attendance
at interest groups and hobby clubs, as well as fees
related to other educational activities, such
as driving school courses and retraining), have
health needs taken care of thanks to curative stays
(schools in nature, skiing lessons) and develop many
other activities secured by the Association for them.
The volume of funds directed to the children
is increasing every year. In 2009, the direct
ﬁnancial support and coverage of costs for other
events organized for them reached the amount
of CZK 2.5 million, while in 2010, such support
amounted to more than CZK 2.8 million. In 2010,
OKD supported the St. Barbora Civic Association
with the amount of CZK 344,600, while other donors
collected the amount of more than CZK 2.5 million
among themselves.
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LAND RECLAMATION
OKD is fully aware of its responsibilities
related to the environmental impacts of coal
mining and implements projects to mitigate
and eliminate such consequences. The land
reclamation projects are the most visible
manifestation of such efforts. Since 1989,
1,566.5 hectares of land have been reclaimed.
In 2010, land reclamation was performed over
an area of 857.7 hectares. The implementation
of 55 major land reclamation projects was
in progress, (23 technical reclamation
projects and 32 biological reclamation
projects), 9 projects were completed and
8 new projects were launched. A total
of 13 projects were covered by state ﬁnancial
resources channelled through the Ministry
of Finance of the Czech Republic, while
the other projects were ﬁnanced by OKD from
its own funds. The land reclamation costs
amounted to CZK 264.9 million, of which
CZK 147.8 million came from OKD’s own funds,
and CZK 117.1 million from the state budget
via the Ministry of Finance. In 2010, the costs
required to level subsidence amounted
to CZK 233.6 million, a sum which was fully
covered from OKD’s own funds.
Case Study: Lipiny
Work at this site was initiated through
the emergency removal of an overburden
in 1985, while the technical reclamation was
completedback in 2004.
There were discussions on the land use,
accompanied by modiﬁcations to the zoning
plan. The original intention to reclaim and
change the area into arable land was initially

replaced with an afforestation plan. Finally,
the municipal authority decided to pursue
a solution envisaging a rugged terrain modelled
with the possibility of using the area for a golf
or motocross course. The intention to build
a new golf resort in Lipiny was ﬁnally decided
upon in late 2007. Actual work began in 2009
with completion planned for 2011.
Lipiny is an example of cooperation between
the mining company and the public – the golf
course will be built by OKD itself. The City
of Karviná plans to build new trails for inline
skaters and cyclists, which Lipiny will
interconnect with the Darkov spa area, Darkov
'Sea' and the castle park in Fryštát. A large
area designated for relaxation and leisure-time
activities will thus be established southwest
of the City of Karviná.
The ambitious plan does not come free. Phase
1, completed in 2006, required CZK 63 million.
The construction of the golf course, including
its background facilities (a golf club,
administrative building, car park) will call
for other funds. OKD estimates the total
golf course construction costs will amount
to CZK 188 million, and the company has
managed to obtain almost one third of such
funds from the Moravian-Silesian Regional
Programme. Players will be able to test
the ﬁrst 9 golf holes in the summer of 2011,
and in the following years it will be possible
to extend the golf course with an additional
9 holes.
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Land reclamation costs (1989 – 2010)

(mn CZK)

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

1998

1999

140.0

185.0

136.6

155.4

125.1

162.7

204.3

262.7

219.7

214.2

146.0

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

155.9

148.7

122.1

78.3

46.9

37.7

66.4

92.7

70.7

69.8

147.8

WASTE MANAGEMENT

WATER MANAGEMENT

OKD produces dozens of waste types. All
the waste management is documented
and complies with the Waste Act and
Act No. 157/2009 Coll., on mining waste,
including the implementing regulations. Waste
is provably handed over to authorized persons
for safe transport, storage, dumping, recycling
or energy recover.

Hard coal underground mining consumes
substantial water quantities. OKD discharges
several water types to the surrounding
environment and water streams, (waste
water, sewage and mine water), and is aware
of related environmental risks. The company
therefore ensures that all the legal regulations
applicable to the water utilization, recycling
and discharge into the surrounding ecosystems
are complied with.

The waste management system aims
at reducing waste production and safe
handling. The waste volume is decreasing
every year. Whereas in 2008, OKD produced
61,769 tons of waste, in 2009 and 2010, OKD
produced 38,184 tons and 38,000 tons of waste
respectively. The hazardous waste volume is
also decreasing: whereas in 2008, the company
produced 558 tons of hazardous waste, in 2009
and 2010, OKD produced 460 tons and 450 tons
of hazardous waste respectively.
Mining spoils, i.e., by-products of mining,
are utilized for ground shaping during land
reclamation, as well as for road building.
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Before any water is discharged into
watercourses, emphasis is laid upon potential
water recycling and further water utilization,
and possibly, upon adequate water treatment.
However, mine water is not only a problematic
factor for the environment. Mine water is also
used for medicinal purposes in the Darkov
and Klimkovice spas. In the past, Darkov’s
medicated salt was produced from such water.
In the OKD mines, measures are taken to utilize
water in a more efﬁcient manner. The company
gradually installs air conditioning units with
closed water systems, which reduce the service
water offtake for the mines thanks to recycling.
The waste water treatment technology
in the coal preparation plant ranks among other
measures contributing to the more efﬁcient
water utilization.
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION
Consumption of electrical and thermal energy
by OKD operations reaches relatively stable
values associated primarily with the objective
facts of the production. In the energy
consumption area, OKD takes a number
of measures to make savings, including,
for example, the optimization of, and reduction
of losses in, the compressed air network

As of 21 June 2010, NWR Energy, a.s. was sold
by the NWR Group to the Dalkia Group, and
as of 24 June 2010, the company was renamed
Dalkia Industry, a.s. This company provides
electricity supplies and distribution, heat, hot
water and compressed air production for coal
mining in OKD mines.

Consumption of key energy commodities

Electricity
Heat
Compressed air

2010

2009

648,885 MWh

634,108 MWh

1,051,445 GJ

924,844 GJ

1,753,659 thousand m³

1,959,819 thousand m³
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underground and the minimization of applied
compressed-air consumption entities.

ASSETS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

FINANCIAL RESULTS
For the accounting period of 1 January 2010
to 31 December 2010, the company generated
proﬁt before tax of CZK 7,104.4 million. Proﬁt
after tax amounted to CZK 6,323.1 million.
Operating proﬁt reached CZK 7,889.7 million.
Major items forming the operating proﬁt were
revenues from own products and services and
revenues from goods sold. In 2010, the revenues
from own products and services amounted
to CZK 33,992.8 million and the revenues from
goods sold amounted to CZK 10,086 million.
Financial operations resulted in a loss
of CZK −677.7 million. The loss was mainly
due to: expenses for revaluation of securities
and derivatives of CZK 266.7 million,
interest expense of CZK 439.9 million,
and in particular, other ﬁnancial expenses
of CZK 815.4 million. The result was
positively inﬂuenced by the interest revenue
of CZK 24.6 million, revenues from short-term
ﬁnancial assets of CZK 3.2 million, revenues
from revaluation of securities and derivatives
of CZK 65.9 million, and in particular, other
ﬁnancial revenues totalling CZK 750.6 million.
Extraordinary activities resulted in a loss
of CZK −107.6 million.

FINANCIAL SITUATION
Net operating cash ﬂow before changes
in working capital was CZK 10,916.2 million
in 2010, of which CZK 3,602.7 million
related to depreciation of ﬁxed assets and
CZK 7,313.5 million comprised proﬁt from
ordinary activities before tax, adjusted
by a change in provisions and adjustments,
proﬁt/loss from the sale of ﬁxed assets,
interest, ﬁnancial derivatives and other noncash transactions.
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Changes in non-cash components
of working capital resulted in an increase
in the operating capital by CZK 2,236.8 million,
of which the change in receivables was
CZK 1,953.5 million and the change
in short-term payables amounted
to CZK 535 million. The change in inventories
by CZK 159.4 million, and the change
in the balance of cash in the special-purpose
reserve bank account (not including ﬁnancial
assets) by CZK 92.4 million had opposite
effects.
Net cash ﬂow before tax and extraordinary
items amounted to CZK 8,679.4 million
in the period under review, being also reduced
by interest paid of CZK 147.3 million and
ﬁnancial derivatives paid of CZK 390.1 million.
Furthermore, it was also inﬂuenced
by returned income tax with a total impact
of CZK 292.1 million on operating cash ﬂow and
interest received of CZK 24.6 million.
Net cash ﬂow relating to investment
activities amounted to –CZK 7,128.7 million,
mostly due to the cash pooling cash amount
of CZK 4,908.9 million and expenses associated
with acquisition of ﬁxed assets amounting
to CZK 2,238.7 million. Revenues from the sale
of ﬁxed assets amounted to CZK 18.9 million.
In 2010, the ﬁnancial balance was particularly
inﬂuenced by:
 early repayment of the syndicated bank
loan totalling CZK 2,361.3 million and
EUR 245.8 million;
 payment of dividends and proﬁt sharing
amounting to CZK 12,802.5 million,
of which the amount of CZK 1,480 million
was paid out of the business result
of the current period of 2009, the amount
of CZK 9,050.8 million was paid out
of retained proﬁt from previous years, and
the amount of CZK 2,271.7 million was paid
out of the share premium;
 drawing the loan from the parent company
in the amount of CZK 1,732 million and
EUR 435 million.

The overall ﬁnancial balance of 2010 ended in a cash
decrease of CZK 9,919.5 million, and the balance
of ﬁnancial assets at the end of 2010 amounted
to CZK 3,071.7 million (this amount does not include
the balances in the special-purpose bank accounts
of reserves / provisions for mining damage compensation,
land reclamation restoration after 1 January 2004).

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

CZK 47.3
mn

Total value of company assets
as of 31 December 2010

As of 31 December 2010, the total value of the company’s
assets amounted to a total of CZK 47,266.4 million.
The ﬁxed assets of CZK 32,362.50 million represent
the most signiﬁcant item. The ﬁxed assets comprise
intangible ﬁxed assets of CZK 156.8 million, tangible
ﬁxed assets of CZK 32,102 million and tangible
ﬁxed assets of CZK 103.7 million. Current assets
amounted to CZK 14,837.6 million, and comprised
inventories of CZK 922 million, long-term receivables
of CZK 297.5 million, short-term receivables
of CZK 10,270.1 million (this amount includes the cash
pooling cash amount of CZK 4,908.9 million) and short-term
ﬁnancial investments of CZK 3,348 million. Accruals and
deferrals recognized in assets amounted to CZK 66.3 million.
On the other side of the balance sheet, equity amounted
to CZK 23,349.9 million, which comprised registered
capital of CZK 8,401 million, capital contributions
of CZK 5,281.8 million, the statutory reserve fund
and other funds from proﬁt of CZK 3,344 million
and the current period proﬁt of CZK 6,323.1 million.
Liabilities amounted to a total of CZK 23,891.2 million
and comprised provisions of CZK 2,891.2 million,
long-term liabilities of CZK 14,621.3 million (of which
CZK 10,892.4 million represented a long-term part
of the intragroup loan from the parent company),
short-term liabilities of CZK 6,378.6 million (of which
CZK 868 million represented a short-term part
of the intragroup loan from the parent company) and bank
loans and overdrafts of CZK 0.2 million. Accruals and
deferrals in liabilities amounted to CZK 25.2 million.
Inventory-taking of all OKD assets was carried out
as appropriate in 2010, with differences ascertained
recognized in the ﬁnancial statements for the period
ended 31 December 2010.
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Assets and financial position

Long-term financial investments
In the course of 2010, the long-term ﬁnancial investments did not change
and amounted to CZK 103.7 million.
Financial highlights

(bl CZK)
2010

2009

Proﬁt before tax

7.104

1.991

Proﬁt after tax

6.323

1.480

Operating proﬁt

7.890

2.675

Net operating cash ﬂow*

10.916

5.800

Total value of OKD’s assets

47.266

50.497

* before tax, change in working capital and extraordinary items
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INVESTMENTS

In order to make mining activities more efﬁcient and improve work safety standards in mining and
the driving of long mine works, OKD has since 2008 implemented the POP 2010 Programme, which
will be succeeded by the PERSPective 2015 Programme in the next few years.
(mn CZK)
2010

2009

4,537

5,855.4

2,421.3

3,672.3

Mine development projects

442.7

698.1

Surface construction projects

340.5

288.1

Equipment deliveries for mine development
projects

197.9

119.2

Equipment deliveries for surface construction
projects

41.9

N/A

Other capital construction expenditures

48.2

127.2

1,044.5

950.5

0

0

Total investments
Investment structure
POP 2010

Machinery and equipment acquired separately
Capital expenditures resulting from closures

(mn CZK)

Of total capital expenditures, the amount
expended to improve occupational health and
safety standards

2010

2009

480.7

484
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POP 2010
Development sets
The development sets are delivered with
equipment designed for combined ventilation,
and haulage from the development face.
The large roadheaders are provided with
bolting rigs.
The roadheaders are provided with an efﬁcient
water spray system, which signiﬁcantly
reduces dust levels and improves the safety
of the development process.
The drilling and development set consists
of a jumbo drill, a loader and haulage
equipment.
The jumbo drills are adapted with the bolting
of the ceilings and sides of the developed
entries, which enables the further extension
of the efﬁcient formation of gateroads in OKD.
Development set operations are monitored
in the surface control rooms.
The year 2010 was another year in which
OKD continued to replace its old equipment
with new, more efﬁcient and safer equipment
for mining and development of gateroads.
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Low-seam longwall set
The Paskov Mine complex comprises mechanized
supports with a spacing of 1.5 m, a height
range of 650–2,005 mm and terminal longwall
sections with a range of 1,070–2,400 mm,
a sliding plow with deﬁned cuttings, an
armoured face conveyor with a width of 800 mm
and a stage loader with a width of 800 mm.
The longwall set is ﬁtted with an electrohydraulic control system and it is able to run
in a fully automatic mode.
The mechanized supports are ﬁtted with
an efﬁcient water spray system, which
signiﬁcantly reduces dust levels and improves
safety standards in the extraction process.
The longwall operations are monitored
in the mine, as well as in the surface control
rooms.
The longwall set is operated at longwall
no. 063 606, and it was commenced
in October 2010.

Assets and financial position

Surface construction projects
Surface construction projects mainly involved
coal preparation plants, particularly at the ČSM
Mine, namely the Line 2 upgrading completion,
consisting in the replacement of washing
jigs with heavy-media cyclones and spiral
separators. Another project was implemented
in the preparation plant at the Darkov Mine
with a view to increasing the reﬂotation
line capacity. Investments were also made
in the water piping system reconstruction and
tourism infrastructure development.
Equipment deliveries for mine development
projects
Equipment deliveries for both the mine
development projects and the surface
construction projects involved deliveries and
the assembly of mechanical and electrical
equipment to ensure the required extraction
capacity, and deliveries to improve work
safety and hygiene – an increase in the air
conditioning system capacity in the Darkov Mine
for the area of Block 9 of the ČSA Mine and the
extension of the existing air conditioning system
in the ČSM Mine.

Equipment deliveries for surface construction
projects
All the mines were provided with deliveries
to modernize and reconstruct mining
equipment, and reconstruct the process
equipment in the coal preparation plants.
Other capital construction expenditures
Within Other capital construction expenditures,
real estate was acquired and designing work
was performed.
Machinery and equipment acquired separately
In the category of machinery and equipment
acquired separately, the company completed
the following projects for active mines:
machinery purchases for longwalls,
equipment purchases for transport systems,
modernization of mining machinery and
equipment, purchases of electrical equipment,
security and pumping equipment, as well
as purchases of computer equipment,
including software. Moreover, the company
purchased equipment to modernize the surface
operations.
Capital expenditures resulting from closures
In 2010, there were no investments resulting
from closures.

REPLACEMENT OF OLD TECHNOLOGY
WITH NEW EQUIPMENT CONTINUED IN 2010.
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Mine development projects
Mine development projects mainly focused
on driving crosscuts and gateroads
at the Karviná, Darkov and ČSM Mines
to provide access to new coal reserves and
in the safety area, on driving a drainage
crosscut in the Darkov Mine.

Assets and financial position

Capital expenditures to improve occupational
health and safety standards
The air conditioning system capacity at Site 2
of the Darkov Mine was increased; replacement
of 6 kV power switches was initiated, and
the mining machinery and equipment were
modernized in all mining BUs. Moreover,
investments were made to modernize
the monorail transport equipment.
Capital expenditures planned for 2011 and
following years
Apart from the new equipment deliveries within
the PERSPective 2015 Programme, the company
will implement capital projects included
in the 2011 Business Plan with a focus on:
Mine development projects, ensuring that new
coal reserves are opened in the active mines
and logistics are improved:
 Darkov Mine – opening of Block 9 in the ČSA
Site, interconnecting the crosscut of Karviná
Mine –Darkov Mine;
 Karviná Mine – opening of Blocks 11 and 10,
opening of Level 12 in the ČSA Site;
 ČSM Mine – opening of Seam 40 in Block
2b, selective mining of thermal coal, ﬁnal
extraction of Block 0 in the Darkov Mine;
 Moreover, the implementation of projects
is also planned for improving occupational
health and safety conditions in the mine
work areas, such as the commencement
of the central air conditioning system
construction in the Karviná Mine.
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Surface construction projects:
 the modernization and reconstruction
of coal preparation plants at the ČSM Mine
and Karviná Mine, Lazy site are in progress.
Technological deliveries for construction works
inside the mine and on the surface comprise
deliveries and the assembly of machinery
and electrical equipment to provide transport
and extraction capacities in the mine, an
air conditioning system extension and
the modernization and reconstruction of mine
and coal preparation plant equipment.
The other capital expenditures for construction
projects are designated for land purchases.
In the category of machinery and equipment
acquired separately, purchases of belt
conveyors and armoured face conveyors
are planned, as are purchases of shearers,
electrical equipment and cooling equipment
for the mining operations, the refurbishment
of extraction machinery and equipment, and
purchases of security and pumping equipment
and computer technology.

SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS

NUMBER OF SHARES AND THEIR HOLDERS
 10 ordinary certiﬁcated shares of issue No. 02 (001 to 010) at CZK 200,000 per
share, registered to the sole shareholder, New World Resources N.V., with its
registered ofﬁce at Jachthavenweg 109-h, 1081KM Amsterdam, Netherlands,
recorded in the Commercial Register maintained by the Amsterdam Chamber
of Commerce under File No. 34239108;
 A collective certiﬁcate of A series, No. 001 replacing 12,099 ordinary
certiﬁcated shares of issue No. 03 (00001 to 12099) at CZK 200,000 per
share; a collective certiﬁcate of B series, No. 001, replacing 391 ordinary
certiﬁcated shares of issue No. 03 (12100 to 12490) at CZK 200,000 per
share; a collective certiﬁcate of C series, No. 001, replacing 21,089 ordinary
certiﬁcated shares of issue No. 04 (00001 to 21089) at CZK 200,000 per
share; a collective certiﬁcate of D series, No. 001 replacing 371 ordinary
certiﬁcated shares of issue No. 05 (00001 to 00371) at CZK 200,000 per
share; a collective certiﬁcate of E series, No. 001 replacing 3,225 ordinary
certiﬁcated shares of issue No. 06 (00001 to 03225) at CZK 200,000 per share;
a collective certiﬁcate of F series, No. 001 replacing 390 ordinary certiﬁcated
shares of issue No. 07 (00001 to 00390) at CZK 200,000 per share; a collective
certiﬁcate of series G, No. 001 replacing 325 ordinary certiﬁcated shares
of issue No. 08, (00001 to 00325) at CZK 200,000 per share; a collective
certiﬁcate of H series, No. 001 replacing 2,850 ordinary certiﬁcated shares
of issue 09, (00001 to 02850) at CZK 200,000 per share; a collective certiﬁcate
of I series, No. 001 replacing 335 ordinary certiﬁcated shares of issue
No. 10, (00001 to 00335) at CZK 200,000 per share; a collective certiﬁcate
of J series, No. 001 replacing 775 ordinary certiﬁcated shares of issue No. 11,
(00001 to 00775) at CZK 200,000 per share; a collective certiﬁcate of K series,
No. 001 replacing 145 ordinary certiﬁcated shares of issue No. 12,
(00001 to 00145) at CZK 200,000 per share, registered to the sole shareholder,
New World Resources N.V., with its registered ofﬁce at Jachthavenweg 109-h,
1081KM Amsterdam, Netherlands, recorded in the Commercial Register
maintained by the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce under File No. 34239108.
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Shares and shareholders

As of 31 December 2010, the registered capital of OKD amounted
to CZK 8,401,000,000 and was divided into 42,005 ordinary certiﬁcated
registered shares at CZK 200,000 per share.
On 24 March, 2010, the sole shareholder, NWR, exercising the powers and acting
in the capacity of the general meeting of OKD, resolved to increase the registered
capital of OKD. The subject of the increase was a non-monetary contribution valued
by expert appraisals prepared by the certiﬁed appraiser – E & Y Valuations s.r.o.
The registered capital was increased from CZK 8,150,000,000 by CZK 67,000,000
to CZK 8,217,000,000 by subscription of 335 ordinary certiﬁcated registered shares
at CZK 200 000 per share, issued by the issuer as a collective certiﬁcate. The decision
of the Regional Court in Ostrava on recording the increase in the registered capital
entered into effect on 29 March 2010.
On 24 May 2010, the sole shareholder, NWR, exercising the powers and acting
in the capacity of the general meeting of OKD, resolved to increase the registered
capital of OKD. The subject of the increase was a non-monetary contribution valued
by expert appraisals prepared by the certiﬁed appraiser – E & Y Valuations s.r.o.
The registered capital was increased from CZK 8,217,000,000 by CZK 155,000,000
to CZK 8,372,000,000 by subscription of 775 ordinary certiﬁcated registered shares
at CZK 200 000 per share, issued by the issuer as a collective certiﬁcate. The decision
of the Regional Court in Ostrava on recording the increase in the registered capital
entered into effect on 31 May 2010.
On 1 November 2010, the sole shareholder, NWR, exercising the powers and acting
in the capacity of the general meeting of OKD, resolved to increase the registered
capital of OKD. The subject of the increase was a non-monetary contribution valued
by expert appraisals prepared by the certiﬁed appraiser – E & Y Valuations s.r.o.
The registered capital was increased from CZK 8,372,000,000 by CZK 29,000,000
to CZK 8,401,000,000 by subscription of 145 ordinary certiﬁcated registered shares
at CZK 200 000 per share, issued by the issuer as a collective certiﬁcate. The decision
of the Regional Court in Ostrava on recording the increase in the registered capital
entered into effect on 16 November 2010.
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Shares and shareholders

The company’s sole shareholder is New World
Resources N.V., with its registered ofﬁce
at Jachthavenweg 109-h, 1081KM Amsterdam,
The Netherlands, recorded in the Commercial Register
maintained by the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce
under File No. 34239108.
The shareholder structure did not change during 2010.
Pursuant to Section 66a (2) of Act No. 513/1991 Coll.,
Commercial Code, as amended, the related parties
include OKD and its sole shareholder, New World
Resources N.V., as well as BXR Group Limited, and all
other companies known to OKD as controlled by BXR
Group Limited.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
As of 31 December 2010, OKD was the sole shareholder
of OKD, HBZS, a.s., Identiﬁcation Number 476 76 019,
having its registered ofﬁce at Ostrava-Radvanice,
Lihovarská 10/1199, Postcode 716 03, recorded
in the Commercial Register maintained by the Regional
Court in Ostrava, Section B, Insert 766.
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THE OWNER
OF THE COMPANY AND
GROUP STRUCTURE

Shares and shareholders

GENERAL MEETINGS AND RESOLUTIONS
27 January 2010 – resolution on the re-appointment of Klaus-Dieter Beck to the ofﬁce of a Member of the Board
of Directors after the term expiration
27 January 2010 – resolution on an amendment to the Articles of Association
27 January 2010 – consent to the adoption of the sole shareholder’s resolution on the sale of a part of the BU Mining
Museum undertaking
27 January 2010 – resolution on approval of a bonus to Stanley C. Suboleski and Karl-Friedrich Jakob for the discharge
of the ofﬁce of a Member of the Board of Directors
1 February 2010 – approval of the guarantee and conclusion of agreements in connection with an issue of NWR bonds.
18 February 2010 – resolution on the appointment of Otakar Jelínek as a Member of the Supervisory Board
18 February 2010 – resolution on the approval of the conclusion of the agreement on a Supervisory Board Member's
discharge of ofﬁce between Otakar Jelínek and OKD
17 March 2010 – resolution on the approval of a bonus to Marek Jelínek, a Member of the Board of Directors
22 March 2010 – resolution on the approval of the conclusion of the agreements titled “Intra-Group receivables and
service agreement” and “Subordination Agreement” among OKD, NWR and a group of companies
24 March 2010 – increase of the registered capital by CZK 67 million through a non-monetary contribution
18 May 2010 – resolution on the approval of the ordinary Financial Statements of OKD for 2009, acknowledgment
of the OKD Annual Report for 2009, including the Report on Relations between Related Parties, the approval of the Report
on Business Activities and Assets of the Company for 2009, acknowledgment of the Supervisory Board Report for 2009,
the approval of the proposal of the Board of Directors for proﬁt distribution for 2009, resolution on the distribution
of other items of the equity capital, the determination of the dividend payment due date and the approval of the proposal
of the Board of Directors of OKD for the insurance premium payment by OKD to the Members of the Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board for 2010
24 May 2010 – increase of the registered capital by CZK 155 million through a non-monetary contribution
5 August 2010 – approval of the Managerial Contract between Ján Fabián and OKD
16 September 2010 – resolution on an amendment to the Articles of Association
16 September 2010 – resolution on re-election of the Members of the Board of Directors and re-election of the Members
of the Supervisory Board
16 September 2010 – resolution on the approval of the agreements on the discharge of the ofﬁce regarding re-elected
Members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
23 September 2010 – the giving of a consent to the termination of the Control Agreement concluded by and between OKD,
the controlling party, and OKK Koksovny, a.s., the controlled party
1 November 2010 – increase of the registered capital by CZK 29 million through a non-monetary contribution
2 December 2010 – the giving of a consent to conclusion of the Agreement on termination of the Control Agreement
concluded by and between OKD, the controlling party, and OKK Koksovny, a.s., the controlled party
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Pursuant to the Agreement on the sale of a part of the BU Mining Museum undertaking, dated 31 May 2010, and through
Amendment 3 to the OKD CEO Directive 01/2009, dated 1 June 2010, the internal business unit – the unit is not recorded
in the Commercial Register – Mining Museum, with the seat at Ostrava-Petřkovice, Pod Landekem 64, Postcode 725 29
was dissolved. All the assets in the exercise of the ownership right, all the rights, receivables and payables pertaining
to such assets, managed by the BU Mining Museum, as of 30 April 2010, including the employees with their rights and
commitments, passed as of 1 June 2010 to the Buyer – VÍTKOVICE HOLDING, a.s., Identiﬁcation Number 25816039, with
the registered ofﬁce at Ostrava-Vítkovice, Ruská 2887/101, Postcode 706 02.
Based on the results of the public tendering process for “ICT Services Outsourcing”, which was announced by OKD
in 2009, the ICT Services Contract was concluded on 29 April 2010 with the contractors, members of the Consortium
consisting of HEWLETT-PACKARD s.r.o., Identiﬁcation Number 170 48 851, with the registered ofﬁce at Vyskočilova
1/1410, 140 21 Prague 4, and Siemens IT Solutions and Services, s.r.o., Identiﬁcation Number 448 51 391, with
the registered ofﬁce at Doudlebská 1699/5, 140 00 Prague 4.

OTHER LEGALLY SIGNIFICANT EVENTS THAT OCCURRED AFTER
THE DETERMINING DATE OF 31 DECEMBER 2010
On 13 January 2011, the sole shareholder, NWR, exercising the powers and acting in the capacity of the general meeting
of OKD, resolved to increase the registered capital of OKD. The subject of the increase of the registered capital was
a non-monetary contribution valued by Expert Opinion No. 1/23916827/11 of 10 January 2011, prepared by the certiﬁed
appraiser – E & Y Valuations s.r.o. The registered capital was increased from CZK 8,401,000,000 by CZK 23,000,000
to CZK 8,424,000,000 by subscription of 115 ordinary certiﬁcated registered shares at CZK 200,000 per share, issued
by the issuer as a collective certiﬁcate. The decision of the Regional Court in Ostrava on recording the increase
in the registered capital entered into effect on 21 January 2011.
On 8 February 2011, the sole shareholder, NWR, exercising the powers and acting in the capacity of the general meeting
of OKD, resolved, through Notarial Record No. NZ 209/2011, to increase the registered capital of OKD. The subject
of the increase of the registered capital was a non-monetary contribution, valued by Expert Opinion No. 3/23979122/11
of 3 February 2011, prepared by the certiﬁed appraiser – E & Y Valuations s.r.o. The registered capital was increased
from CZK 8,424,000,000 by CZK 117,000,000 to CZK 8,541,000,000 by subscription of 585 ordinary certiﬁcated registered
shares at CZK 200,000 per share, issued by the issuer as a collective certiﬁcate. The issue price of all the subscribed
shares amounted to CZK 692,075,475, of which CZK 117,000,000 corresponded to the sum of nominal values
of the newly issued shares, and CZK 575,075,475 represented the total share premium. The decision of the Regional
Court in Ostrava on recording the increase in the registered capital entered into effect on 14 February 2011.
On April 26, 2011, the sole shareholder, NWR, exercising the powers and acting in the capacity of the general
meeting of OKD, resolved, through Notarial Record No. NZ 618/2011, to increase the registered capital of OKD.
The subject of the registered capital was a non-monetary contribution, valued by Expert Opinion No. 11/24378037/11
of 22 April 2011, prepared by the certiﬁed appraiser – E & Y Valuations s.r.o. The registered capital was increased from
CZK 8,541,000,000 by CZK 34,000,000 to CZK 8,575,000,000 by subscription of 170 ordinary certiﬁed registered shares
a CZK 200,000 per share, issued by the issuer as a collective certiﬁcate. The issue price of all the subscribed shares
amounted to CZK 198,480,270, of which CZK 34,000,000 corresponded to the sum of nominal values of the newly issued
shares, and CZK 164,480,270 represented the total share premium. The decision of the Regional Court in Ostrava
on recording the increase in the registered capital entered into effect on 28 April 2011.
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BALANCE SHEET
Balance sheet in full format as of 31 December 2010

(in CZK ´000)
ASSETS

line

Current period

Prior period

c

Gross
1

Adjust.
2

Net
3

Net
4

001

86,091,274

−38,824,916

47,266,358

50,497,296

a

b

A.

Receivables for subscribed registered capital

002

B.

Fixed assets

(L. 04+13+23)

003

71,057,813

−38,695,361

32,362,452

32,261,739

B. I.

Intangible ﬁxed assets

(L. 05 to 12)

004

427,635

−270,848

156,787

961,984

B. I. 1.

Incorporation expenses

005

2.

Research and development

006

443

−443

3.

Software

007

404,769

−263,093

141,676

24,738

4.

Intellectual property rights

008

6,783

−4,977

1,806

829,424

5.

Goodwill

009

6.

Other intangible ﬁxed assets

010

2,838

−2,335

7.

Intangible ﬁxed assets under construction

011

12,802

8.

Advance payments for intangible ﬁxed assets

012

TOTAL ASSETS

B. II.

Tangible ﬁxed assets

B. II. 1.

Land

(L. 02+03+31+63)

(L. 14 to 22)

503

799

12,802

107,023

013

70,471,769

−38,369,771

32,101,998

31,196,088

014

408,166

−82

408,084

379,189

2.

Buildings

015

21,988,425

−13,255,165

8,733,260

8,583,562

3.

Plant and equipment

016

33,950,882

−20,895,338

13,055,544

11,077,440

4.

Cultivated areas

017

5.

Adult livestock

018

6.

Other tangible ﬁxed assets

019

12,167

−9,034

3,133

3,133

808,961

−90

808,871

1,151,226

7.

Tangible ﬁxed assets under construction

020

8.

Advance payments for tangible ﬁxed assets

021

9.

Adjustments to acquired ﬁxed assets

022

13,303,168

−4,210,062

9,093,106

10,001,538

B. III.

Long-term investments

023

158,409

−54,742

103,667

103,667

B. III.1.

Investments in group undertakings

024

103,667

103,667

103,667

2.

Investments in associated companies

025

3.

Other long-term securities and ownership
interests

026

4.

Loans - group undertakings, associated
companies

027

5.

Other long-term investments

028

6.

Long-term investments (provisional value)

029

7.

Advance payments for long-term investments

030

(L. 24 to 30)

54,742

−54,742

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

Ident.

C.

Current assets

031

14,967,204

−129,555

14,837,649

18,026,438

(L. 33 to 38)

C. I.

Inventories

032

1,035,812

−113,772

922,040

1,095,242

C. I. 1.

Raw materials

033

475,884

−42,019

433,865

428,491

Work-in-progress and semi-ﬁnished products

034

44,649

44,649

75,659

3.

Finished goods

035

394,116

−71,635

322,481

404,766

4.

Young and other livestock

036
121,163

−118

121,045

186,326

2.

5.

Goods for resale

037

6.

Advance payments for inventories

038

C. II.

Long-term receivables

039

297,473

297,473

16,108

C. II. 1.

Trade receivables

040

2,636

2,636

3,108

2.

Receivables - group undertakings

041

3.

Receivables - associated companies

042

4.

Receivables from shareholders/owners and
alliance partners

043

5.

Long-term advances paid

044

95

95

93

6.

Estimated receivables

045

7.

Other receivables

046

294,742

294,742

12,907

8.

Deferred tax asset

047

(L. 40 to 47)

C. III.

Short-term receivables

048

10,285,890

−15,783

10,270,107

3,555,235

C. III.1.

Trade receivables

049

4,840,757

−1,618

4,839,139

2,250,537

2.

Receivables - group undertakings

050

3.

Receivables - associated companies

051

4.

Receivables from shareholders/owners and
alliance partners

052

5.

Social security and health insurance

053

6.

Tax receivables

054

(L. 49 to 57)

4,908,927

4,908,927

291,745

291,745

304,707

7.

Short-term advances paid

055

94,793

94,793

121,938

8.

Estimated receivables

056

119,304

119,304

109,941

9.

Other receivables

C. IV.

Short-term ﬁnancial assets

C. IV. 1.

Cash

(L. 59 to 62)

057

30,364

16,199

768,112

058

3,348,029

−14,165

3,348,029

13,359,853

059

3,091

3,091

2,494

3,344,938

3,344,938

13,357,359

2.

Bank accounts

060

3.

Short-term securities and ownership interests

061

Short-term investments (provisional value)

062

Deferrals

063

66,257

66,257

209,119

51,725

51,725

199,401

14,532

14,532

9,718

4.
D. I.
D. I. 1.

66

(L. 32+39+48+58)

(L. 64+65+66)

Prepaid expenses

064

2.

Complex prepaid expenses

065

3.

Accrued revenues

066
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LIABILITIES

a

line
c

Current
period
5

Prior
period
6

067

47,266,358

50,497,296

(L. 69+73+79+82+85)

068

23,349,892

28,551,466

(L. 70+71+72)

069

8,401,000

8,150,000

8,401,000

8,150,000

073

5,281,841

6,526,691

4,666,226

5,730,118

b
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

A.

Equity

A. I.

Registered capital

A. I. 1.

(L. 68+86+119)

Registered capital

070

2.

Own shares and ownership interests (−)

071

3.

Changes in registered capital

072

A. II.

Capital contributions

A. II. 1.

Share premium

074

2.

Other capital contributions

075

1,750

1,772

3.

Revaluation of assets and liabilities

076

613,865

794,801

4.

Revaluation reserve on transformations

077

5.

Differences resulting from transformations

078

Reserve funds, undistributable fund and other funds from proﬁt (L. 80+81)

079

3,343,982

3,343,982

Statutory reserve fund / Undistributable fund

080

3,337,348

3,337,348

Statutory and other funds

081

6,634

6,634

A. III.
A. III.1.
2.

(L. 74 to 78)

A. IV.

Retained earnings

082

9,050,792

A. IV. 1.

Retained proﬁts

083

9,050,792

Accumulated losses

084

2.

(L. 83+84)

A. V.

Proﬁt (loss) for the current period (+/−)

085

6,323,069

1,480,001

B.

Liabilities

(L. 87+92+103+115)

086

23,891,221

21,944,413

B. I.

Provisions

(L. 88 to 91)

087

2,891,164

2,390,250

B. I. 1.

Tax-deductible provisions

088

1,773,020

1,900,554

2.

Provision for pensions and other similar payables

089

3.

Income tax provision

090

976,205

305,312

4.

Other provisions

091

141,939

184,384
3,570,429

B. II.

Long-term liabilities

092

14,621,337

B. II. 1.

Trade payables

093

615

2.

Liabilities - group undertakings

094

3.

Liabilities - associated companies

095

4.

Liabilities to shareholders/owners and alliance partners

096

10,892,405

5.

Long-term advances received

097

31

6.

Debentures and bonds issued

098

7.

Long-term bills of exchange payable

099

8.

Estimated payables

100

9.

Other payables

101

273,780

465,075

Deferred tax liability

102

3,454,506

3,105,354

10.

(L. 93 to 102)

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

Ident.

B. III.

Short-term liabilities

B. III.1.

103

6,378,553

5,776,687

3,715,116

3,666,394

Trade payables

104

2.

Liabilities - group undertakings

105

3.

Liabilities - associated companies

106

4.

Liabilities to shareholders/owners and alliance partners

107

868,085

38,221

5.

Payables to employees

108

455,882

568,793

6.

Payables to social security and health insurance

109

206,599

293,314

7.

Tax liabilities and subsidies

110

93,022

118,121

8.

Short-term advances received

111

39,342

173,428

9.

Debentures and bonds issued

112

Estimated payables

113

968,239

730,930

114

32,268

187,486

115

167

10,207,047

10.
11.
B. VI.

Other payables
Bank loans and overdrafts

B. VI.1.

68

(L. 104 to 114)

(L. 116+117+118)

Long-term bank loans

116

2.

Short-term bank loans

117

3.

Short-term ﬁnancial liabilities

118
(L. 120+121)

8,016,413
167

2,190,634

C. I.

Accruals

119

25,245

1,417

C. I. 1.

Accrued expenses

120

25

7

2.

Deferred revenues

121

25,220

1,410

Date:

Statutory representative:

Person responsible
for the accounting:

Person responsible
for the ﬁn. statements:

18 February 2011

Miloslava Trgiňová

Vladimír Kostelný

Irena Pawlasová
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Profit and loss account classification by nature for the year ended 31 December 2010
(in CZK ´000)
TEXT

Line

b

c

a
I.
A.

01

10,085,958

3,864,203

02

9,178,965

3,434,394

Gross proﬁt
Revenue from production

II. 1.
II. 2.
II. 3.

(L. 01−02)

03

906,993

429,809

(L. 05+06+07)

04

34,073,830

27,608,128

Revenue from own products and services

05

33,992,802

27,235,680

Change in inventory of own production

06

−79,108

132,803

Own work capitalized

07

160,136

239,645

08

14,934,558

13,518,631

09

7,058,791

6,645,041

Cost of sales

B

1.

Materials and consumables

2.

Services

+

Added value

C.

Prior
2

Cost of goods sold
II.

B

Current
1

Revenue from goods

+

B.

Accounting period

(L. 09+10)

10

7,875,767

6,873,590

(L. 03+04−08)

11

20,046,265

14,519,306

(L. 13 to 16)

12

8,328,434

7,731,319

Personnel expenses

C.

1.

Wages and salaries

13

5,762,319

5,357,437

C.

2.

Remuneration of board members

14

10,535

9,823

C.

3.

Social security and health insurance expenses

15

1,879,344

1,749,819

C.

4.

Social expenses

16

676,236

614,240

D.

Taxes and charges

17

180,965

141,144

E.

Depreciation of intangible and tangible ﬁxed assets

18

3,602,717

3,440,123

19

246,535

247,509

III.

Proceeds from disposals of ﬁxed assets and raw material

(L. 20+21)

III.1.

Proceeds from disposals of ﬁxed assets

20

18,891

26,564

III.2.

Proceeds from disposals of raw material

21

227,644

220,945
212,974

22

184,300

F.

F.
1.

Net book value of ﬁxed assets sold

Net book value of ﬁxed assets and raw material sold

23

18,932

8,270

F.

2.

Raw materials sold

24

165,368

204,704

Change in provisions and adjustments relating to operating activity
and change in complex prepaid expenses

25

−287,155

−682

G.
VI.

Other operating revenues

26

2,290,477

2,674,265

Other operating expenses

27

2,684,317

3,240,940

Transfer of operating revenues

28

Transfer of operating expenses

29

*

Operating proﬁt (loss)
(L. 11−12−17−18+19−22−25+26−27+28−29)

30

7,889,699

2,675,262

VI.

Proceeds from sale of securities and ownership interests

31

Securities and ownership interests sold

32

H.
V.
I.

J.

(L. 23+24)

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

Ident.

VII.

(L. 34+35+36)

33

VII. 1.

Revenue from investments in group undertakings and associated companies

34

VII. 2.

Revenue from other long-term securities and ownership interests

35

VII. 3.

Revenue from other long-term investments

36

VIII.

Revenue from short-term ﬁnancial investments

37

Financial assets expenses

38

K.
IX.
L.
M.
X.
N.
XI.
O.
XII.
P.
*
Q.

3,241

4,242

Revenue from revaluation of securities and derivatives

39

65,939

83,295

Expenses for revaluation of securities and derivatives

40

266,710

343,124

Change in provisions and adjustments relating to ﬁnancial activity

41

Interest revenue

42

24,561

58,736

Interest expense

43

439,906

382,458

Other ﬁnancial revenues

44

750,608

810,432

Other ﬁnancial expenses

45

815,425

900,907

Transfer of ﬁnancial revenues

46

Transfer of ﬁnancial expenses

47

Proﬁt (loss) from ﬁnancial operations
(L. 31−32+33+37−38+39−40+41+42−43+44−45+46−47)

48

−677,692

−669,784

49

781,333

510,953
295,589

Income tax on ordinary proﬁt (loss)

Q.

(L. 50+51)

1.

– current

50

389,740

2.

– deferred

51

391,593

215,364

52

6,430,674

1,494,525

**

Proﬁt (loss) on ordinary activities after tax

XIII.

Extraordinary revenue

53

4,296

11,671

Extraordinary expenses

54

111,901

26,195

−107,605

−14,524

R.
S.

Income tax on extraordinary proﬁt (loss)

S.

(L. 30+48−49)

(L. 56+57)

55

1.

– current

56

2.

– deferred

57

*

Extraordinary proﬁt (loss)

T.

70

Revenue from long-term investments

(L. 53−54−55)

Transfer of proﬁt or loss to partners

***

Proﬁt (loss) for the accounting period

****

Proﬁt (loss) before tax

58
59

(L. 52+58−59)

60

6,323,069

1,480,001

(L. 30+48+53−54)

61

7,104,402

1,990,954

Date:

Statutory representative:

Person responsible
for the accounting:

Person responsible
for the ﬁn. statements:

18 February 2011

Miloslava Trgiňová

Vladimír Kostelný

Irena Pawlasová
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prepared on:

18 February 2011

Signature of the statutory
representative:

Person responsible
for bookkeeping:

Person responsible
for the ﬁnancial statements:

Vladimír Kostelný

Irena Pawlasová

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

Notes to the Financial Statements
as of 31 December 2010

Notes to the Financial Statements


1. DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY
OKD (the “Company”) is a joint stock company, a legal entity incorporated on 1 June 2005, with its registered ofﬁce
at Ostrava, Moravská Ostrava, Prokešovo náměstí 6/2020, the Czech Republic, ID number 26863154. The Company
is recorded in the Commercial Register maintained by the Regional Court in Ostrava, Section B, insert No. 2900.
According to the entry in the Commercial Register, the principal activities of the Company include mining and similar
activities as deﬁned by Act No. 61/1988 Coll., on Mining, Explosives and State Mining Administration, as amended,
(e.g. prospecting and exploration of mineral deposits; opening, preparation and exploitation of deposits; treatment
and processing of minerals in connection with their exploitation, etc.), the handling of waste (excluding hazardous
waste), etc.
These ﬁnancial statements have been prepared for the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010.
Entities having a share of 10% or more in the Company’s registered capital as of 31 December 2010:
New World Resources N.V. 100.00%
1081 KM Amsterdam, Jachthavenweg 109 H, the Netherlands
Entities having a share of 10% or more in the Company’s registered capital as of 31 December 2009:
New World Resources N.V. 100.00%
1081 KM Amsterdam, Jachthavenweg 109 H, the Netherlands
New World Resources N.V., with its registered ofﬁce at 1081 KM Amsterdam, Jachthavenweg 109 H, the Netherlands,
is the parent company, registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Amsterdam Chamber of Commerce
and Industry (“Handelsregister van der Kamer van Koophandel en Fabrieken voor Amsterdam”) under No. 34239108.
Members of the statutory and supervisory bodies as of 31 December 2010:
Board of Directors
Chairman:
Klaus-Dieter Beck
Vice Chairman: Miloslava Trgiňová
Vice Chairman: Ján Fabián
Member:
Marek Jelínek
Member:
Karl Friedrich Jakob
Member:
Miklos Salamon
Member:
Stanley C. Suboleski
Supervisory Board
Chairman:
Luboš Řežábek
Vice Chairman: Jan Hanousek
Member:
František Válek
Member:
Otakar Jelínek
Member:
Miroslav Syrový
Member:
Jaroslav Vlach
The following changes occurred in the statutory, supervisory and managing bodies of OKD between 1 January 2010
and 31 December 2010:
– On 18 February 2010, Otakar Jelínek became a Member of the Supervisory Board;
– On 27 January 2010, Klaus-Dieter Beck was elected a Member of the Board of Directors of OKD;
effective as of 22 May 2010, as his previous Membership expired on 21 May 2010;
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– Based on the decision of the Board of Directors, Klaus-Dieter Beck was re-elected Chairman of the Board of Directors,
effective as of 22 May 2010;
– Ján Fábian, Karl-Friedrich Jakob, Marek Jelínek, Miklos Salamon and Miloslava Trgiňová were re-elected
Members of the Board of Directors of OKD, effective as of 2 November 2010, as their previous Memberships
expired on 1 November 2010;
– On 16 September 2010, Luboš Řežábek and Jan Hanousek were re-elected Members of the Supervisory Board,
effective as of 20 December 2010, as their previous Memberships expired on 19 December 2010;
– On 20 January 2010, the Board of Directors of OKD approved the re-election of Ján Fábian and Miloslava Trgiňová
as Vice Chairmen of the Board of Directors, effective as of 2 November 2010;
– On 9 December 2010, the Supervisory Board of OKD approved the re-election of Luboš Řežábek as Chairman of the
Supervisory Board and Jan Hanousek as Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board, effective as of 20 December 2010.

As of 31 December 2010, the Members of the Company’s senior management were:
Klaus-Dieter Beck – Chief Executive Ofﬁcer;
Ján Fabián – Chief Administration Ofﬁcer (Deputy CEO);
Miloslava Trgiňová – Chief Finance and IT Ofﬁcer;
Petr Otava – Chief Commercial Ofﬁcer;
Leo Bayer – Chief Operation Ofﬁcer;
Jan Matula – Chief Engineering Ofﬁcer;
Radim Babinec – Chief Legal Ofﬁcer;
Radim Tabášek – Chief Human Resources Ofﬁcer;
Petra Mašínová – Chief Public Relation and Communication Ofﬁcer.
The Company has the following organisational structure:
The Company consists of ﬁve internal business units (entities that are not recorded in the Commercial Register).
Internal business units – entities:
Darkov Mine
Karviná Mine
Paskov Mine
ČSM Mine
Shared Service Centre
The Company has no business units abroad.
Decision on the abolishment of an internal business unit – entity
As of 1 June 2010, based on an agreement on the sale of part of the Mining Museum (an internal business unit)
dated 31 May 2010 and Amendment No. 3 to Directive No. 01/2009 of the Chief Executive Ofﬁcer of OKD, the Mining
Museum, an internal business unit – an entity not recorded in the Commercial Register, with its registered ofﬁce
at Ostrava-Petřkovice, pod Landekem 64, postal code 725 29, was abolished. As of 1 June 2010, all assets, rights,
receivables and related payables that were managed by the Mining Museum as of 30 April 2010, including its employees
and their rights and obligations, were transferred to the buyer, VÍTKOVICE HOLDING, a.s., with its registered ofﬁce
at Ostrava-Vítkovice, Ruská 2887/101, postal code 706 02. Exercising the powers of the general meeting of OKD, the sole
shareholder, New World Resources N.V., approved the proposed agreement on the sale of part of the business, by virtue
of a decision made on 24 May 2010 in the form of notarial deed No. NZ 790/2010.

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

As of 1 March 2010, an organizational change was implemented in the Company’s senior management, resulting
in the creation of the position of Chief Human Resources Ofﬁcer and the abolishment of the position of Chief
Reclamation and IT Ofﬁcer. Radim Tabášek was elected Chief Human Resources Ofﬁcer, and Miloslava Trgiňová Chief
Finance and IT Ofﬁcer.
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Registered capital increase
On 24 March 2010, the sole shareholder, New World Resources N.V., exercising the powers of the general meeting
of OKD, decided, in the form of notarial deed No. NZ 464/2010, to increase the registered capital of OKD The registered
capital increase comprised a non-cash contribution, which was valued based on expert opinion No. 4/22326872/10
dated 22 March 2010, prepared by E & Y Valuations s.r.o., an expert. The existing registered capital of CZK 8,150,000,000
was increased by CZK 67,000,000, to CZK 8,217,000,000, by subscribing for 335 registered ordinary share certiﬁcates
(at CZK 200,000 per share), which were issued as a collective instrument. The issue rate of all subscribed shares was
CZK 398,141,805, of which CZK 67,000,000 was the total nominal value of the newly issued shares and CZK 331,141,805
was the total share premium. The decision of the Regional Court in Ostrava to record the registered capital increase
in the Commercial Register became effective on 29 March 2010.
On 24 May 2010, the sole shareholder, New World Resources N.V., exercising the powers of the general meeting of OKD,
decided, in the form of notarial deed No. NZ 789/2010, to increase the registered capital of OKD The registered capital
increase comprised a non-cash contribution, which was valued based on expert opinion No. 11/22652047/10 dated
21 May 2010, prepared by E & Y Valuations s.r.o., an expert. The existing registered capital of CZK 8,217,000,000 was
increased by CZK 155,000,000, to CZK 8,372,000,000, by subscribing for 775 registered ordinary share certiﬁcates
(at CZK 200 000 per share), which were issued as a collective instrument. The issue rate of all subscribed shares
was CZK 918,542,400, of which CZK 155,000,000 was the total nominal value of the newly issued shares and
CZK 763,542,400 was the total share premium. The decision of the Regional Court in Ostrava to record the registered
capital increase in the Commercial Register became effective on 31 May 2010.
On 1 November 2010, the sole shareholder, New World Resources N.V., exercising the powers of the general
meeting of OKD, decided, in the form of notarial deed No. NZ 1623/2010, to increase the registered capital
of OKD The registered capital increase comprised a non-cash contribution, which was valued based on expert opinion
No. 22/23636017/10 dated 26 October 2010, prepared by E & Y Valuations s.r.o., an expert. The existing registered
capital of CZK 8,372,000,000 was increased by CZK 29,000,000, to CZK 8,401,000,000, by subscribing for 145 registered
ordinary share certiﬁcates (at CZK 200,000 per share), which were issued as a collective instrument. The issue rate
of all subscribed shares was CZK 142,130,160, of which CZK 29,000,000 was the total nominal value of the newly issued
shares and CZK 113,130,160 was the total share premium. The decision of the Regional Court in Ostrava to record
the registered capital increase in the Commercial Register became effective on 16 November 2010.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
The accompanying ﬁnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following legal regulations:
Act No. 563/91 Coll., on Accounting, as amended; Ministry of Finance Decree No. 500/2002 Coll., as amended, implementing
certain provisions of Act No. 563/1991 Coll., on Accounting, as amended, for business entities using a double-entry
accounting system; and Czech Accounting Standards for Business Entities No. 001 to 023 effective for 2010. International
readers of these notes should check whether the requirements of the Czech Accounting Act are similar to or different from
those they are accustomed to.
The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared based on the historical cost principle.
In the proﬁt and loss account and the cash ﬂow statement, the current period column shows data for the period
from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010, whereas the prior period column includes data for the period from
1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009.
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Impact of amendments to the Accounting Act
In the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010, no changes were made in the accounting methods
in accordance with Act No. 563/91 Coll., on Accounting, as amended, Ministry of Finance Decree No. 500/2002 Coll.,
as amended, and Czech Accounting Standards for Business Entities.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The valuation methods used by the Company in preparing its ﬁnancial statements as of 31 December 2010 and
as of 31 December 2009 were as follows:
a) Intangible fixed assets
Intangible ﬁxed assets are stated at acquisition cost, which includes the purchase price and costs related
to the acquisition.
Low value intangible assets costing up to CZK 60 thousand are expensed when purchased and thereafter only
maintained in sub-ledger accounts.
The category of low value intangible ﬁxed assets is not deﬁned.

Valuable rights are stated at acquisition cost. The cost of contributed intellectual property rights is determined based
on an expert opinion.
b) Tangible fixed assets
Tangible ﬁxed assets are recorded at cost, which includes the purchase price, freight costs, related customs duties
and other costs related to the acquisition. Tangible ﬁxed assets produced by the Company are recorded at cost,
which includes direct materials, wages and production overheads. Interest and other ﬁnancial expenses incurred
in connection with the acquisition are included in the cost of tangible ﬁxed assets.
Tangible ﬁxed assets acquired free of charge are stated at replacement cost and credited to the “Other capital
contributions” account. The replacement cost of an asset acquired after the termination of a ﬁnance lease is
determined based on an expert estimate.
Expenses paid by the lessee (e.g. freight costs, customs duties, installation) under ﬁnance leases involving
the subsequent purchase of the leased tangible ﬁxed asset are recorded, over the lease term, as tangible ﬁxed assets
under construction. At the end of the lease, they are included in the acquisition cost of the respective tangible ﬁxed
asset.
The costs of improvement to a tangible ﬁxed asset, if incurred in the year the asset is put into use, increase the asset’s
acquisition cost. If incurred in subsequent years, they increase the asset’s acquisition cost only if they individually
exceed CZK 40 thousand. Ordinary repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred.
Low value tangible ﬁxed assets are not deﬁned. Low value tangible ﬁxed assets that were put into use in the dissolved
OKD by 31 December 2000 are recorded in the “Plant and equipment” account until their disposal. Special-purpose
items of plant and equipment costing up to the limit set by the Income Tax Act, as amended, with a useful life of more
than one year, are regarded as inventories.

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

Intangible ﬁxed assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, for a maximum of ﬁve
years.
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Low value tangible assets (costing up to CZK 10 thousand) are expensed when purchased and thereafter only
maintained in sub-ledger accounts.
An adjustment to acquired assets represents the difference between an expert’s valuation of the assets and the aggregate
valuation of the individual asset components as recorded in a company’s accounts, reduced by assumed liabilities.
Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to proﬁt or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of an asset. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:
Years (from – to)
Buildings, halls and structures
30, 45
Machinery and equipment
4–15
Vehicles
4–8
Fixtures and ﬁttings
4–15
Adjustments to acquired ﬁxed assets
15
Other tangible ﬁxed assets
4–15
Mine workings acquired before 1 January 1993 are depreciated on a straight-line basis at an annual rate of 4%. Mine
workings acquired after 1 January 1993 are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. The annual
depreciation rate is determined as the ratio of the acquisition cost and the speciﬁed useful life of a mine working.
As a new Classiﬁcation of Construction Works, CZ-CC, came into effect on 1 January 2004, replacing the former SKP
classiﬁcation of construction works, under which surface structures were allocated to accounting depreciation groups
with annual depreciation rates of 2.25% or 3.4%, the depreciation of surface buildings and structures put into use after
1 January 2004 was changed as of 1 January 2004 as follows:
– Surface buildings and structures built at operating mines and put into use after 1 January 2004 are depreciated
at a rate at which the depreciation period does not exceed the useful life of the site. Where the useful life of a surface
building or structure located at an operating mine is shorter than the useful life of the site, the depreciation rate is
based on the useful life of the building or structure.
– Surface buildings and structures located at other sites and put into use after 1 January 2004 are depreciated
at a uniform annual depreciation rate of 3.4%.
– Surface buildings and structures put into use by 31 December 2003 are depreciated at rates that were effective
until the end of 2003.
c) Financial assets
Shares and securities are valued at cost, which includes the purchase price and expenses directly related
to the acquisition, e.g. fees and commissions paid to brokers and stock exchanges.
For debt securities, the interest income is accounted for on an accrual basis and included in the relevant securities account.
Short-term ﬁnancial assets include valuables, cash in hand and cash at the bank, and debt securities due within one
year, held to maturity.
Long-term investments include ownership interests, available-for-sale securities and investments.
As of 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2010, long-term investments were valued at cost.
If their carrying amount decreases, the difference is considered an impairment and recognised as an adjustment.
Available-for-sale securities and investments are securities and investments other than those held for trading or those
held to maturity or those classiﬁed as ownership interests.

76

2010 Annual Report of OKD

Notes to the Financial Statements


d) Inventories
Purchased inventories are recorded at actual acquisition cost, with ancillary acquisition costs tracked separately.
The acquisition cost of inventories includes the cost of their acquisition and expenses related to the acquisition (freight
costs, customs duties, commissions, etc.).
Raw materials inventory is stated at cost calculated as an arithmetic mean, updated at each stock receipt. Decreases
in ancillary acquisition costs are expensed on a monthly basis, depending on the disposal of materials.
Work in progress is stated at predetermined costs amounting to planned production costs. These costs do not include
overheads such as administrative and distribution expenses.
Internally produced inventory (coal) is stated at predetermined costs, calculated based on costs actually incurred
in the previous year per one tonne of sales output (for ﬁnished products) or per one tonne of gross output (for mined
coal). Actual costs do not include overheads such as administrative and distribution expenses.
Adjustments are established to reduce the acquisition cost of inventory to net realisable value.

f) Derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at cost. At the balance sheet date they are re-measured at fair value and recognised
as part of other receivables/payables.
As of 1 January 2008, the Company decided to use hedge accounting in order to present the effects of currency risk
hedges. Documentation has been maintained for hedge accounting purposes, and the effectiveness of the individual
transactions has been assessed on a regular basis.
The realised part of ﬁnancial derivatives is recognised in the proﬁt and loss account, and the unrealised part is
recognised, at the balance sheet date, as “Revaluation of assets and liabilities” in equity.
If hedging derivatives are sold, their market value as of the date of the sale is presented in equity, in line with hedge
accounting principles. This value is released to the proﬁt and loss account when the expenses or revenues relating
to the originally hedged items are recognised.
Changes in the fair values of other derivatives, classiﬁed as derivatives held for trading, are recognised in ﬁnancial
expenses/revenues.
g) Equity
The Company’s registered capital is stated at the amount recorded in the Commercial Register maintained
by the respective Regional Court.
Capital contributions include mainly other capital contributions, share premium, and revaluation of derivatives.
In accordance with the Commercial Code, the Company maintains a statutory reserve fund, created from proﬁt.
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e) Receivables
Receivables are stated at their nominal values; purchased receivables are stated at acquisition cost. The cost
of doubtful receivables is reduced to their realisable value using adjustments, debited to expenses. The factoring
of receivables is accounted for as the sale of receivables. Transferred receivables are charged to other operating
expenses, and the revenue from transferred receivables is recognised under other operating revenues.
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h) Liabilities
The Company maintains statutory reserves under the Act on Reserves. In addition, it establishes provisions for losses
and risks in cases where it is possible to determine, with a high level of probability, the cause, amount and date
of the settlement on an accrual basis.
Long-term and short-term liabilities are stated at nominal value. Other payables also include values determined
as a result of the remeasurement of ﬁnancial derivatives at fair value.
i) Bank loans
Short-term and long-term loans are stated at nominal value. Any part of a long-term loan that is due within one year
of the balance sheet date is classiﬁed as a short-term loan.
j) Foreign currency transactions
The Company translates foreign currencies using the Czech National Bank ofﬁcial rate. During the year the foreign
exchange gains and losses are only recognised when realised at the time of settlement. As of the balance sheet date,
foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the prevailing Czech National Bank ofﬁcial rates.
Unrealised foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the proﬁt and loss account.
k) Recognition of expenses and revenues
Expenses and revenues are recognised on an accrual basis.
The establishment of provisions and adjustments in respect of any risk, loss or impairment known as of the balance
sheet date is debited to expenses. The utilisation, reduction or release of provisions and adjustments is credited
to expenses.
l) Income tax
Income tax for the period comprises current tax and the change in deferred tax.
Current tax comprises an estimate of tax payable calculated based on the taxable income, using the tax rate valid
as of the balance sheet date, and any adjustments to taxes payable for previous periods.
Deferred tax is based on all temporary differences between the carrying and tax value of assets and liabilities
multiplied by the tax rate effective for the period in which the tax asset/liability will be utilised.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only if it is probable that it will be utilised in future accounting periods.
m) Subsidies
State subsidies are primarily intended for covering non-investment expenditures relating to civil defence and expenses
relating to agricultural land maintenance.
Subsidies are accounted for as follows:
– credited to revenue (on an accrual basis), if intended for the settlement of expenses;
– as a reduction in acquisition cost, if intended for the acquisition of tangible ﬁxed assets.
n) Research and development
Internal research and development costs are expensed when incurred. Purchased results of research and development
are stated at acquisition cost.
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o) Establishment of adjustments
Additions to adjustments are debited to the appropriate expense account. Any reduction or release of adjustments is
credited to expenses.
Adjustments are established as follows:
1) Intangible and tangible fixed assets
Adjustments are established for assets that are temporarily idle and to selected projects under construction where
no decision has been made as to their future use – the amounts of such adjustments are determined according
to an expert estimate and an evaluation by the Company‘s management.
2) Long-term investments
Adjustments are established if:
– the value of equity falls below the value of an investment in a company, taking into account the adjustments
to acquired ﬁxed assets recognised in the balance sheet (for entities that qualify as group undertakings
or associated companies); or
– there are other risks resulting from their business activities.

4) Receivables
Adjustments for overdue receivables were set up according to the following principles:
– receivables overdue for more than 360 days: 100% of the nominal value of the receivable;
– receivables overdue for 180 to 360 days: 50% of the nominal value of the receivable.
Where multiple overdue receivables of varying ages existed in relation to a single customer, an adjustment was
established for all overdue receivables from such a customer, based on the oldest receivable.
Where, as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, both receivables from and payables (including off-balance
sheet payables) to the same entity were identiﬁed in establishing adjustments for non-expired receivables due after
31 December 1994, the payables and receivables were ﬁrst offset and a statutory adjustment was only established
in respect of the net amount. Where no offset was made, only an accounting adjustment was established, in accordance
with the above rules.
p) Reserves and provisions
A provision for untaken holidays was established as of the balance sheet date, based on an analysis of untaken holidays
as of 31 December 2010 and average payroll costs, including social security and health insurance expenses per
employee.
An income tax provision is established as the ﬁnancial statements are prepared before the tax liability is determined.
In the subsequent accounting period, the Company releases this provision and records the actual tax liability
determined. The Company presents the income tax provision separately from receivables arising from income tax
prepayments.
The Company establishes provisions for the rehabilitation of land affected by mining and for settling any claims arising
from mining damage, in accordance with Act No. 593/1992 Coll., on Reserves for the Purposes of Establishing the Tax
Base, as amended. The provision amount represents the anticipated amount of expenses relating to the rehabilitation
and restoration of land affected by mining, and expenses relating to the repair of mining damage.
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3) Inventories
Adjustments are established for obsolete and slow-moving inventories, based on a stock count.
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A provision for the technical liquidation of mines is recognised in the balance sheet if: the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation to perform; it is probable that the performance will occur; and the performance amount can
be estimated with a certain degree of reliability.
r) Consolidation
Pursuant to Section 62 (5) of Decree No. 500/2002 (the “Decree”), the ﬁnancial statements of the Company and all its
consolidated entities have been included in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements of New World Resources N.V., with its
registered ofﬁce in Amsterdam, the Netherlands. The consolidated ﬁnancial statements will be published in accordance
with Section 62 (6c) of the Decree and Section 21a of the Act on Accounting.

4. FIXED ASSETS
a) Intangible fixed assets
(in CZK ‘000)
Intangible
ﬁxed assets
under
constr.

Total

Research and
development

Valuable
rights

Software

Other
intangible
ﬁxed assets

443

833,657

253,596

2,230

107,023

1,196,949

Additions

0

0

61,578

608

0

62,186

Disposals

0

0

−2,076

0

0

−2,076

Transfers

0

−826,874

91,671

0

−94,221

443

6,783

404,769

2,838

12,802

427,635

443

4,233

228,858

1,431

0

234,965

Amortisation expense

0

744

36,311

904

0

37,959

Disposals

0

0

−2,076

0

0

−2,076

Transfers

0

0

0

0

0

0

443

4,977

263,093

2,335

0

270,848

Net book value
at 1/1/2010

0

829,424

24,738

799

107,023

961,984

Net book value
at 31/12/2010

0

1,806

141,676

503

12,802

156,787

Acquisition cost
Balance at 1/1/2010

Balance at 31/12/2010

829,424*)

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1/1/2010

Balance at 31/12/2010

*) Transfers of valuable rights comprise rights contributed to OKD by its parent company based on an equipment supply
agreement. The non-cash contribution consisted of all rights which the parent company has, under this agreement,
in respect of coal mining preparation equipment. Once the individual mining equipment units have been delivered,
these valuable rights will be transferred to tangible ﬁxed assets.
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The aggregate amount of low value intangible ﬁxed assets not recognised in the balance sheet at cost
as of 31 December 2010 and as of 31 December 2009 was CZK 30,687 thousand and CZK 26,950 thousand, respectively.
b) Tangible fixed assets
(in CZK ‘000)

Land

Buildings
and
structures

Plant and
equipment

Other
tangible
FA and
advance
payments

408,142

21,228,590

31,924,610

25,415

1,167,183

13,303,168

68,057,108

Additions

33,244

283,216

2,660,469

0

659,378

0

3,636,307

Disposals

−33,220

−307,413

−1,681,321

−13,248

−15,868

0

−2,051,070

Transfers

0

784,032

1,047,124

0

−1,001,732

0

829,424

408,166

21,988,425

33,950,882

12,167

808,961

13,303,168

70,471,769

Balance at 1/1/2010

0

12,557,022,

20,769,966

9,169

0

3,301,630

36,637,787

Depreciation
expense

0

918,929

1,737,390

7

0

908,432

3,564,758

Disposals

0

−258,130

−1,669,416

−142

0

0

−1,927,688

Transfers

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Balance
at 31/12/2010

0

13,217,821

20,837,940

9,034

0

4,210,062

38,274,857

28,953

88,006

77,204

13,113

15,957

0

223,233

−28,871

−50,662

−19,806

−13,113

−15,867

0

−128,319

82

37,344

57,398

0

90

0

94,914

Net book value
at 1/1/2010

379,189

8,583,562

11,077,440

3,133

1,151,226

10,001,538

31,196,088

Net book value
at 31/12/2010

408,084

8,733,260

13,055,544

3,133

808,871

9,093,106

32,101,998

Tangible
assets under
construction

Adjustments
to acquired
ﬁxed assets

Total

Balance at 1/1/2010

Balance
at 31/12/2010
Accumulated
depreciation

Adjustments
Balance at 1/1/2010
Change
Balance
at 31/12/2010
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Acquisition cost
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Disposals
Disposals of tangible ﬁxed assets include, in particular, assets disposed of as a result of the expiry of their useful lives.
Additions
Additions to tangible ﬁxed assets comprise machinery and equipment totalling CZK 142,130 thousand and
CZK 369,777 thousand, respectively, contributed by the parent company.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the capital expenditure programme was primarily focused
on the following areas:
– mine construction projects worth CZK 442.7 million and CZK 698.1 million, respectively, aimed at opening up new coal
deposits, and building structures ensuring safety;
– surface construction projects worth CZK 340.5 million and CZ 288.1 million, respectively, aimed primarily at coal
washing processes, the reconstruction of surface operations, and the development of tourism infrastructure;
– technological supplies as part of construction works in the mine and on the surface, and machinery and equipment,
totalling CZK 1,248.2 million and CZK 1,069.7 million, respectively. These included the supply and installation
of machinery and electrical equipment intended to: ensure the mining and transport capacity in the mine; expand
the mining air conditioning system; and to upgrade and renovate mining and processing equipment. In the machinery
and equipment category, the Company purchased machinery for longwalls, transportation equipment, electrical
equipment, safety appliances, pumps and IT equipment, and modernised mining machinery and equipment;
– other capital expenditure amounted to CZK 48.2 million and CZK 127.2 million, respectively. Most of this amount was
spent on purchases and trades of land and on project design work;
– under the Productivity Optimisation Programme 2010 (POP 2010), a capital expenditure programme continued to be
carried out, involving deliveries of longwall and development equipment, bolting and mucking equipment. These
expenditures amounted to CZK 2,421.3 million and CZK 3,672.3 million, respectively. The year 2010 was another year
in which OKD continued to replace and modernise its mining machinery and equipment, with the aim to signiﬁcantly
increase work safety and productivity. New technologies will continue to be delivered in 2011 as well, under
the PERSPektiva 2015 programme.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, no loan interest was included in the acquisition cost of tangible ﬁxed
assets.
The aggregate amount of low value tangible ﬁxed assets not recognised in the balance sheet at cost
as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 was CZK 586,069 thousand and CZK 568,985 thousand, respectively.
The assets related to the construction of the Frenštát Mine that were acquired in the form of geological surveys
in the so-called deﬁnitive proﬁles are maintained in off-balance sheet records. Their value as of 31 December 2010 and
31 December 2009, respectively, was CZK 920,904 thousand. The tangible and intangible ﬁxed assets of the Frenštát
operation are maintained in the accounts at a net book value of CZK 234,450 thousand and CZK 243,769 thousand,
respectively.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company established no statutory reserve for repairs to tangible
ﬁxed assets.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the value (measured at replacement cost) of assets acquired at the end
of ﬁnance leases was CZK 121,910 thousand and CZK 205,842 thousand, respectively. These assets are recognised
as fully depreciated.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had no pledged ﬁxed assets.
The change in adjustments to acquired ﬁxed assets is the depreciation total.
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c) Long-term investments
Overview of movements in long-term investments:
(in CZK ‘000)
Balance
at 1 January 2010

Other additions
and disposals

Balance
at 31 December 2010

103,667

0

103,667

54,742

0

54,742

Adjustments

−54,742

0

−54,742

Total

103,667

0

103,667

Investments in group undertakings
Other long-term securities and
ownership interests

Group undertakings (subsidiaries) or associates of OKD as of 31 December 2010.
1. Long-term
investments in group
undertakings
OKD, HBZS, a.s.

%
ownership
interest

Acquisition
cost

Registered
capital
at 31/12/2010

Equity
at 31/12/2010

Proﬁt
(loss)
for 2010

Dividend
income
1/1–31/12/2010

100.00

103,667

163,396

319,706

7,796

0

The data was not audited as of 31 December 2010.
Name of the entity

Registered ofﬁce of the entity

OKD, HBZS, a.s.

Ostrava-Radvanice, Lihovarská 10/1199, post code 716 03
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(in CZK ‘000)
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Group undertakings (subsidiaries) or associates of OKD as of 31 December 2009:
(in CZK ‘000)
1. Long-term
investments
in group
undertakings
OKD, HBZS, a.s.

% ownership
interest

Acquisition cost

Registered capital
at 31/12/2009

Equity
at 31/12/2009

100.00

103,667

163,396

311,910

Other securities and ownership interests of the Company as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009.
at 31 December 2009
Number
of shares/
Nominal value

Acquisition
cost
(in CZK ‘000)

Income

5 shares/
CZK 20,000

100

308,560 shares/
CZK 100

Moravskoslezská
obchodní, a.s., in liq.*)
IP EXIT, a.s. in liq.*)

at 31 December 2010

Total

Number
of shares/
Nominal value

Acquisition
cost
(in CZK ‘000)

Income

0

5 shares/
CZK 20,000

100

0

54,642

0

308,560 shares/
CZK 100

54,642

0

54,742

0

54,742

0

*) As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, a 100% adjustment, amounting to CZK 54,742 thousand and
CZK 54,742 thousand, respectively, was established to these ﬁnancial assets.

5. INVENTORIES
a) As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, an adjustment of CZK 42,019 thousand and CZK 32,825 thousand,
respectively, was established for inventories of slow-moving materials.
b) As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company established an adjustment of CZK 71,635 thousand and
CZK 37,448 thousand, respectively, to ﬁnished products in order to reduce their cost to net realisable value.
c) As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company established an adjustment to inventories of coke,
amounting to CZK 118 thousand and CZK 29,682 thousand, respectively. The adjustment was calculated
as the difference between the carrying amount of the inventories and their expected net realisable value
in the subsequent period.
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6. RECEIVABLES
Adjustments of CZK 15,783 thousand and CZK 18,454 thousand were established for overdue doubtful receivables
as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, respectively.
Overdue trade receivables as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 amounted to CZK 245,766 thousand and
CZK 88,356 thousand, respectively.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had short-term advances paid of CZK 94,793 thousand
and CZK 121,938 thousand, respectively.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had tax receivables of CZK 291,745 thousand
and CZK 304,707 thousand, respectively, comprising corporate income tax of CZK 245,976 thousand and
CZK 256,897 thousand, respectively, value added tax of CZK 45,377 thousand and CZK 47,235 thousand,
respectively, and other taxes and charges of CZK 392 thousand and CZK 575 thousand, respectively.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company reported 0 CZK and CZK 749,744 thousand, respectively,
worth of receivables that had been transferred to a bank in the form of recourse factoring.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had long-term receivables due in more than ﬁve years
of CZK 2,636 thousand and CZK 3,108 thousand, respectively.

(in CZK ‘000)
Balance at 31 December 2009

Balance at 31 December 2010

Related parties

3,108

2,636

Employees

−607

79

11,229

0

0

293,202

2,286

1,461

93

95

16,109

297,473

Unpaid dividends
Interest rate derivatives - collateral
Fair value of derivatives (see note 14)
Advances
Total long-term receivables

As of 31 December 2010 the Company provides Citibank N.A. and Barclays Bank plc with security for the fair value
of open interest rate derivatives contracts in the form of collateral, totalling EUR 11,700 thousand.
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Long-term receivables as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009.
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7. ADJUSTMENTS
Movements in adjustments
(in CZK ‘000)
Balance at 1/1/2010

Movement

Balance
at 31/12/2010

0

0

0

223,233

−128,319

94,914

54,742

0

54,742

277,975

−128,319

149,656

Products

37,448

34,187

71,635

Goods

29,682

−29,564

118

Materials

32,825

9,194

42,019

Inventories and products (total)

99,955

13,817

113,772

1,461

−571

890

Receivables – other

16,993

−2,100

14,893

Receivables (total)

18,454

−2,671

15,783

Total adjustments

396,384

−117,173

279,211

Adjustments to:
Intangible ﬁxed assets
Tangible ﬁxed assets
Long-term investments
Fixed assets (total)

Receivables – statutory
adjustments

As of 31 December 2010, the Company did not establish any additional adjustments to intangible and tangible ﬁxed
assets.
As of 31 December 2010, the Company released an adjustment to disposed of tangible ﬁxed assets relating
to operating mines, amounting to CZK 21,819 thousand; and an adjustment to other redundant assets, amounting
to CZK 646 thousand. As of the date of the sale of the Mining Museum (i.e. as of 1 June 2010), the Company also
released an adjustment to the assets of the Mining Museum, amounting to CZK 105,854 thousand.
As of the date of the sale of the Mining Museum, the Company, in accordance with Czech Accounting Standard
No. 11 – Transactions involving a business, released the adjustments that had been previously established
to the sold part of the business and recognised the value of the assets sold (decreased by transferred payables)
of CZK 102,869 thousand as extraordinary expenses, and the revenue for the sale of the assets, valued at CZK 1
(based on an expert opinion), as extraordinary revenues.
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8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES FROM
SHAREHOLDERS
The Company’s foreign exchange balance as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, translated using
the Czech National Bank exchange rate effective as of the above dates, was CZK 1,963,588 thousand and
CZK 10,476,067 thousand, respectively.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had restricted cash in respect of a provision for mining
damage and rehabilitation of CZK 276,307 thousand and CZK 368,672 thousand, respectively.
The Company has funds maintained under a cash-pooling arrangement with the parent company, amounting
to CZK 4,908,927 (EUR 195,887) and CZK 0 as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, respectively. This amount is
shown in the balance sheet on line 52, Receivables from shareholders.

9. OTHER ASSETS

As of 31 December 2009, the Company’s prepaid expenses included, in particular, a fee of CZK 136,903 thousand
charged on a syndicated loan, expenses related to putting low value tangible assets into use, insurance premiums,
a guarantor’s fee, and prepaid rent.
Accrued revenues as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 included mainly revenues from providing a guaranty
for an intra-group loan from New World Resources N.V., and insurance beneﬁts from Allianz.
Estimated receivables as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 included primarily receivables from
the insurance company of CZK 87,746 thousand and CZK 80,796 thousand, respectively; quality deductions
of CZK 26,792 thousand and CZK 28,285 thousand, respectively; service billing of CZK 3,644 thousand and
CZK 761 thousand, respectively; and other estimated receivables of CZK 1,122 thousand and CZK 99 thousand,
respectively.

10. EQUITY
As of 31 December 2010, the Company’s registered capital consisted of 42,005 registered ordinary shares
at CZK 200,000 per share. For information about the registered capital increase in 2010, see note 1.
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As of 31 December 2010, the Company’s prepaid expenses included, in particular, expenses of CZK 40 512 thousand
relating to the services of Siemens. Additional prepaid expenses included insurance premiums, subscriptions, coal
freight, and prepaid rent. These items are expensed on an accrual basis.
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The following movements occurred in equity in the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010:
(in CZK ‘000)

Share capital
Other capital contributions
Share premium
Revaluation of assets and
liabilities
Statutory reserve fund
Other funds
Retained proﬁts
Proﬁt for the current year
Total equity

Balance at 1/1/2010

Increase

Decrease

Balance at 31/12/2010

8,150,000

251,000

0

8,401,000

1,772

4

26

1,750

5,730,118

1,207,815

2,271,707

4,666,226

794,801

0

180,936

613,865

3,337,348

0

0

3,337,348

6,634

0

0

6,634

10,530,793

0

10,530,793

0

0

6,323,069

0

6,323,069

28,551,466

7,781,888

12,983,462

23,349,892

On 18 May 2010 NWR N.V., as the sole shareholder exercising the powers of the general meeting of OKD,
approved the proposal of the Company’s Board of Directors for the distribution of the proﬁt of OKD for 2009,
amounting to CZK 1,480,001 thousand, retained proﬁts of CZK 9,050,792 thousand, and the share premium
of CZK 2,271,707 thousand, for the purpose of a dividend payment totalling CZK 12,802,500 thousand.
The following movements occurred in equity in the period from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009:
(in CZK ‘000)

Share capital
Other capital contributions
Share premium
Revaluation of assets and
liabilities
Statutory reserve fund
Other funds
Retained proﬁts
Proﬁt for the current year
Total equity
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Balance at 1/1/2009

Increase

Decrease

Balance at 31/12/2009

7,515,000

635,000

0

8,150,000

1,318

458

4

1,772

2,603,574

3,126,544

0

5,730,118

963,837

0

169,036

794,801

3,337,348

0

0

3,337,348

6,634

0

0

6,634

10,059,126

0

1,008,334

9,050,792

0

1,480,001

0

1,480,001

24,486,837

5,242,003

1,177,374

28,551,466
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11. PROVISIONS
Movements in provisions:
(in CZK ‘000)
Balance
at 1/1/2010

Additions

Release/
utilisation

Balance
at 31/12/2010

1,666,096

15,000

147,848

1,533,248

234,408

179,000

173,686

239,722

50

0

0

50

1,900,554

194,000

321,534

1,773,020

Income tax provision

305,312

1,054,308

383,415

976,205

Other provisions

184,384

182,880

225,325

141,939

For land rehabilitation
For mining damage
For restoration and dump
management
Total tax-deductible provisions

Tax-deductible provisions are established in accordance with the Act on Reserves. As of 31 December 2010,
tax-deductible provisions were established to provide funds for future expenditures, particularly for compensation
for damage caused by mining activities.
Establishment of provisions
As of 31 December 2010, a provision for untaken holidays of CZK 113,796 thousand (recorded under Other provisions)
was established.
Upon meeting certain conditions, the Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors is entitled to a bonus in the form
of the parent company’s shares, which will be secured by OKD As of 31 December 2010 the Company set up a provision
of CZK 69,084 thousand for related expenses.
Utilisation and release of provisions
As of 31 December 2010, a portion of the accounting provision for the acquisition of real property in the Kozinec
area, amounting to CZK 7,710 thousand, was utilised, based on acquisitions actually carried out. Also utilised was
the provision for untaken holidays of CZK 114,371 thousand, the provision for bonuses in the form of the parent
company’s shares, amounting to CZK 102,583 thousand, and other provisions of CZK 661 thousand.

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

Tax-deductible provisions
(established under special legal
regulations)
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12. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had the following long-term liabilities:
(in CZK ‘000)
Liabilities
Deferred tax liability
Trade payables
Fair value of derivatives (see note 14)
Liabilities to shareholders
Security deposits received in respect
of non-residential premises and other
Long-term advances received
Total

at 31 December 2009

at 31 December 2010

3,105,354

3,454,506

0

615

463,379

273,262

0

10,892,405*)

1,696

518

0

31

3,570,429

14,621,337

*) A long-term intra-group loan from the parent company, NWR N.V., was received on 14 July 2010 (see note 15).
The above long-term liabilities are not secured by a lien.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had long-term liabilities due in more than ﬁve years
of CZK 273,780 thousand and CZK 465,075 thousand, respectively. The Company also has a long-term intra-group
loan from the parent company, NWR N.V., due in more than ﬁve years, amounting to EUR 273,895 thousand and
CZK 105,600 thousand. As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had no overdue long-term
liabilities.

13. SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company’s overdue short-term trade payables totalled
CZK 115,464 and CZK 811,946 thousand, respectively. All of these payables had been settled by the date of preparation
of the ﬁnancial statements.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company’s payables to employees amounted
to CZK 455,882 thousand and CZK 568,793 thousand, respectively, including payables in respect of deposited wages
of CZK 111,590 thousand and CZK 123,081 thousand, respectively.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had short-term advances of CZK 39,342 thousand and
CZK 173,428 thousand, respectively.
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had tax liabilities of CZK 93,022 thousand and
CZK 118,121 thousand, respectively, of which personal income tax paid by the Company amounted to CZK 89,969
thousand and CZK 116,445 thousand, respectively, and environmental tax amounted to CZK 3,053 thousand and
CZK 1,676 thousand, respectively.
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As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, respectively, the Company had no overdue liabilities in respect of social
security and state employment policy contributions; no overdue liabilities in respect of public health insurance; and no
tax arrears with the respective tax authorities.

14. DERIVATIVES
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company re-valued its derivatives at fair value. The positive and
negative values of the derivatives are recognised in other receivables and other payables, respectively.
Interest rate swaps and options
For the syndicated loan (see note 15), up to EUR 1,100 million, the Company’s interest rates were hedged by interest rate
swaps and collar options. The premature repayment of the syndicated loan, on 27 April 2010, resulted in the termination
of a portion of these derivatives and the payout of CZK 51.3 million and EUR 4.49 million. The remaining portion
of the derivatives continues to be effective. These derivatives are accounted for in the same way as derivatives held
for trading.

Interest rate swap
Collar option

at 31/12/2009

at 31/12/2010

EUR million

CZK million

EUR million

CZK million

290.25

2,734.71

182.00

1,263.06

33.75

324.79

0

252.61

Currency forwards
In order to offset a portion of an expected open currency position in euros, a portion of euro-denominated revenues
expected to be generated from the sale of coal and coke up to 2013 was hedged using currency forwards (contracts
for the future exchange of a speciﬁed amount at an agreed exchange rate). As of 1 January 2008 these derivatives
have been classiﬁed as hedging derivatives, in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 3f.
As part of credit risk management, a decision was made to terminate hedging derivatives maturing in 2009 – 2013
and to sell the concluded contracts in October and November 2008. The sale of the currency forwards was
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 3f. The unreleased proﬁt on the revaluation
of currency derivatives as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 amounted to CZK 757,858 thousand and
CZK 981,235 thousand, respectively.
The table below shows an overview of the positive and negative fair values of open derivatives:
Fair value receivable/ (payable)
at 31 December 2009

at 31 December 2010

Interest rate derivatives – payables

Long-term

−463,379

−273,262

Interest rate derivatives – receivables

Long-term

2,286

1,462

−461,093

271,800

Total

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

Principal hedged
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15. BANK LOANS AND LOANS PROVIDED
BY THE PARENT COMPANY
As of 31 December 2010, the Company had the following loan:
Loans received from the parent company

Currency

Interest rate

Security

Maturity

at 31/12/2010
(in CZK ‘000)

Intra-group loan - tranche 1

EUR

8.115%

–

2018

5,683,895

Intra-group loan - tranche 2

CZK

6M PRIBOR+4.125%

–

2016

1,299,150

Intra-group loan - tranche 3

EUR

6M EURIBOR+4.125%

–

2016

3,909,360

Long-term liabilities

Long-term part of intra-group loan

10,892,405

Short-term part of intra-group loan

868,085

Total loans from parent company

11,760,490

The intra-group loan was received on 14 July 2010. The overall credit limit of the intra-group loan is
CZK 11,760,490 thousand. The interest expense relating to the intra-group loan for the period from July
to December 2010 amounted to CZK 370,401 thousand.
Paid-up bank loans
As of 31 December 2009, the Company had the following bank loans:
(in CZK ‘000)
Currency

Interest rate

Security

Maturity

31/12/2009

Syndicated loan - tranche 1

CZK

6M PRIBOR+0.85%*)

**) investments

2011

224,754

Syndicated loan - tranche 2

CZK

6M PRIBOR+1.35%

**) investments

2012

1,161,185

Syndicated loan - tranche 3

CZK

6M PRIBOR+1.50%

**) investments

2013

748,520

Syndicated loan - tranche 1

EUR

6M EURIBOR+0.85%*)

**) investments

2011

620,472

Syndicated loan - tranche 2

EUR

6M EURIBOR+1.35%

**) investments

2012

3,205,572

Syndicated loan - tranche 3

EUR

6M EURIBOR+1.50%

**) investments

2013

2,055,910

Long-term bank loans

8,016,413
Short-term part of long-term loans

1,690,451

Total long-term bank loans

9,706,864

*) The margin may range between 0.65% and 1.35% p.a., depending on the level of indebtedness of the group.
**) The loan is secured by shares in OKD and selected afﬁliated entities of New World Resources B.V.
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On 27 April 2010, the syndicated loan totalling CZK 2,361,263 thousand and EUR 245,845 thousand was
prematurely repaid. OKD used its internal funds to repay the amount of EUR 182,500 thousand, while the amounts
of CZK 2,361,263 thousand and EUR 63,345 thousand were repaid from funds provided in the form of a loan from
the parent company. This loan was repaid in full on 18 May 2010.
The interest expense relating to the syndicated loan for the period from January to April 2010 amounted
to CZK 62,039 thousand. The interest expense relating to the loan from the parent company used to repay
the syndicated loan for the period from April to May 2010 amounted to CZK 5,128 thousand.
Short-term bank loans
(in CZK ‘000)
Short-term bank loans
Total short-term bank loans
(credit cards)
Short-term overdrafts

31/12/2009

31/12/2010

183

167

500,000

0

OKD provides New World Resources N.V. with a guaranty for issued bonds maturing in 2018.

16. OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and estimated payables include, in particular, uninvoiced supplies of work and services; uninvoiced
interest on the syndicated loan; bonuses and holiday pay to be paid in the next accounting period; unpaid loyalty
bonuses to miners; and levies on extracted minerals. These items are recognised on an accrual basis.
Deferred revenues include primarily revenue from guaranteeing a loan, rental revenue and other revenues. These items
are recognised on an accrual basis.

17. INCOME TAX
a) Current tax
The ﬁnal current income tax comprises:
– a tax provision for the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010 of CZK 976,205 thousand;
– a tax reduction equal to the difference between the 2009 tax of CZK 210,591 thousand and the release of the provision
for that tax of CZK 305,312 thousand;
– a tax reduction of CZK 491,744 thousand relating to additional tax returns submitted on the basis of a successful
lawsuit concerning the tax deductibility of interest on a loan used for dividend payment, which had been,
in the respective periods, recognised as non-tax deductible.
Current income tax comprised the tax estimate for the ﬁscal period from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009
of CZK 299,886 thousand, and tax adjustments of CZK −4,297 thousand relating to prior periods.

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

Under the ECA Loan Agreement, concluded on 29 June 2009, OKD is a co-debtor with respect to a loan utilised by New
World Resources N.V. As of 31 December 2010 the loan amount was EUR 104,653,522.
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b) Deferred tax
Recognised deferred tax receivables and liabilities:
(in CZK ‘000)
Asset
31/12/2009

Liability
31/12/2009

Asset
31/12/2010

Liability
31/12/2010

0

1,109,451

0

1,653,732

Adjustments to ﬁxed assets

27,596

0

14,570

0

Inventories and products

19,610

0

21,617

0

2,998

0

2,650

0

35,033

0

26,968

0

Adjustments to acquired ﬁxed assets

0

1,894,705

0

1,722,586

Fair value of derivatives

0

186,435

0

143,993

85,237

3,190,591

65,805

3,520,311

0

3,105,354

0

3,454,506

Items
Fixed assets

Receivables
Provisions

Total
Net deferred tax liability

In accordance with the accounting policies, deferred tax as of 31 December 2010 was calculated using the tax rates
valid for the periods in which the tax asset or liability is expected to be utilised, i.e. 19% for 2011 and 19% for 2012.

18. LEASES
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company held no assets under ﬁnance leases.

19. OFF-BALANCE SHEET RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
a) Bills of exchange and pledges:
As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had contingencies and commitments (of a monetary
and non-monetary nature) of CZK 62,650 thousand and CZK 566,163 thousand, respectively, which are recorded
in off-balance sheet accounts. These items comprise:
– bills of exchange for the supply of coal from Systém S.A. – Kombinát Koksochemiczny, Zabrze, amounting
to CZK 62,650 thousand and CZK 66,163 thousand, respectively;
– a bill of exchange in accordance with Amendment No. 1, dated 26 November 2007, to the agreement on credit products
concluded on 4 December 2006 with Česká spořitelna, a.s., amounting to CZK 0 thousand and CZK 500,000 thousand,
respectively.
OKD provides a guaranty to NWR N.V., the parent company, in respect of issued bonds maturing in 2018.
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Under the ECA Loan Agreement, concluded on 29 June 2009, OKD is a co-debtor with respect to a loan utilised
by New World Resources N.V. As of 31 December 2010 the loan amount was EUR 104,653,522.
The Company has receivables secured by a bill of exchange from Importkohle GmbH and KK Zabrze, amounting
to EUR 20,069 thousand and EUR 2,500 thousand, respectively.
b) Litigations
– Legal action by plaintiffs Antonín Macura and Alice Macurová for the payment of CZK 63 thousand and
CZK 36 thousand, ﬁled with the District Court in Karviná. On 11 June 2010, the court issued a ruling against OKD.
On 2 August 2010, OKD lodged an appeal. Although a hearing has not yet been ordered, the judgment of the Regional
Court in Ostrava conﬁrmed the decision of the court of ﬁrst instance in the matter. OKD will consider lodging
an appeal to the Supreme Court.
– Legal action by plaintiffs Antonín Macura and Alice Macurová for the payment of CZK 15,195 thousand
as compensation for damage to real estate. The action was ﬁled on 30 June 2009 with the District Court in Karviná.
On 15 January 2010, a court order to pay was issued, against which OKD ﬁled a protest on 10 February 2010.
On 10 March 2010, a statement on the action was prepared. A supplementary statement on the action was prepared
on 30 November 2010. No hearing has been ordered as yet.

– A motion to review the adequacy of the consideration for the shares of ČMD, a.s., ﬁled with the Regional Court
in Ostrava. On 22 September 2008, the court issued a ruling which dismissed the plaintiff’s motion and assessed
the adequate consideration for one share of ČMD, a.s. with a nominal value of CZK 750 at CZK 1,131.58. The ruling
became effective on 6 March 2009.
– A motion to review the adequacy of the consideration for the shares of OKD, ﬁled with the Regional Court in Ostrava.
– On 28 February 2007, an expert opinion on the assessment of the adequate consideration, issued by Ostravská
znalecká a.s. on 23 February 2007, was delivered in person to the Regional Court in Ostrava.
– On 2 February 2009, the Regional Court in Ostrava issued a ruling which dismissed the plaintiff’s motion and
assessed the adequate consideration for one share of OKD with a nominal value of CZK 1,000 at CZK 956.10.
– Plaintiff Veichart lodged an appeal against the decision, in relation to which a statement was submitted
on 4 May 2009.
– On 27 August 2009, an announcement by plaintiff Klesňák was delivered, stating that he had transferred a part
of his receivable claimed in the litigation in question to Mr Roman Minarík.
– On 21 January 2010, the High Court in Olomouc dismissed the motion to admit Roman Minarík as a claimant
to the proceedings.
– Plaintiff Klesňák and Mr Roman Minarík lodged an appeal with the Supreme Court against the decision of the High
Court in Olomouc on the dismissal of the motion to admit Mr Minarík to the proceedings. The appeal is still pending.
– A motion to review the adequacy of the consideration for the shares of METALIMEX a.s., ﬁled with the Municipal Court
in Prague. The Municipal Court in Prague dismissed the petition by a ruling dated 18 March 2009. On 30 July 2009,
the plaintiff appealed against the ruling. On 25 September 2009, a statement on the appeal was submitted.
On 21 October 2010, the High Court in Prague conﬁrmed the decision of the court of ﬁrst instance. The appellate court
stated that the petition in question represents an exercise of a right that is in conﬂict with the principles of fair trade
and the claimant is therefore not entitled to protection. The court regards the purchase of one share after a decision
has been made to squeeze out minority shareholders and a consideration amount has been set as a speculative
transaction.

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

– The following litigations to which OKD is a party are under way, relating to the purchase of the equity securities
of ČMD, a.s.; METALIMEX a.s.; and OKD, using the method deﬁned by Section 183i et seq. of Act No. 513/1991 Coll.,
the Commercial Code, as amended:
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– A motion to review the adequacy of the consideration for the shares of ČMD, a.s., ﬁled with the Municipal
Court in Prague. Based on a resolution dated 23 February 2009, the proceedings are to continue against OKD
(as the successor of KOP). On 30 July 2009, a statement on the petition was submitted. In its resolution dated
2 October 2009, the Municipal Court in Prague appointed Appraisal services – Znalecký ústav s.r.o. as an expert
to assess the adequate consideration for one share. Mr Chadzitaskos lodged an appeal against the resolution
of the Municipal Court in Prague, claiming bias. On 8 September 2010, the High Court dismissed the appeal.
On 14 September 2010, Mr Chadzitaskos requested the court to admit Mr Dědouch as an additional party
to the proceedings, to whom Mr Chadzitaskos reportedly transferred a part of the receivable that is to arise
for the claimants based on the court’s decision on the consideration amount. However, on 29 September 2010
the court dismissed this request. On 20 October 2010, Mr Chadzitaskos lodged an appeal against this decision.
A statement on the appeal is being prepared.
– Litigation of plaintiffs (1) Larisa Gerychová and (2) Aleš Gerych against OKD for the protection of personality rights
and the payment of CZK 10,000 thousand as pecuniary compensation for non-monetary harm, ﬁled with the Regional
Court in Ostrava. The plaintiffs are claiming pecuniary compensation for non-monetary harm related to the loss
of their son, who died as a result of a work injury. OKD denies responsibility, stating that the survivors received
the full compensation they were entitled to under the law and the collective agreement. The plaintiffs proposed
concluding a settlement agreement whereby each plaintiff would receive the amount of CZK 1,000 thousand
as compensation for the non-monetary harm. This proposal was rejected as the defendant claims and documents
that it has compensated the beneﬁciaries for all claims according to law. On 24 June 2010, the High Court in Olomouc
issued a ruling in the matter, conﬁrming the part of the judgment of the court of ﬁrst instance related to Mr Gerych
(i.e. conﬁrming the dismissal of the petition), and rescinding the part of the judgment of the Regional Court in Ostrava
related to Ms Gerychová and referring it for further proceedings. Mr Aleš Gerych lodged an appeal with the Supreme
Court against the decision of the High Court.
The proceedings in the case of Ms Gerychová resumed on 4 November 2010 in the Regional Court in Ostrava, with
the court suspending the proceedings until the Supreme Court has ruled on Mr Gerych’s appeal.
– Litigation of plaintiffs Zbigniew Waclaw Kolakowski and Věra Kolakowska against OKD relating to a mining damage
of CZK 855 thousand caused to real estate. The petitions were ﬁled on 13 July 2009. Written statements dated
6 November 2009 and 11 December 2009 were submitted with respect to the petition. The situation has not changed
since 1 January 2010, and no court hearing has been scheduled thus far.
– Litigation of plaintiffs the Orlová Parish of the Evangelical Church of Czech Brethren and Mr Jan Koňař relating
to mining damage caused to real estate, amounting to approximately CZK 3.5 million. The petition was lodged
on 29 June 2009. On 28 May 2010, a statement on the petition was prepared for the court. A hearing took place
on 20 October 2010, with the court adjourning the proceedings sine die to allow for the provision of additional
evidence and the examination of a witness. On 18 November 2010, a supplementary statement on the petition was
ﬁled.
– Litigation of plaintiff Katarzyna Magdalena Klimoszek for the payment of CZK 427 thousand as compensation
for mining damage caused to real estate. The proceedings were initiated on 30 June 2009. On 28 May 2010,
a statement on the petition was prepared for the court. On 4 October 2010, an oral hearing took place and was
adjourned until 21 February 2011. In connection with the hearing of 4 October 2010, a supplementary statement
on the matter was submitted on 3 November 2010.
As of the date of preparing the ﬁnancial statements, the OKD management believes that the above litigations and
claims have no signiﬁcant impact on the ﬁnancial statements as of 31 December 2010. As a result, they were not
accounted for.
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20. REVENUE
Analysis of revenue from the Company’s ordinary activities:
(in CZK ‘000)
1 January – 31 December 2009

1 January – 31 December 2010

Domestic

International

Domestic

International

Revenue from coking coal

5,602,694

9,822,567

8,635,466

14,468,502

Revenue from steam coal

5,276,007

5,724,187

4,934,438

5,143,370

Revenue from goods (coal and coke)

1,556,417

2,282,144

3,988,730

6,096,795

341,621

497

375,060

325

2,092

0

512

0

294,591

0

289,316

0

4,447,993

0

3,608,636

0

17,521,415

17,829,395

21,832,158

25,708,992

Revenue from services
Subsidies
Revenue from derivatives
Other revenues
Total revenue from ordinary activities

a) Revenue from ordinary activities
The majority of the Company’s revenue comes from four main domestic customers operating in the metallurgy sector.
International sales include exports to Slovakia, Austria, Poland, Germany and Hungary.
Revenue from services include mainly services related to the transportation of coal, amounting
to CZK 134,645 thousand.
The Company’s other revenues primarily include:
i) Other operating revenues
– settlements from insurance companies for work accidents
CZK 978,921 thousand
– revenue from disposals of ﬁxed assets
CZK 18,891 thousand
– revenue from disposals of materials
CZK 227,644 thousand
– revenue from the sale of receivables
CZK 1,206,440 thousand*)
– revenue from written-off liabilities
CZK 57,910 thousand
– revenue from leases
CZK 8,662 thousand
– ﬁnancial rebates
CZK 9,628 thousand
– natural disaster insurance bonus
CZK 7,204 thousand
– other operating revenues
CZK 21,712 thousand
*) includes revenue from the sale (assignment) of receivables totalling CZK 1,206,398 thousand
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ii) Financial revenues
– income from deposit notes
– gains from revaluation of derivatives
– interest income from banks and other interest income
– exchange rate gains
– collateral fee
– other ﬁnancial revenues
b) Extraordinary revenues comprise:
– revenue relating to prior accounting periods

CZK 3,241 thousand
CZK 65,939 thousand
CZK 24,561 thousand
CZK 689,258 thousand
CZK 56,793 thousand
CZK 4,557 thousand

CZK 4,296 thousand

21. PAYROLL COSTS
Analysis of payroll costs:
1 January – 31 December 2009

Average number
Wages (in CZK ‘000)
Remuneration paid to board
members (in CZK ‘000)
Directors’ bonuses (in CZK ‘000)
Social security (in CZK ‘000)
Social expenses (in CZK ‘000)
Total payroll costs (in CZK ‘000)

1 January – 31 December 2010

employees

of which
management/
executives

employees

of which
management/
executives

14,331

210.5

13,693

195.6

5,357,437

368,291

5,762,319

566,779

9,823

9,823

10,535

10,535

0

8,334

0

0

1,749,819

58,523

1,879,344

67,972

614,240

5,074

676,236

6,903

7,731,319

450,045

8,328,434

652,189

22. INFORMATION ON RELATED PARTIES
In accordance with the resolution of the general meeting, members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board
of OKD were provided with premiums in respect of insurance against liability for damage caused by members
of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board, including payroll tax, totalling CZK 4,803 thousand, for the period from
1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010 (for the period from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009 – CZK 4,427 thousand).
Members of the Company’s statutory bodies did not receive any loans, advances or guarantees.
Members of the Company’s statutory bodies, directors, deputies and managers of internal business units were provided
with beneﬁts in the form of the use of company cars. No accident insurance, life insurance or supplementary pension
insurance was provided.
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a) Receivables from and payables to related parties as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 were as follows:
(in CZK ‘000)
Receivables

Payables

at 31/12/2009

at 31/12/2010

at 31/12/2009

at 31/12/2010

359,138

544,578

367,563

819,814

774

4,053

43,203

100,939

2,234

2,116

52,045

36,632

614

0

10,350

0

Advanced World Transport, a.s.

19,608

6,500

454,798

191,055

Advanced World Transport B.V.

0

0

0

3,009

42,914

28,137

35,724

30,924

1,160

2,596

20,777

22,675

189

201

4,212

918

11

1

0

347

240

460

0

0

RPG Služby, s.r.o.

5

0

28

0

BXR Partners, a.s.

2

0

348

0

248

35

2,665

11,760,490

RPG RE Property B.V.

3

0

0

0

RPG RE Property, a.s.

13

0

362

0

0

19

0

0

19,997

0

237,741

0

BXR Real Estate B.V.

2

0

0

0

Dukla Industrial Zone, a.s.

0

0

12

0

Former Supervisory Board members

0

0

2,822

0

Current Supervisory Board members

0

0

5,512

0

447,152

588,696

1,238,162

12,966,803

OKK Koksovny, a.s.
OKD, Rekultivace, a.s.
OKD, HBZS, a.s.
CZECH-KARBON, s.r.o. *)

Green Gas DPB, a.s.
RPG Byty, s.r.o.
RPG RE Commercial, s.r.o.
RPG RE Land, s.r.o.
RPG RE Management, s.r.o.

New World Resources N.V.

R MEDIA, s.r.o.
Dalkia Industry CZ, a.s.*)

Total

*) As of 21 June 2010, these companies were sold by NWR N.V. to Dalkia Česká republika a.s. As a result, they are no
longer related parties as of that date.
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b) Related party sales and expenses were as follows:
(in CZK ‘000)
Sales from 1 January 2010
to 31 December 2010

Expenses from 1 January 2010
to 31 December 2010

4,839,876

7,134,105

5,498

221,231

11,250

176,785

1,084

383,793

Advanced World Transport, a.s.

52,516

1,903,059

Advanced World Transport B.V.

0

54,000

196,857

263,501

RPG Byty, s.r.o.

6,811

1,214

RPG RE Commercial, s.r.o.

1,032

28,152

12

211

2,386

0

RPG Služby, s.r.o.

5

26

RPG Industries Limited

4

0

New World Resources N.V.

70,364

387,758

Dalkia Industry CZ, a.s.*)

40,446

739,434

Dalkia Powerline Sp. z o.o.

0

84

AWT SPEDI-TRANS s.r.o.

0

990,030

Respekt Publishing, a.s.

0

90

Economia a.s.

0

94

R MEDIA, s.r.o.

131

8,238

BXR Partners, a.s.

10

7,020

BXR Tower B.V.

67

0

5,228,349

12,298,825

Related party
OKK Koksovny, a.s.
AWT Rekultivace, a.s.
OKD, HBZS, a.s.
CZECH-KARBON, s.r.o.*)

Green Gas DPB, a.s.

RPG RE Land, s.r.o.
RPG RE Management, s.r.o.

Total

*) The indicated sales and purchases relate to the period until 21 June 2010, when these companies were sold
by NWR N.V. to Dalkia Česká republika a.s. and, as a result, ceased to be related parties.
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23. FEES PAID TO STATUTORY AUDITORS
(in CZK ‘000)
1 January – 31 December 2009

1 January – 31 December 2010

Statutory audit

5,100

5,159

Other assurance services

2,337

903

Tax advisory

0

0

Other non-audit services

0

0

7,437

6,062

Total

24. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

25. SUBSIDIES
In 2010 OKD a.s. received a subsidy for the project “Development of Tourism Infrastructure in Karviná – the Darkov Golf
Park“, amounting to CZK 8,908 thousand.

26. SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On 13 January 2011, the sole shareholder, New World Resources N.V., exercising the powers of the general
meeting of OKD, decided, in the form of notarial deed No. NZ 49/2011, to increase the registered capital of OKD.
The registered capital increase comprised a non-cash contribution, which was valued based on expert opinion
No. 1/23916827/11 dated 10 January 2011, prepared by E & Y Valuations s.r.o., an expert. The existing registered capital
of CZK 8,401,000,000 was increased by CZK 23,000,000, to CZK 8,424,000,000, by subscribing for 115 registered
ordinary share certiﬁcates (at CZK 200,000 per share), which were issued as a collective instrument. The issue rate
of all subscribed shares was CZK 139,165,410, of which CZK 23,000,000 was the total nominal value of the newly issued
shares and CZK 116,165,410 was the total share premium. The decision of the Regional Court in Ostrava to record
the registered capital increase in the Commercial Register became effective on 21 January 2011.
On 8 February 2011, the sole shareholder, New World Resources N.V., exercising the powers of the general
meeting of OKD, decided, in the form of notarial deed No. NZ 209/2011, to increase the registered capital of OKD
The registered capital increase comprised a non-cash contribution, which was valued based on expert opinion
No. 3/23979122/11 dated 3 February 2011, prepared by E & Y Valuations s.r.o., an expert. The existing registered capital
of CZK 8,424,000,000 was increased by CZK 117,000,000, to CZK 8,541,000,000, by subscribing for 585 registered
ordinary share certiﬁcates (at CZK 200,000 per share), which were issued as a collective instrument. The issue rate of all
subscribed shares was CZK 692,075,475, of which CZK 117,000,000 was the total nominal value of the newly issued

F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S

For the period from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010, the Company incurred and expensed CZK 1,587 thousand with
respect to research and development. For the period from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009, the Company incurred
and expensed CZK 1,561 thousand with respect to research and development.
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shares and CZK 575,075,475 was the total share premium. The decision of the Regional Court in Ostrava to record
the registered capital increase in the Commercial Register became effective on 14 February 2011.

27. CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the purposes of the cash ﬂow statement, cash and cash equivalents are deﬁned to include cash in hand, cash
in transit, cash at the bank and other ﬁnancial assets whose valuation can be reliably determined and which can be
readily converted to cash. Cash and cash equivalents as of the balance sheet dates is as follows:
(in CZK ‘000)
Balance at 31/12/2009

Balance at 31/12/2010

12,991,181

3,071,722

368,672

276,307

13,359,853

3,348,029

Cash for the purposes of cash ﬂow
Restricted cash (see note 8)
Total cash
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I–XII/2009

I–XII/2010

P.

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

9,902,710

12,991,181

Z.

Accounting proﬁt (loss) from ordinary activities before tax

2,005,478

7,212,007

A.1.

Adjustments for non-cash transactions

3,794,012

3,704,150

A.1.1.

Depreciation of ﬁxed assets and amortisation of adjustments to acquired
ﬁxed assets

3,440,123

3,602,717

A.1.2.

Change in adjustments and provisions

−681

−287,155

A.1.3.

Proﬁt (loss) on disposal of ﬁxed assets, incl. the utilisation of adjustments

−18,294

41

A.1.4.

Revenue from dividends and proﬁt distribution

0

0

A.1.5.

Net interest expense and revenue

323,722

415,345

A.1.6.

FX inﬂuences

0

0

A.1.7.

Derivatives

48,535

−22,605

A.1.8.

Other non-cash transactions

607

−4,193
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A*

Net cash ﬂow from ordinary activities before tax, changes in working capital
and extraordinary items

5,799,490

10,916,157

A.2.

Change in working capital

2,866,632

−2,236,752

A.2.1.

(Increase)/decrease in receivables from operating activities, deferrals and
estimated receivables

1,127,566

−1,953,522

A.2.2

(Increase)/decrease in short-term liabilities from operating activities, accruals
and estimated payables

1,142,887

−534,981

A.2.3.

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

269,833

159,386

A.2.4.

Change in ﬁnancial assets other than cash and cash equivalents

326,346

92,365

A**

Net cash ﬂow from ordinary activities before tax and extraordinary items

8,666,122

8,679,405

A.3.

Interest paid

−382,458

−147,316

A.4.

Interest received

58,736

24,561

A.5.

Income tax paid on ordinary activities

−66,130

292,073

A.6.

Receipts and disbursements related to extraordinary items

−14,524

0

A.7.

Dividends and proﬁt shares received

0

0

A.8.

FX inﬂuences on ﬁnancial assets

0

0

A.9.

Derivatives paid

−15,813

−390,064

A***

Net cash ﬂow from ordinary activities

8,245,933

8,458,659

B.1.

Acquisition of ﬁxed assets

−2,336,484

−2,238,661

B.2.

Proceeds from sale of ﬁxed assets

26,564

18,891

B.3.

Advances and loans to related parties

0

0

B.4.

Cash pool funds

0

−4,908,927

B*

Net cash ﬂow from investing activities

−2,309,920

−7,128,697

C.1.

Changes in long- and short-term liabilities

−1,839,208

1,553,079

C.2.

Changes in equity

−1,008,334

−12,802,500

C.2.1.

Increase in cash and cash equivalents as a result of an increase in registered
capital or the reserve fund

0

0

C.2.2.

Equity paid to shareholders

0

0
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C.2.3.

Other cash contributions by shareholders

0

0

C.2.4.

Loss settlement by shareholders

0

0

C.2.5.

Direct payments debited to funds

0

0

C.2.6.

Dividends and proﬁt shares paid

−1,008,334

−12,802,500

C***

Net cash ﬂow from ﬁnancing activities

−2,847,542

−11,249,421

F.

Net increase / decrease in cash and cash equivalents

3,088,471

−9,919,459

R.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

12,991,181

3,071,722
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REPORT ON RELATIONS

OKD, a.s.
with Headquarters in Ostrava, Moravská Ostrava, Prokešovo náměstí 6/2020, Company ID (IČ) 26863154,
registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court in Ostrava in Section B, Inset 2900
Report
by the Board of Directors of OKD, a.s. with Headquarters in Ostrava, Moravská Ostrava, Prokešovo náměstí 6/2020,
ZIP 728 30, Company ID 26863154, registered in the Commercial Register kept by the Regional Court in Ostrava
in Section B, Inset 2900 represented by Klaus-Dieter Beck, Chairman of the Board of Directors, and Miloslava Trgiňová,
Deputy Chairwoman of the Board of Directors, on the relationships between the Controlling party and the Controlled
party and on the relationships between the Controlled party and other parties controlled by the same Controlling
party (hereinafter, the „Related parties“), prepared pursuant to the stipulations of Section 66a, paragraph 9
of Act no. 513/1991 Coll., the Commercial Code, as amended by subsequent legislation, for the period from
1 January 2010 until 31 December 2010.

R E P O R T O N R E L AT I O N S

Ostrava, 1 March 2011

Report on relations


1. RELATED PARTIES
For the purposes of the report hereunder, the Related parties shall be understood to be OKD, a.s.
and its sole shareholder New World Resources N.V., as well as BXR Group Limited and all other business
companies that are controlled by the BXR Group Limited within the meaning stipulated by Section 66a,
paragraph 2 of Act no. 513/1991 Coll., the Commercial Code, as amended.

2. RELATIONS BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES
In the period from 1 January 2010 until 31 December 2010, OKD, a.s. concluded the following contracts within
the framework of relations between Related parties (the value of the respective deliveries are in CZK incl. VAT):
Object of contract
Advanced World Transport a.s.
Company ID 476 75 977
Client
Land lease in Řepiště cadastral area
Land sale in Paskov cadastral area
Land lease – water area – water tank in Paskov cadastral area
Land lease – water area – water gate in Paskov cadastral area
Telephone lease
Lease – washing station at sludge pit of the ČSM Mine
Provision of operation of electric ﬁre-warning device
Sale of power, energy and water
Lease of non-residential premises
Sale of OKFrost component
Automated data processing
Usage of telecommunication network
Telecommunication services
Maintenance of telecommunication equipment
Usage of GIS OKD information system
Implementation of SAP data interface for import to MIS
Coke deliveries as per Amendments no. 1-6 to Sale Contract
Coal deliveries as per Amendment no. 1 to Sale Contract
Contract on exploitation and clearance of BC sedimentation tank incl. Amendment no. 1
Middling orders
Amendment no. 9 to Forwarding Contract
Re-invoicing of multiple costs (demurrage charges)
Supplier
Surface material haulage and handling (road haulage)
Usage of Paskov railway siding and provision of railway service
Repair of rail track in Paskov wagon dumper
Lease of 2 pcs of ACTS containers
Contract on the provision of operation of railway sidings
Substrate handling, Amendment no. 6 to contract
Substrate haulage
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Contracted value

78,936.00
6,400,870.00
47,850.00
1,924.56
78,374.60
0.00
43,200.00
673,567.27
158,952.30
13,444.20
10,239,943.20
33,709.80
461,033.75
576.00
115,200.00
293,760.00
6,907,682.28
10,913,150.30
15,097,680.00
5,755,304.14
3,549,544.80
27,556.40
7,234,678.68
55,977,762.37
358,504.80
12,696.00
0.00
77,595,395.35
314,380.80

Joint usage of railway siding
Substrate handling
Lease of railway carriages
Sludge extraction
Construction „Refurbishment of superstructure“
Mining damage settlement – rail track
Repair of rectiﬁcation of crane tracks – ČSM – South
Repair of narrow-gauge railway – Darkov
Repair of rectiﬁcation of crane tracks – Lazy MD
Repair of rectiﬁcation of crane tracks – ČSA MD
Crane track laying and recovery – ČSM
Rectiﬁcation of crane tracks – Darkov MD
Rectiﬁcation of crane tracks – Lazy courtyard
Renovation of trafﬁc centre – Chlebovice
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 7/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 7/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 6/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 6/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 5/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 7/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 5/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 5/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 5/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 5/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 4/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 4/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 12/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 11/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 11/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 11/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 10/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 10/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 9/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 9/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 8/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 8/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 1/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 2/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 2/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 3/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 3/2010
Purchase of Czech Railways sleepers – 3/2010
Purchase of heating coke – breeze grade
Purchase of heating coke – breeze grade
Subletting of tower for LAN antennas
Provision of services using conveyance vehicles
Framework Forwarding Contract – haulage in the territory of the CR
Order for storage of containers
Amendment no. 12 to Haulage Contract
Amendment no. 13 to Haulage Contract

59,876,062.27
136,572.00
99,338.40
5,476,027.44
13,403,854.29
498,726.00
501,163.20
528,960.00
659,077.20
201,583.20
441,590.40
214,404.00
411,469.20
1,083,567.40
5,760.00
10,080.00
5,760.00
11,520.00
5,760.00
11,520.00
10,080.00
7,200.00
10,080.00
10,800.00
17,280.00
5,760.00
4,320.00
5,760.00
9, 968.40
5,760.00
11,520.00
11,520.00
5,760.00
11,520.00
11,520.00
8,640.00
1,800.00
3,600.00
3,780.00
10,980.00
5,760.00
7,200.00
23,459.18
12,222.43
96,000.00
31,439.88
0.00
61,056.00
11,309,131.69
50,607,968.62
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Amendment no. 14 to Haulage Contract
Granulate purchase – Amendment no. 12 to Purchase Contract
Granulate purchase – Amendment no. 19 to Purchase Contract
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for coke haulage
Order for ETP haulage
Order for railway cars for fuel storage
Order for loading of EAS cars
Amendments no. 4-7 to Service Contract
Consignment Contract – coal import customs proceeding execution, incl. Amendment no. 1
Amendment no. 1 to Mandate Contract
Amendment no. 4 to Coal Haulage and Storage Contract
Amendment no. 6 to Forwarding Contract
Tailings haulage
AWT Rekultivace a.s.
Company ID 476 76 175
Client
Rental of telephone subscriber terminals
Deliveries of tailings
Provision of surface services
Backﬁlling material storage contract
Remediation of Křivý Důl sludge pit, making land available for backﬁlling material storage
Lease of non-residential premises
Power and water supplies
Lease of non-residential premises incl. services
Provision of services of bathrooms
Telecommunication services
Provision of Automated Data Processing services
Orders for tailings
Engineering services for remediation of sludge ponds
Supplier
Stripping of soil including transfer – Reclamation of Staříč II spoil bank – Phase B
Execution of demolition of family house in Staříč
Project dossier preparation for „PILÍK 3 ﬂotation spoil tank“
Reclamation of Staříč II spoil bank area – Phase B
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80,161,844.63
66,608,253.91
100,911,790.28
1,689.60
2,956.80
950.40
1,795.20
1,267.20
1,795.20
1,795.20
1,689.60
1,689.60
1,267.20
1,478.40
3,273.60
1,267.20
1,161.60
1,545.60
8,481.60
15,185.04
81,144.00
24,960.00
42,093,591.44
90,000.00
11,675,240.40
1,071,669.96
8,791,986.10
11,398,478.10

7,116.52
10,032.00
63,720.00
260,308.42
125,319.48
4,831.74
74,367.46
16,972.20
10,080.00
72,740.29
2,355,120.00
2,915,691.36
75,859.93
481,668.00
216,652.00
119,820.00
1,862,101.00
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AWT SPEDI-TRANS s.r.o.
Company ID 250 95 269
Supplier
Amendment no. 11 to Agreement on Conclusion of Future Haulage Contracts
Framework Forwarding Contract on Provision of Haulage of Goods
Framework Forwarding Contract on Provision of Haulage of Goods
BXR Partners a.s.
Company ID 272 19 836
Client
Lease of ITC technology
Sale of ITC technology
Supplier
Advisory services
BXR Tower B.V. (The Kingdom of the Netherlands)
Company ID 343 69 529
Client
SAP – establishment and setting up of accounting circle 20

87,281.00
81,691.00
1,302,912.00
1,621,458.00
3,203,004.00
1,260,905.00
1,458,768.00
0.00
55,194,530.00
326,354.00
4,086,298.00
45,088,254.00
6,930,796.00
98,880.00
672,395.04
1,612,560.00
11,012,675.00
35,015,512.00
2,477,983.00
12,160,362.57
285,360.00
9,207,505.00
1,271,199.00
108,408.00
517,267.00

1,177,230,000.00
0.00
0.00

10,800.00
1,200.00
7,157,532.48

67,200.00
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Reclamation of Darkov area – Phase 1 incl. D1
Reclamation of Darkov area – Phase 1
Handling by means of hauling machinery
Sludge extraction
Handling of thermal coal at coal depot and dispatch to railway cars
Handling with assortments at emergency depot site
Loading and haulage of extractable coal
Substrate handling at coal depot of ČSM Mine
Tailings removal and storage
Soil stripping
Waste Removal Contract
Golf course at Karviná
Implementation Contract for „Solecký kopec Reclamation – 2“
Demolition of family house in Darkov cadastral area
Waste disposal
Demolition of family houses
Reclamation of Lipiny area – Phase 1
Substrate handling
Forwarding Contract
Rock and tailings‘ removal and storage
Concrete works during reclamation of Z. Nejedlý Park area
Reclamation of old Doubrava spoil bank
Sludge extraction
Project dossier preparation
Repair of concrete handling area ČSM – South Site
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CZECH-KARBON s.r.o.
Company ID 258 46 159
Supplier
Supply of contracted power volume
Supply of contracted power volume
Supply of contracted power volume
Agreement on the Collateral Fee Settlement
Power Supply Contract
Supply of contracted power volume
Supply of contracted power volume

109,454,510.51
137,692,637.53
899,982.91
358,709.33
131,898,084.39
67,780,330.86
7,973.62

Dalkia Industry CZ, a.s.
Company ID 278 26 554
Client
Easement Contract – Staříč cadastral area, Chlebovice
1,072,104.00
Easement Contract – Fryčovice cadastral area
3,600.00
Asset lease – buildings, lands, equipment
754,498.00
Lease and services – telephone subscriber terminals, asset security, maintenance of electrical devices 1,222,813.77
Drinking water supply
85,937.50
Process water supply
2,511,269.37
Waste water take-off
437,355.33
Easement Contract – distribution system
366,732.00
Lease of lands – A Basin
3,347.00
Easement Contract
1,394,376.00
Easement Contract – extension of transformer station
14,832.00
Warm Water Supply Agreement
34,195.69
Drinking Water Supply Agreement
26,580.63
Process Water Supply Agreement
2,630,758.48
Agreement on Waste Water Supply to Waste Water Disposal System for non-public use
8,784.60
Easement Contract
266,292.00
Easement Contract – overhead power tine
15,840.00
Easement Contract
691,356.00
Easement Contract
112,920.00
Easement Contract – distribution system
1,817,448.00
Sale of used transformers
192,000.00
Lease of land plots in Doubrava
38,376.00
Waste water take-off
16,813.67
Process water supply
1,102,121.26
Warm process water supply
57,302.71
Drinking water supply
13,547.14
Lease of assets relating to power distribution
582,071.00
Electric equipment operation and maintenance
635,049.60
Contract on the Provision of Management and Lease of Storage Facility
210,000.00
Easement Contract – Stonava cadastral area
146,196.00
Repair of interconnection of buildings by ﬁber-optic cables – Darkov
214,332.00
Building of data interconnection by means of ﬁber-optic cables – Lazy
652,609.00
Amendment no. 2 to Purchase Contract on Coke Sales
217,005.70
Amendment no. 1 to Purchase Contract on Coal Sales
42,556,171.35
Provision of services of organizational and administrative nature
468,480.00
Exercising lector’s activity
840
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Economia, a.s.
Company ID 004 99 153
Supplier
Press delivery
Green Gas DPB, a.s.
Company ID 004 94 356
Client
Delivery of methane in mine gas blends for heat generating stations
Sale and purchase of methane
Lease of land in Staříč cadastral area
Lease of land for siting and operating of a cogeneration unit building
Lease of land for Chlebovice cogeneration unit
Delivery Contract for methane in mine gas blends for heat generating stations
Methane Sale and Purchase Contract
Easement Contract – gas connection from degasifying station 9. květen
Power, water and air supply
Lease of non-residential premises including services
Easement Contract – ČSA cogeneration unit
Lease of lands
Sale of methane for heat generating stations
Sale of methane
Set-up and adjustment of LH-86 security
Contract for the provision of ICT services
Processing of extracts from cadastral lands and gas pipeline parcels
Training events
Supplier
Laboratory analysis of coal, minerals and mine waters
Provision of services in the ﬁeld of specialized activities
Conducting a hydro geological survey
Laboratory analysis of coal, minerals and mine waters
Analysis of mine waters and mineral samples from exploration boreholes
Analysis of mine waters and mineral samples from exploration boreholes
Analysis of mine waters and mineral samples from exploration boreholes
Laboratory analysis of coal, minerals and mine waters
Analysis of mine waters and mineral samples from exploration boreholes

37,114.10
4,560.00
13,375.30
1,651,719.84
36,251.04
118,054.70
43,217,053.04
76,974,049.73
1,783,831.60
343,059.60
1,523,917.20
9,651,979.50

8,122.00

21,546,945.32
65,255,284.57
17,380.08
3,092.04
2,319.00
12,711,166.13
20,279,684.87
64,752.00
1,905,906.69
55,548.79
279,720.00
2,736.00
10,646,578.39
35,519,715.30
4,368.00
691,200.00
12,000.00
80,940.00
110,487.60
1,244,508.00
237,092.00
2,285.00
125,163.00
116,148.00
129,289.00
63,526.00
184,623.00
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Supplier
Lease Contract – rooms for voltage-reduction devices (transformers, switchboard)
Delivery of 19 pcs of electricity meters
Lease of electric appliances
Supplies of process water for bathing
Service Contract – voltage-reduction technology
Lease Contract – non-residential premises
Heat energy supplies
Compressed air supply
Provision of services in the ﬁeld of specialized electro- activities
Voltage-reduction technology servicing
Purchase Contract – object heating technology
Collateral fee settlement
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Analysis of mine waters and mineral samples from exploration boreholes
Analysis of mine waters and mineral samples from exploration boreholes
Easement Contract – access to a land plot
Water management evaluation
Methane drainage boreholes
Supply of gaseous and liquid nitrogen – central nitrogen management
Exploration boreholes
Core exploration boreholes
Methane drainage boreholes
Additional calculation of black coal reserves
Exploration boreholes – water drainage
Analysis of mine waters
Specialized activities relating to mine safety
Exploration boreholes
Monitoring and evaluation of water management
Expert opinion on parts of mining works
Core exploration boreholes
Hydro geological opinion for LW face no. 229 100
Hydro geological opinion for LW face no. 226 202
Hydro geological opinion for LW face no. 40 302j
Calculation of black coal reserves in Stonava mining work district
Hydro geological opinion for LW face no. 40 205
Hydro geological opinion for LW face no. 238 500
Expert opinion on the safety risks in LW face no. 40 205
Hydro geological opinion for LW face no. 37 910
Hydro geological opinion for LW face no. 40 301z
Hydro geological opinion for LW face no. 340206
Exploration borehole activities in a mine
Laboratory analysis of mine waters and exploration borehole samples
Hydro geological opinion
Testing of tailings
Supply of gaseous and liquid nitrogen – central nitrogen management
Analysis of water and oil samples – water management
Specialized activities relating to mine safety
Geotechnical boreholes
Core exploration boreholes
Analysis of mine waters
Hydro geological opinion
Execution of 3 ﬂat-dipping boreholes
Settlement of damages induced by mining activity – repair of degassing pipeline
Securing borehole
Hydro geological opinion
Hydro geological opinion
Settlement of damages induced by mining activity – repair of degassing pipeline
Settlement of damages induced by mining activity – repair of degassing pipeline
Dewatering testing boreholes
Specialized activities relating to mine safety
Evaluation of water management
Evaluation of water management
Specialized activities relating to mine safety
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205,720.00
147,924.00
600.00
562,447.60
39,457,058.00
25,887,928.54
3,224,837.00
11,921,150.00
7,744,358.00
354,000.00
5,427,657.00
637,539.60
4,717,323.00
0.00
444,000.00
36,000.00
7,376,680.00
18,000.00
18,000.00
18,000.00
2,346,000.00
18,000.00
18,000.00
36,000.00
18,000.00
18,000.00
18,000.00
6,507,814.00
430,749.00
42,000.00
67,171.00
29,873,493.78
703,511.20
7,593,394.00
25,378,207.00
7,187,660.00
500,398.00
31,200.00
1,638,000.00
1,660,000.00
143,902.00
44,245.00
12,000.00
442,300.00
594,000.00
357,182.00
11,552,941.40
600,076.60
84,000.00
11,103,071.60
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OKD, HBZS, a.s.
Company ID 476 76 019
Client
Provision of services relating to the operation of lamp rooms and bathrooms
Lease of non-residential premises
Sale – barked bars
Insurance re-invoicing – electronic equipment
Insurance re-invoicing – theft and vandalism
Insurance re-invoicing – liability for damage
Personnel cost settlement
Supplier
Provision of mine rescue services
Repairs, ﬁlling, and pressure testing of compressed oxygen bottles
Construction of dam and air objects in Paskov Mine (0845249)
Repair of resuscitation apparatus PT 60
Provision of photo collection of MV KG291, Glinik 6-15
Repairs, ﬁlling, and pressure testing of compressed oxygen bottles – 30 pcs
Provision of expert assistance and specialized works during reclamation of borehole NP 543
Development of rock dust barriers in LW coalfaces no. 063 7342/5 and 2342/7
Repair, ﬁlling and pressure testing of oxygen bottles – 21 pcs
Provision of photo collection on the surface
Maintenance of ﬁre extinguishers – 80 pcs
Filling with calibration gases
Construction of explosion-proof and insulating objects in mining work no. 112 5442
Services – ASEP, issue and maintenance of respirators, pressure warning,
Issue and maintenance of refractometers
Lease Contract for indication and detection devices
Lease of self-rescue devices
Lease of mine safety lamps and lamp room equipment
Construction of dam and air objects in coalface no. 059 5342
Provision of mine rescue services
Smoke box training of rescuers from Paskov Mine
Filling of oxygen bottles
Periodic inspections of ﬁre extinguisher TEPOSTOP in locomotives – 18 pcs
Year-long lease of nitrogen bottle
Provision of mine rescue services – South Site
Works on dam constructions
Testing of coal oxyreactivity for individual seams
Works on dam constructions
Lease of working breathing apparatuses
Lease of breathing apparatuses BG 174
Periodic inspections, maintenance, and repairs of ﬁre extinguishing equipment
Repair and maintenance of machinery and equipment (including inspections)
Work in special work environment (climbing activities) – South
Smoke box training – South Site

0.00
0.00
0.00
37,700.00

214,482.58
580,868.03
1,200.00
1,492.00
6,390.00
58,443.00
148,544.00
60,480.00
53,962.80
467,280.00
4,800.00
10,296.00
31,944.00
30,000.00
415,800.00
22,321.20
9,588.00
52,970.40
5,392.80
239,400.00
2,326,414.08
7,142,094.72
7,105,873.00
12,301,926.00
530,640.00
4,413,999.60
1,658,730.00
6,314.40
264,328.80
5,184.00
6,600.00
289,800.00
238,800.00
0.00
369,360.00
287,280.00
287,564.40
606,818.40
21,000.00
1,182,786
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Exploration boreholes
Methane drainage boreholes
Provision of the prediction of impacts of induced seismic activities
Contract on the settlement of damages induced by mining activity
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Smoke box training – North Site
Filling of oxygen bottles – South Site
Lease of self-rescue devices SSS 1 PV KS
Lease of mine safety lamps and lamp room equipment
Leasing of indication and detection devices
Provision of services relating to the operation of lamp room
Diving activities – water level sinking in Lipiny site
Laying of pipelines at Site 2 and 3 and construction of closing dam at Site 3
Lease of breathing apparatuses BG 174
Services relating to the construction, reclamation and setting-up of dams
Services relating to the construction of dams, reclamation and setting-up and laying of pipelines
Construction of ﬂange packings „BRUDNIK“ in LW no. 340246
Provision of mine rescue services
Lease Contract for breathing apparatuses BG 174
Provision of services relating to the operation of lamp rooms
Leasing of indication and detection devices
Lease of mine safety lamps and lamp room equipment
Lease of self-rescue devices
Provision of mine rescue services
Leasing of indication and detection devices
Lease of mine safety lamps and lamp room equipment
Contract on the provision of lamp room services
Services relating to the construction of dams
Services relating to the construction of dams
Provision of mine rescue services and works
Provision of mine rescue services and works
Provision of mine rescue services and works
Provision of mine rescue services and works
Positioning of operating deck Roth
Purchase – CO2 absorber, 4-hours
Purchase – mercaptan 900 ml (cartridge)
Purchase – CO2 absorber, 4-hours
Purchase – mercaptan 900 ml (cartridge)
Purchase – mercaptan 900 ml (cartridge)
Purchase – mercaptan 900 ml (cartridge)
Purchase – CO2 absorber, 4-hours
Purchase – mercaptan 900 ml (cartridge)
Check of ﬁre extinguishers
Settling-up personnel costs

880,842.00
55,861.20
8,285,772.00
15,565,901.60
6,893,929.44
3,044,291.04
15,900.00
450,180.00
51,300.00
587,880.00
544,920.00
90,000.00
7,320,918.00
344,736.00
4,188,888.00
7,091,813.04
15,940,342.00
8,641,771.00
12,528,000.00
7,503,384.48
18,703,596.40
2,808,345.60
498,000.00
511,695.00
2,654,816.40
1,731,339.60
2,014,544.40
2,326,623.60
0.00
116,880.00
42,336.00
116,880.00
42,336.00
42,336.00
42,336.00
23,376.00
0.00
16,129.20
265,206.00

New World Resources N.V. (Kingdom of the Netherlands)
Company ID 342 39 108
Client
Provision of services
Settlement of fees related to the Collateral Agreement
Installation of rented mine equipment
Re-invoicing of costs relating to activity for client
Agreement on Assumption of Liability
Collateral fee – bonds
Agreement on Assumption of Liability

257,160.00
37,242,218.80
1,150,000.22
173,723.13
135,313.75
47,644,996.18
312,588.36
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OKK Koksovny, a.s.
Company ID 476 75 829
Client
Laboratory analysis of water samples
Automated Data Processing
Usage of technology telecommunication network
Usage of telephone stations
GIS OKD services
Repair and maintenance of telephone distribution frame
Qos deﬁnition proposal, L2/L3 switch conﬁguration
Purchase Contract on sale of coking coal including Amendment no. 1
Re-invoicing of the costs relating to coke storage
Purchase Contract on import of coking coal from Poland including Amendments no. 1–4
Purchase Contract on sale of coke dust including Amendment no. 1
Purchase Contract on coking coal deliveries from overseas including Amendment no. 1
Re-invoicing of haulage charges to Germany
Physical security of coke storage site
Re-invoicing of insurance
Supplier
Provision of changing rooms
Invoice for haulage charges for returned coking coal
Coke Purchase Contract including Amendments no. 1-3
Settling up collateral fee
R MEDIA, spol. s r.o.
Company ID 481 12 135
Client
Usage of telecommunication stations
ICT services
Mail-room operation activities
Supplier
Advertising
Advertising
Advertising
Advertising Contract
RPG INDUSTRIES LIMITED (Republic of Cyprus)
Company ID HE 146906
Supplier
Contract on Assignment of Claims

4,749,551.80
14,747,669.06
8,825,575.00
170,556,363.91

20,764.80
5,943,649.20
307,393.08
1,397,997.91
504,000.00
965,880.00
8,736.00
3,849,980,304.54
21,292,353.69
1,481,962,724.84
4,465,440.00
485,202,306.92
11,880.00
2,822,987.39
500,778.00
13,920.00
41,932.80
8,664,419,786.19
3,259,209.40

46,626.66
43,488.00
84,000.00
46,416.00
5,760.00
7,200.00
120,000.00

12,680,856.58
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Supplier
Agreement on fee settlement
Amendment to the Contract on Advisory Services
Lease of mining technology
Agreement on setoff when increasing the basic capital
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RPG Byty, s.r.o.
Company ID 277 69 127
Client
Purchase Contract on 2 pcs of batteries for APC SmartUPS 750
SAP – creation of accounting circle 36 in SQL-CLI 100
SAP – creation of accounting circle 92 in SQL-CLI 100
EIS amendment in relation to the merger of the companies with the RPG RE Group
Lease of training room
Supplier
Survey proﬁling of Olešná river course
Order for surveying activities – Darkov Golf Course
Evaluation of geometric plans on distribution of land plots of Karviná-Darkov
Order for demarcation of land plots within reclamation process in Stonava cadastral area
Topography, altimetry and longitudinal proﬁle surveying for drainage of Lipina
Levelling of rails of KBD, Olše and Stonávka stream gauging
Conducting altimetry measuring – Lipiny
Delimitation of boundaries of project „Reclamation of lands alongside funicular“
Geometric plan on reclamation project of „Lazy Sludge Pond“
Surveying activities relating to reclamation project „Figura Site Reclamation“
Amendment no. 2/2010 to Fixed Job Contract
Lease of non-residential premises, Karviná
Execution of geometric plan
Execution of geometric plan
Levelling of Dolní Suchá
RPG RE Commercial, s.r.o.
Company ID 277 69 135
Client
Purchase Contract – printer cartridges
Installation and conﬁguration of camera monitoring system for the premises at Smetanovo náměstí
Battery replacement in UPS
Supplier
Amendment no. 4 to the Non-Residential Premises Lease Contract, Gregorova 3/2582, Ostrava
Amendment no. 6 to the Non-Residential Premises Lease Contract, Gregorova 3/2582, Ostrava
Amendment no. 7 to the Non-Residential Premises Lease Contract, Gregorova 3/2582, Ostrava
Conference room lease
Conference room lease
Conference room lease
Amendment no. 3 to the Non-Residential Premises Lease Contract, Prokešovo náměstí 2020, Ostrava
Amendment no. 2 to the Non-Residential Premises Lease Contract, Prokešovo náměstí 2020, Ostrava
Amendment no. 3 to the Non-Residential Premises Lease Contract, Prokešovo náměstí 2020, Ostrava
Amendment no. 4 to the Non-Residential Premises Lease Contract, Prokešovo náměstí 2020, Ostrava
Amendment no. 3 to the Non-Residential Premises Lease Contract, Gregorova 3/2582, Ostrava
Lease of vehicle
Lease Contract for land-registry no. 1614/13
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960.00
80,640.00
80,640.00
172,800.00
8,064.00
315,840.00
4,200.00
36,000.00
7,200.00
17,760.00
100,879.00
12,420.00
28,800.00
9,000.00
21,600.00
78,319.00
385,366.22
14,400.00
24,000.00
138,000.00

8,976.00
2,928.00
3,756.00
2,434,668.00
2,413,068.00
1,222,494.00
3,602.00
9,653.00
2,906.00
5,776,786.00
1,811,257.00
3,744,028.00
11,568,034.00
2,638,800.00
36,103.00
1,006,201.00

Report on relations


RPG RE Management, s.r.o.
Company ID 273 91 469
Client
Lease of premises for the event „Day of Seniors“
Scanning, copying and printing activities
Lease of training room
RPG Služby, s.r.o.
Company ID 275 81 845
Client
Usage of telecommunication stations and related services
Supplier
Purchase of supplies for mail room

0.00
12,930.62
16,416.00
67,676.00
1,493.00
5,050.00
239,700.00
729,600.00
18,000.00
35,585.00

0.00
35,928.00
2,016.00

8,056.58
9,643.20

The contracts and agreements concluded involve prices such as apply to usual business transactions conducted
under the usual commercial terms and conditions. Equivalent considerations were provided for any supplies delivered
and services rendered – with payments transacted as per the agreed maturity deadlines.
The corporate management is satisﬁed that the aforementioned contracts and agreements were concluded pursuant
to usual business terms and conditions.

R E P O R T O N R E L AT I O N S

RPG RE Land, s.r.o.
Company ID 277 69 143
Client
Water supply
Drinking and waste water supply
Supplier
Lease of land – reclamation of the Stonávka river
Lease Contract „Nový York“
Lease of lands for reclamation work „Doubrava spoil bank“
Lease of lands for reclamation work „Špluchov creek“
Easement Contract – „Barbora“ upstream waterway
Easement Contract – realignment of DN 300 water conduit
Single fee for permit to access premises
Lease of an ofﬁce – lease amendment
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3. PURCHASES AND SALES
Within the framework of Related parties, the business transactions that took place during 2010 are reﬂected
in the purchases and sales listed in the overview below:
Related party (company)

Purchases, CZK ‘000

Sales, CZK ‘000

7,134,105

4,839,876

AWT Rekultivace, a.s.

221,231

5,498

OKD, HBZS, a.s.

176,785

11,250

CZECH-KARBON s.r.o.

383,793

1,084

Advanced World Transport, a.s.

1,903,059

52,516

Advanced World Transport B.V.

54,000

0

263,501

196,857

1,214

6,811

28,152

1,032

211

12

0

2,386

26

5

0

4

New World Resources N.V.

387,758

70,364

Dalkia Industry CZ, a.s.

739,434

40,446

84

0

AWT SPEDI-TRANS s.r.o.

990,030

0

Respekt Publishing, a.s..

90

0

Economia a.s.

94

0

R MEDIA, s.r.o.

8,238

131

BXR Partners, a.s.

7,020

10

0

67

OKK Koksovny, a.s.

Green Gas DPB, a.s.
RPG Byty, s.r.o.
RPG RE Commercial, s.r.o.
RPG RE Land, s.r.o.
RPG RE Management, s.r.o.
RPG Služby, s.r.o.
RPG Industries Limited

Dalkia Powerline Sp. Z o.o.

BXR Tower B.V.
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As of 31 December 2010, any receivables and payables deriving from the concluded contractual relationships and from
other considerations involving Related parties, reported to exist between OKD, a.s. and the Related parties thereof, are
listed in the Enclosure to the Financial Statements as of 31 December 2010.

4. OTHER LEGAL ACTS
In 2010, the Controlling Agreement concluded between OKD, a.s. as the Controlling Person and OKK Koksovny, a.s.
as the Controlled Person effective from 1 January 2007 continued to apply. During 2010, OKD, a.s. was issuing
instructions to the Controlled Person. Throughout 2010, this Agreement was without any detriment to OKD, a.s.
On the part of OKD, a.s., no further legal acts were taken and no other measures were adopted by OKD, a.s. that would
have been in the interest of, or initiated by, any of the Related parties.

5. SUPPLIES/SERVICES/PAYMENTS AND CONSIDERATIONS
EXTENDED IN RETURN

Klaus-Dieter Beck
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Miloslava Trgiňová
Deputy Chairwoman of the Board of Directors

R E P O R T O N R E L AT I O N S

Equivalent considerations extended in return were always provided in full compensation of any supplies, services, or
payments received. None of the contracts and agreements concluded and none of the supplies, services, payments
and considerations made or extended among the Related parties during the period from 1 January 2010 until
31 December 2010 had been to any detriment to OKD, a.s.

AUDITOR'S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF OKD, a.s.
Financial statements
On the basis of our audit, on 18 February 2011 we issued an auditor’s report on the Company’s statutory ﬁnancial
statements, which are included in this annual report, and our report was as follows:
“We have audited the accompanying ﬁnancial statements of OKD, a.s. which comprise the balance sheet
as of 31 December 2010, the income statement and the cash ﬂow statement for the year then ended, and the notes
to these ﬁnancial statements including a summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
Information about the company is set out in Note 1 to these ﬁnancial statements.
Statutory Body's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The statutory body of OKD, a.s. is responsible for the preparation of ﬁnancial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Czech accounting legislation and for such internal controls as the statutory body determines are
necessary to enable the preparation of ﬁnancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these ﬁnancial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and International Standards on Auditing and the relevant guidance
of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the ﬁnancial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnancial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the ﬁnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the ﬁnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the ﬁnancial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the ﬁnancial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities of OKD, a.s.
as of 31 December 2010, and of its expenses, revenues and net result and its cash ﬂows for the year then ended
in accordance with Czech accounting legislation.”
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Report on relations between related parties
We have reviewed the factual accuracy of the information disclosed in the report on relations between related parties
of OKD, a.s. for the year ended 31 December 2010. The responsibility for the preparation and factual accuracy of this
report rests with the Company’s statutory body. Our responsibility is to express our view on the report on relations
based on our review.
We conducted our review in accordance with Auditing Standard No. 56 of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech
Republic. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain limited assurance as to whether
the report on relations is free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s
personnel and analytical procedures and examination, on a test basis, of the factual accuracy of information, and thus
provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit of the report on relations and, accordingly, we
do not express an audit opinion.
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that would lead us to believe that the report on relations
between related parties of OKD, a.s. for the year ended 31 December 2010 contains material factual misstatements.
Annual report
We have audited the consistency of the annual report with the audited ﬁnancial statements. This annual report is
the responsibility of the Company’s statutory body. Our responsibility is to express our opinion on the consistency
of the annual report with the audited ﬁnancial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and International Standards on Auditing and
the relevant guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the information disclosed in the annual report describing
matters that are also presented in the ﬁnancial statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the audited
ﬁnancial statements. We believe that the audit we have conducted provides a reasonable basis for our audit opinion.
In our opinion, the information disclosed in the annual report is, in all material respects, consistent with the audited
ﬁnancial statements.

Prague
9 May 2011

KPMG Česká republika Audit, s.r.o.
Licence number 71

ing. Petr Škoda
Partner
Licence number 1842

EXCERPT FROM THE COMMERCIAL REGISTER

Registered oﬃce:
Ostrava, Moravská Ostrava, Prokešovo náměstí 6/2020, Postcode 728 30
Company identification number: 268 63 154
Legal form:
joint-stock company
The joint-stock company OKD, a.s was established on 4 May 2005 by the founder ABC.ENTERPRISE, joint-stock
company, with its registered ofﬁce in Praha 10, Na Výsluní 201/13, Postcode 100 00, company identiﬁcation number:
639 98 386, by a notarial deed of foundation.
OKD is registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Regional Court in Ostrava, Section B, Insert 2900.
The Company was incorporated by its registration in the Commercial Register on 1 June 2005.
The Company’s business, as deﬁned in Article 5 of the Articles of Association of OKD, a.s. valid and effective
as of 31 December 2010, was as follows:
– Mining activities pursuant to Section 2 (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (i) of Czech National Council Act No. 61/1988 Coll.,
on mining activities, explosives and state mining administration, as amended:
a) prospecting for and exploration of deposits of reserved minerals (“reserved deposits”),
b)opening, preparation and extraction of reserved deposits,
c) establishment, securing and liquidation of underground and open-cut mines,
d)processing and beneﬁcation (reﬁning) of minerals in connection with mineral extraction,
e) establishment and operation of dumps, spoil banks and settling ponds in relation to the activities
under (a) to (d) above,
f) special interventions in the earth’s crust,
g) securing and liquidation of old mines,
h) mining rescue service,
i) mine surveying activities.
– Activities carried out by mining methods pursuant to Section 3 (a), (c), (e), (h), (i) and Section 5 of Czech National
Council Act No. 61/1988 Coll., on mining activities, explosives and state mining administration, as amended:
a) mining of the deposits of unreserved minerals, including processing and beneﬁcation of minerals in connection
with mineral extraction; and prospecting for and exploration of deposits of unreserved minerals carried out for that
purpose,
c) work to secure the stability of underground space (underground stabilization work),
e) earthwork carried out using earth-removing machines and explosives, where more than 100,000 cubic meters
of earth is moved at one site, except for foundation engineering projects,
h) work to provide access to old mines or permanently abandoned mines, and to maintain them in a safe and secure
condition,
i) underground work consisting of the sinking of shafts and wells, in tunneling and in building underground spaces
larger than 300 cubic meters of removed earth.
– Designing buildings and equipment, which form part of mining activities or activities carried out by mining methods
– Manufacture, installation and repairs of electrical machines and instruments, electronic and telecommunication
equipment
– Catering services
– Installation, repair, inspection and testing of electrical equipment
– Installation, repair, inspection and testing of pressurized equipment and gas containers
– Machining (metalworking)
– Locksmithing, tool-making
– Installation, repair, inspection and testing of hoisting equipment
– Production of hazardous chemical substances and hazardous chemical preparations; sale of chemical substances
and chemical preparations classiﬁed as highly toxic and toxic
– Production and processing of fuels and lubricants
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–
–
–
–

–
–

–
–

Geodetic surveying work
Accounting advisory, bookkeeping services and maintaining tax records
Purchase and sale of explosives
Road motor transport – intrastate freight transport by vehicles with a maximum gross weight of up to 3.5 tons,
including intrastate freight transport by vehicles a maximum gross weight over 3.5 tons, occasional intrastate
passenger transport
Maintaining archives and ﬁling registries
Manufacture, trade and services not listed in Appendices 1 to 3 of the Trade Licensing Act:
12. Woodworking and manufacture of objects produced from cork, wicker and straw
14. Publishing, printing, bookbinding and copying activities
16. Manufacture of coke, crude tar and other solid fuels
25. Manufacture of steel structures and metal products
27. Surface ﬁnishing and welding of metals and other materials
28. Manufacture of measuring, testing, navigation, optical and photographic machines and instruments
43. Operation of water mains and sewer systems, water treatment and distribution
44. Waste disposal (except for hazardous waste)
47. Intermediary activities in trade and services
48. Wholesale and retail
52. Goods storage and packaging, cargo handling and technical activities in transport
53. Forwarding and representation in customs clearance
55. Accommodation services
56. Provision of software, advisory in the area of information technology, data processing, hosting and related
activities, and web portals
57. Activities of information and news agencies
58. Real estate activities, administration and maintenance of real estate
59. Lease and rental of movables
60. Advisory and consultancy activities, expert studies and opinions
65. Testing, measuring, analyses and inspections
66. Advertising and marketing, media representation
70. Administrative management activities and support services
71. Operation of travel agency and tourist guide activities
72. Extracurricular education and training, organizing courses, including instructional and tutorial activities
73. Operation of cultural, educational and entertainment facilities, organizing cultural and entertainment events,
exhibitions, trade fairs, shows, selling and similar events
74. Operation of physical training and sports facilities, and organizing sports activities
76. Provision of technical services
77. Repairs and maintenance of household goods, articles of cultural value, ﬁne mechanics products, optical
equipment and instruments and measuring devices
80. Manufacture, trade and services not classiﬁed elsewhere.
Operation of non-state healthcare facilities, healthcare in the area of rehabilitation and physical medicine,
physiotherapy
Provision of telecommunication services under Act. No. 127/2005 Coll., about Electronic Communications and about
Amendment to Certain Acts (Electronic Communications Act)
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